
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL MEETING @ 1:30 PM 
City Hall Council Chamber 

120 East Main Street – Apopka, Florida 32703 
August 05, 2015 

 
 
INVOCATION 

Pastor Manny Rosario from Christ City Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

If you wish to appear before the City Council, please submit a Notice of Intent to Speak card 

to the City Clerk. 

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 

1. Marc Remillard – Police Department/Field Services – Five Year Service Award 

2. Josean Velez Cantres – Police Department/Field Services – Five Year Service Award 

3. Kyle Petulla – Police Department/Field Services – Five Year Service Award 

4. Linda Goff – City Clerk’s Office – Five Year Service Award 

5. Michael Lee – Police Department/Support Services – Ten Year Service Award 

6. Eric Williams – Public Services/Water Distribution Maintenance – Fifteen Year Service 

Award 

7. Matthew Gibbs – Police Department/Support Services – Twenty Year Service Award 

8. John McConnell – Police Department/Field Services – Twenty Year Service Award 

Page 1



Page 2 
 

 

9. Charles McCrary – Public Services/Water Distribution Maintenance – Twenty Five 

Year Service Award 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. Apopka Elementary School Mural - History of Apopka mural presented by artist Lisa 

Mikler to Apopka Elementary School Principal Lukeshia Miller. 

2. Play Ball Proclamation - Presented to Apopka Little League President Gary Odom. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approve the minutes of Administrative Bid Opening No. 2015-06 for the Purchase of 

Ductile Iron Pipe and Fittings for the RWS Extension Projects held on July 7, 2015, at 

10:15 a.m. 

2. Approve the minutes from the regular City Council meeting held on July 15, 2015, at 

7:00 p.m. 

3. Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Capital Facility Fees Payment 

Agreement for Cooper Palms Indoor Sports Complex. 

LEGISLATIVE: ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2437 - SECOND READING & ADOPTION - ANNEXATION - 

Ellsworth D. Bottoms Trust, property located at 4011 Golden Gem Road. (Parcel ID 

No. 13-20-27-0000-00-054) (10.25 +/- acres)  

2. ORDINANCE NO. 2438 - SECOND READING & ADOPTION - ANNEXATION - 

Norman E. Sawyer, property located at 119 East Nancy Lee Lane. (Parcel ID No. 33-

20-28-0000-00-047) (0.41 +/- acre)  

3. ORDINANCE NO. 2439 - SECOND READING & ADOPTION - ANNEXATION - 

Technology Property, LLC, property located south of Keene Road and west of 

Clarcona Road. Parcel ID Nos.27-(21-28-6024-00-005 (3.40 ac); 27-21-28-6024-00-

006 (2.37 ac); 27-21-28-6024-00-007 (3.61 ac) (Combined 9.38 +/- acres)   

4. ORDINANCE NO. 2440 - SECOND READING & ADOPTION - ANNEXATION - 

Crossroads Church of Orlando, Inc., property located at 320 East Welch Road; and 

authorize the Mayor or his designee to sign the Interlocal Agreement between the City 

of Apopka and Orange County for annexation of enclaves. (Parcel ID No. 34-20-28-

9550-00-261) (1.85 +/- acres)   

5. ORDINANCE NO. 2441 - SECOND READING & ADOPTION - ANNEXATION - Donald 

Lee Boughan, property located at 404 East Welch Road; and authorize the Mayor or 

his designee to sign the Interlocal Agreement between the City of Apopka and Orange 

County for annexation of enclaves. (Parcel ID No. 34-20-28-9550-00-232) (1.00 +/- 

acre) 

Page 2



Page 3 
 

 

6. ORDINANCE NO. 2446 - FIRST READING - Creation of a synthetic tax incremental 

financing district [STIF] within the Ocoee/Apopka Small Study Area.   

7. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-14 - To amend the capital improvement plan (CIP), reflecting 

improvements to Alonzo Williams Park. 

8. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-15 - To amend the capital improvement plan (CIP), reflecting 

improvements to Kit Land Nelson Park. 

QUASI-JUDICIAL: ORDINANCES AND SITE APPROVALS 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2442 - FIRST READING - CHANGE OF ZONING – Ponkan Road 

Properties, LLC, from “County” A-1 (ZIP) (Agriculture) to “City” AG-E (Agricultural 

Estates), for property located south of West Ponkan Road, west of Plymouth Sorrento 

Road. (Parcel ID #: 25-20-27-0000-00-003) 

2. ORDINANCE NO. 2443 - FIRST READING - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL 

SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – VSI Custom Homes, from “County” 

Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) to “City” Residential Low (0-5 du/ac), for property 

located south of East 6th Street, west of Orange Blossom Trail. (Parcel ID #s: 10-21-

28-8652-07-010 & 10-21-28-8652-08-060) 

3. ORDINANCE NO. 2444 -FIRST READING - CHANGE OF ZONING – VSI Custom 

Homes, from “County” R-2 (ZIP) to “City” R-2, for property located south of East 6th 

Street, west of Orange Blossom Trail. (Parcel ID #s: 10-21-28-8652-07-010 & 10-21-

28-8652-08-060) 

4. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Elro Properties, LLC – Owner/applicant Elro 

Properties, LLC; Engineer Ali Tehrani, P.E., property located at 511 Marshall Lake 

Road (north of Marshall Lake Road and west of Bradshaw Road). (Parcel ID No.: 09-

21-28-0000-00-011) 

5. MASS GRADING PLAN - Golden Gem Estates, Phase 1A – owner/applicant Cantero 

Holdings, LLC, c/o Jose Cantero; engineer is GL Summit, c/o Geoffrey Summit, P.E., 

for the property generally located south of Kelly Park Road, north of the Ponkan Road 

and east of Golden Gem Road. (Parcel ID Nos.: 24-20-27-0000-00-097, 24-20-27-

0000-00-98, 24-20-27-0000-00-100, 24-20-27-0000-00-101, 24-20-27-0000-00-102,  

24-20-27-0000-00-100-103, 24-20-27-0000-00-104, 24-20-27-0000-00-105) 

6. PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - Golden Gem Estates, Phase 1B – 

owner/applicant Cantero Holdings, LLC, c/o Jose Cantero; engineer is GL Summit, c/o 

Geoffrey Summit, P.E., for the property generally located south of Kelly Park Road, 

north of the Ponkan Road and east of Golden Gem Road. (Parcel ID Nos.: 24-20-27-

0000-00-097, 24-20-27-0000-00-98, 24-20-27-0000-00-100, 24-20-27-0000-00-101, 

24-20-27-0000-00-102,  24-20-27-0000-00-100-103, 24-20-27-0000-00-104, 24-20-27-

0000-00-105) 

Page 3



Page 4 
 

 

7. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Marden Ridge – owned by Emerson Point 

Associates, LLLP; Applicant MMI Development, Inc., c/o Michael E. Wright, Esq.; 

Engineer GAI Consultants, Inc., c/o Anthony Call, P.E., property located Between S.R. 

451 and Marden Road, south of Ocoee Apopka Road, and north of the Apopka 

Expressway. (Parcel ID No.: 17-21-28-0000-00-029) 

MAYOR'S REPORT 

OLD BUSINESS 

     1.   COUNCIL 

     2.   PUBLIC 

NEW BUSINESS 

     1.   COUNCIL 

     2.   PUBLIC 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

********************************************************************************************************** 
All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda.  Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal 
any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.   The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.    
 
In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any 
of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL  32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding. 
  

Page 4



Page 5 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. Approve the minutes of Administrative Bid Opening No. 2015-06 for the Purchase of 

Ductile Iron Pipe and Fittings for the RWS Extension Projects held on July 7, 2015, at 

10:15 a.m. 

  

Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. Approve the minutes from the regular City Council meeting held on July 15, 2015, at 

7:00 p.m. 

  

Page 8



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on July 15, 2015, at 7:00 p.m., in the City 

of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Bill Arrowsmith 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Sam Ruth 

City Attorney Cliff Shepard 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

PRESS PRESENT:    John Peery - The Apopka Chief 

    Steve Hudak – Orlando Sentinel 

    Teresa Sargeant – The Apopka Chief 

 

INVOCATION – Commissioner Ruth introduced Julie Altenbach, Church of the Messiah, who 

gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Kilsheimer said on July 14, 1942, the Apopka City 

Council unanimously adopted a Resolution authorizing city officials to execute a lease agreement 

between the City and the U.S. Government for the use of Edwards Field for the duration of World 

War II. Subsequently, high towers with search lights and barracks were placed on what is now 

Edwards Field and the complex was manned by the Search Light Battalion to scan the Central 

Florida skies for signs of enemy fighters. The facility was also used to house the pilots who were in 

training at the air field where Dream Lake Elementary School is now located. He asked everyone 

to remember the contributions of the Apopka community to the success of our country’s war 

efforts during World War II as he led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

PRESENTATION 

 

1.  Discussion by the City Council with staff, City's specially engaged Attorney and City's 

contract Lobbyist on how best to proceed with development of a downtown center. 

Richard Anderson, City Lobbyist, said the Council has before them a Request for Proposal 

(RFP). He stated they are not being asked to do anything but allow for going out for an RFP 

to entertain the development community in building the downtown center. He advised there 

were some specific guidelines, but they were basically asking the development community to 

tell us what they would like to build. Once the proposals are received, they will be reviewed, 

and then come back before the City Council for approval. He said they will begin with a 

development agreement and purchase agreement, should the Council desire to move forward. 

He stated they believe the timing is right now, as evident with the development being seen 

throughout Florida. He affirmed this will include reconfiguration and improvement of the 

441/436 interchange. 

Page 9



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 15, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 2 of 11  
 

Mayor Kilsheimer said this is the first step to gauge and entertain the interest of the 

development community. He stated this is a prime piece of property in one of the fastest 

growing communities in Central Florida. He agreed the time is right and he is prepared to 

move forward.  

Mr. Anderson said they consider the 48 acres to be the catalyst to start the downtown. 

Included in the packet is an additional outlined area of 108 acres they envision the downtown 

growing into. He stated the proposals are due August 24, 2015, they will be reviewed, and 

the next phase will be the developer’s agreement and purchase agreement.  

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to public input. 

Jennifer Dobran said she has noticed they are speaking about developers and inquired if there 

were any anticipated developers that have put their hat in for interest.  

Mayor Kilsheimer said with the research Mr. Anderson had done, he feels very confident we 

will receive adequate response.  

Barbara Zakszewski inquired how this proposal will dovetail with the Community Visioning.  

Mayor Kilsheimer said the first visioning kick off meeting was this past Monday and the 

Visioning Consultant is working on the City’s website. He stated he feels as the developer of 

this proposal comes forward they will be looking for that input.  

Phil Zakszewski expressed concern with the way the proposal is written. He suggested they 

need to revise the request for proposal so that it is not one developer.  

Thomas Callan, Esquire said generally in procurement there is a bid, a request for proposal 

and request for invitation to negotiate. He advised this was a request for proposal and this 

RFP allows people to submit proposals and provide their view on what they would do with 

the property and the proposed City Center project. At that point, the City Council can agree 

to accept the proposal, reject it, and they can re-advertise for new proposals. He declared you 

keep total discretion with this process. He affirmed the template used for this proposal was 

the City of St. Petersburg template that they have used for downtown redevelopment. He 

stated they felt this was a fairly comprehensive proposal process and structure, but gives the 

flexibility to the proposer to provide their own vision.  

Ray Shackelford asked what type of guarantee there would be to ensure that minority and 

women contractors would be involved in this process.  

Mr. Anderson advised there was nothing in this RFP, as they have not seen what the 

proposals are yet, but there are certainly things they can put in the developers agreement and 

the contract to purchase to address those issues. 

Page 10



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 15, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 3 of 11  
 

No others wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public input. 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith to 

approve issuing the Request for Proposal as outlined in the packet. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, 

Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

Mayor Kilsheimer recognized Orange County Commissioner Bryan Nelson.  

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

1. Approve the minutes from the regular City Council meeting held on June 17, 2015 at 7:00 

p.m. 

2. Approve the minutes from the special City Council meeting held on June 17, 2015 at 5:30 

p.m. 

3. Approve the minutes from the regular City Council meeting held on July 1, 2015 at 1:30 p.m. 

4. Award Broker/Agent of Record status to Arthur J. Gallagher & Co., in the amount of 

$65,000, for benefits, workers comp, liability, casualty, and property insurance. 

5. City Council approval of the dirt generated from the proposed reclaim water storage and 

aquifer recharge ponds as surplus property, and authorize the sale of the surplus dirt. 

6. Authorize the Rotary Club of Apopka to sell and serve alcoholic beverages at the 

Apopka Fair in Kit Land Nelson Park from March 10, 2016 through March 13, 2016. 

7. Authorize the Rotary Club of Apopka to sell and serve alcoholic beverages at the Fall 

Family Festival in Kit Land Nelson Park from November 12, 2015 through November 15, 

2015. 

8. Award the purchase of the ductal iron pipes, in the amount of $1,334,674.60, to Consolidated 

Pipe and Supply Co.; the purchase of the fitting material in the amount of $160,964.02 to 

Ferguson Waterworks; and authorize a contingency fund in the amount of $100,000.00. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth, to 

approve the eight items of the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously with 

Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting 

aye. 

 

REGULAR AGENDA 

 

1. Authorize the migration to Microsoft Operating Platform from Novell, in the amount of 

$198,500. 

 

Glenn Irby, City Administrator gave a brief overview stating that the City has operated on the 

Novell operating system platform, which was very popular in the 1980s and 1990s.  He 

stated some of the applications we use have a hard time connecting. He advised management 

would like to switch to the Microsoft platform. 

 

Page 11



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 15, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 4 of 11  
 

Chris Davis with Netxfolio said they were asked by staff to do an assessment of the IT 

environment. He affirmed one of the main items they found was that the process of 

maintaining these systems is very burdensome on the IT Department, as well as it being very 

difficult in finding staff who has the expertise to understand these platforms. He advised 

Microsoft is dominant when it comes to business applications and networks, whereas, Novell 

probably has less than 1% of the market share. He affirmed their main recommendation was 

to move to a Microsoft platform which will allow the City to operate more efficiently. He 

declared over the next three years there would be a cost savings with this conversion.  

 

In response to Commissioner Dean with regards to bids, Mr. Irby advised there was not a bid 

process as this company came in at less than our thresholds to require a formal bid. Once the 

system was evaluated, this was the end result and their recommendation. He stated because 

on a term and evaluated source, under our purchasing policy, we would not have to bid.  

 

In response to Commissioner Arrowsmith, Mr. Davis advised the estimate includes the cost 

of the software, the estimate and the consulting fees. He affirmed during their assessment 

they interviewed the entire IT Department.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to public input. 

 

Ray Shackelford asked, for understanding clarity, what the threshold is that does not require 

Council approval to which Mayor Kilsheimer stated was $25,000 and advised this is a State 

law. 

 

Barbara Zakszewski asked if the consultant felt everything currently in place will handle this 

new platform. She further inquired if this company was going to do the installation and 

training. 

 

Mr. Davis said the IT Department and the City has made some great investments when it 

comes to their desktop infrastructure with the implementation of virtual desktops and the 

current hardware will support this new platform. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to 

approve migrating to the Microsoft operating platform. Motion carried unanimously 

with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth 

voting aye. 

 

SPECIAL REPORTS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

1.   Authorize the selection of a CDBG Neighborhood Revitalization Project, allow staff to begin 

development of application, and approve $50,000 in matching funding. 

 

Mr. Irby said the City has engaged with a grant consultant, Fred Fox of Fox Enterprises, Inc., 

to apply for a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and he will be making a 

presentation. 

 

Fred Fox said the funds for the federal CDBG process come down in two ways: one is larger 
Page 12



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 15, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 5 of 11  
 

cities, such as Orlando, receive funds directly from HUD after preparing a plan on how they 

will spend the funds. For smaller cities and counties, such as Apopka, there is an amount that 

goes to the State and there is an option every three years to compete for these funds under the 

small cities program. The program is run by the Florida Department of Economic 

Opportunity and there will be an application process around March of next year. He reviewed 

the four categories and said the maximum amount the City can apply for is $750,000. His 

Power Point presentation is on file in the City Clerk’s office. He reviewed the income limits 

stating there are low income limits that must be met within the areas these funds will be 

expended. He reviewed and explained the points in the application process. The steps 

required in the CDBG application process are to: 1. Appoint a Citizens Advisory Task Force 

(CATF); 2. Advertise and hold a CATF meeting to discuss possible projects; 3. Advertise 

and hold a first Public Hearing and obtain public comment and direction by the Commission 

to move forward on determining a project; 4. Advertise and hold a Fair Housing Workshop; 

and 5. Advertise and hold a second Public Hearing, finalize application.  He declared this is 

the third step in the process, the first Public Hearing. The Council established the CATF and 

the CATF met and have made their recommendation to Council.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer reiterated this is requesting Council approval to authorize staff to begin 

development of this application. Several of the steps have been completed. The CATF met on 

June 30, 2015, Chaired by Rogers Beckett, and the Task Force has recommended 

improvements and focus on Alonzo Williams Park, with a second recommendation for street 

lights, paving, and sidewalks within specified boundaries. This is step three for public 

comment and direction by the Council to move forward on determining a project. He 

affirmed the City was eligible for up to $750,000 and the City will put up $50,000 if the grant 

is awarded.  

 

Mr. Fox advised the $50,000 was not matching funds, but rather for points for the grant. He 

stated the grant application was March of next year and the funds allocated in the FY 16/17 

budget. 

 

In response to an inquiry by Commissioner Arrowsmith regarding the City’s grant writer, 

Mayor Kilsheimer said this was a fast moving process and we needed to move forward 

expeditiously in a timely manner. He advised the City’s grant writer just came on board and 

was working on a number of other grants and projects.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to public input. 

 

Rod Love commended the city for advocating for the grant process and felt it was 

appropriate to move forward, but stated as it relates to the CDBG grant, it is not guaranteed. 

He suggested not looking to a grant to focus on what would ordinarily go into the budget. He 

said the Commissioners were elected at large to support the entire city.  

Page 13



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 15, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 6 of 11  
 

 

Isadora Dean spoke with regards to the areas of the grant stating most people have water and 

sewage, and stated a lot of the property is rental property. She asked if the grant is awarded if 

it could be used for blighted areas and inquired if it would be for city residents only.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean to 

allow staff to begin development of the application, approve $50,000 in funding, and 

authorize the selection of a CDBG neighborhood revitalization project. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, 

Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

 

LEGISLATIVE ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2437 - FIRST READING - ANNEXATION - Ellsworth D. Bottoms 

Trust, property located at 4011 Golden Gem Road. (Parcel ID No. 13-20-27-0000-00- 054) 

(10.25 +/- acres). The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2437 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AN D BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

OWNED BY ELLSWORTH D. BOTTOMS, TRUST, LOCATED AT 4011 

GOLDEN GEM ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 

CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2437 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

2. ORDINANCE NO. 2438 - FIRST READING - ANNEXATION - Norman E. Sawyer, 

property located at 119 East Nancy Lee Lane. (Parcel ID No. 33-20-28-0000-00-047) 

(0.41 +/- acre).  The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2438 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

Page 14



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 15, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 7 of 11  
 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

OWNED BY NORMAN E. SAWYER  LOCATED AT 119 EAST NANCY 

LEE LANE; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY; CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2438 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Commissioner Arrowsmith said he would abstain as the owner is a client of the bank he 

serves as Executive Vice President. Motion carried 4-0 with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye, and Commissioner Arrowsmith 

abstaining and filing a Form 8B. 

 

3. ORDINANCE NO. 2439 - FIRST READING - ANNEXATION - Technology Property, 

LLC, property located south of Keene Road and west of Clarcona Road. Parcel ID 

Nos.27-(21-28-6024-00-005 (3.40 ac); 27-21-28-6024-00-006 (2.37 ac); 27-21-28- 6024-

00-007 (3.61 ac) (Combined 9.38 +/- acres). The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2439 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX 

PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER 

DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, 

FLORIDA, OWNED BY TECHNOLOGY PROPERTIES, LLC, 

LOCATED AT SOUTH OF KEENE ROAD AND WEST OF CLARCONA 

ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY; CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2439 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

4. ORDINANCE NO. 2440 – FIRST READING – ANNEXATION – Crossroads Church of 

Orlando, Inc., property located at 320 East Welch Road; and authorize the Mayor or his 

designee to sign the Interlocal Agreement between the City of Apopka and Orange County 

for annexation of enclaves. (Parcel ID No. 34-20-28-9550-00-261) (1.85 +/- acres).  The 

City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

 

Page 15



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 15, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 8 of 11  
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2440 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.046 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

OWNED BY CROSSROADS CHURCH OF ORLANDO, INC.  LOCATED 

AT 320 EAST WELCH ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO 

THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY; CONFLICTS AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2440 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

5. ORDINANCE NO. 2441 - FIRST READING - ANNEXATION - Donald Lee Boughan, 

property located at 404 East Welch Road; and authorize the Mayor or his designee to sign 

the Interlocal Agreement between the City of Apopka and Orange County for 

annexation of enclaves. (Parcel ID No. 34-20-28-9550-00-232) (1.00 +/- acre). The City 

Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2441 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX 

PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.046 THE HEREINAFTER 

DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, 

FLORIDA, OWNED BY DONALD LEE BOUGHAN,  LOCATED AT 404 

EAST WELCH ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 

CLERK, SEVERABILITY; CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2441 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

6. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-13 - Amending Ordinance No. 2109 Chapter 82-38, addressing 

Industrial and Commercial Pretreatment Guidelines “Exhibit A”. The City Clerk read the title 

Page 16



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 15, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 9 of 11  
 

as follows: 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-13 

 

A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2109, ARTICLE II, 

DIVISION I, CHAPTER 82, COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL 

PRETREATMENT GUIDELINES, SECTION 38.03, GENERAL SEWER 

USE REQUIREMENTS, PARAGRAPH 2(B)(3), SPECIFIC 

PROHIBITIONS, INCREATING THE LOWER LIMIT OF THE 

ALLOWABLE pH RANGE AND PARAGRAPH 5(B), LOCAL 

POLLUTANT LIMITS, TABLE 3-1, INCREASING THE MAXIMUM 

UNIFORM CONCENTRATION FOR .pH. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Resolution No. 2015-13. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, 

and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

QUASI-JUDICIAL: ORDINANCES AND SITE APPROVALS – None. 

 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND BIDS 

1. Administrative Report – Glenn Irby, City Administrator said the report was in the packet and 

he would answer any questions. 

 

MAYOR'S REPORT –  Mayor Kilsheimer reported on his plan for the VFW/Community 

Center going forward, stating the City is preparing to hire a new Recreation Director. One of the 

tasks for the new Recreation Director will be to keep a master calendar for all recreational 

facilities in the City of Apopka. He advised he would have this person meet with the VFW, the 

new community theater troupe, and work out the dates, including the dates the VFW already has 

the facility booked.  He stated there have not been any changes to date and more processes and 

procedures will be put in place once this position is on board. 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. COUNCIL – There was no old business from the Council.  

 

2. PUBLIC 

Ortenzio “Artie” Vecchio said the Orlando Sentinel has not been told the right information. 

He stated the Mayor has stated he is giving the same deal to the AHA Players as was given 

to the veterans and he declared that was not true. He said the AHA Players was not doing 

anything for the community. He said the VFW works with ten public schools and two 

private schools, as well as the Special Olympics.  He reviewed and turned in a document 

regarding money raised to purchase improvements of the VFW/Community Center.  

 

Ray Shackelford inquired when the public could obtain the finance report for the recent 

festival held, to which Mayor Kilsheimer advised him to get with Mr. Irby to obtain that 

information. He also inquired about the disbursement report being approved after 

Page 17



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 15, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 10 of 11  
 

expenditures.  He also called upon the City Council when preparing the budget to consider 

$150,000 for the 2016 summer youth jobs program, as well as considering $2,000,000 for 

economic development in the south side of town.  

 

Mr. Irby advised any new expenditure not in the current budget that is over a certain 

threshold comes before the Council for approval. He explained the disbursements were 

approved in the last fiscal year budget.  He advised the disbursements seen each month have 

been an ongoing process of expenditures that have already been approved.  

 

Barbara Zakszewski said that gentlemen’s agreements and handshakes were good between 

friends and family members, but agreements for city owned property needs to be in writing 

to avoid misunderstandings and hard feelings.  

 

Rod Love said he supports the City in moving forward as it relates to city owned facilities 

and reducing these items to writing and commended the City in moving forward with a 

process. He stated on another note, he was elated regarding the position for Parks and 

Recreation, but felt a position such as this should have been advertised a longer period of 

time. He spoke regarding the purchasing thresholds and expressed concern regarding 

exceptions to the rule, as with the Microsoft need, stating those exceptions need to be 

defined. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised the difference was that the state allows up to $25,000 can be 

spent without Council approval. Anything over that amount requires Council approval, 

which was done early in the meeting.  

 

Artie Vecchio thanked those who spoke for the kind words and said they have been trying 

for almost a year and a half to get a contract and they have not gotten one yet. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

1. COUNCIL 

 

Commissioner Dean said the City and Downtown parking lot was in poor repair with 

potholes and requested Mr. Irby contact the Merchants and place money in the budget to 

resurface that parking lot.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer affirmed they have been working on this matter for several months. He 

stated that parking lot is owned by the Downtown Merchants Association that consists of 15 

shareholders with the City owning a number of the shares. The City Attorney has been 

requested to research this matter and asked him to expand on this. 

 

City Attorney Shepard said this was a multifaceted issue which is problematic. He stated this 

was not necessarily the City’s responsibility. It would seem that if there is a partnership with 

merchants wherein they use a certain amount of parking, but that is not how it has been run. 

He declared it is a challenge.  

 

Commissioner Ruth said Ms. Waters was here and she was complaining about 6
th

 Street 

Page 18



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on July 15, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

Page 11 of 11  
 

between McGee and 441 to which Mayor Kilsheimer said the revitalization of 6
th

 Street will 

be a major portion of the downtown project.  

 

In response to Commissioner Ruth speaking regarding the two football leagues in the city 

needing practice areas, Mayor Kilsheimer requested he meet with Mr. Irby regarding this 

matter. 

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith suggested with regards to the accounts payable, with large checks 

being written, even if budgeted, set a threshold to let Council know what these were in 

reference to.  

 

2. PUBLIC 

 

Rod Love said after he spoke and listened to other members of the audience speak, it would 

be good if they could feel there was some reciprocity taking place that they are being heard.  

 

Marvin Guttman recognized there was a Boy Scout Troop attending the meeting and Mayor 

Kilsheimer thanked him and acknowledged them asking the leadership to come forward and 

introduce the Troop. 

 

Matthew Kennedy said he was with Boy Scout Troop 10 in Apopka and they hold their 

meetings at Camp Thunderbird. They are present working on their Citizenship in the 

Community and Communications Badge.  

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further discussion, the meeting adjourned at 8:55 p.m. 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

ATTEST:       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

 

__________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

Page 19



Page 20 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Capital Facility Fees Payment 

Agreement for Cooper Palms Indoor Sports Complex. 

  

Page 20



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA     MEETING OF: August 5, 2015 

       PUBLIC HEARING     FROM: Community Development 

      SPECIAL REPORTS                                                       EXHIBITS:  Agreement   

      OTHER:                                              Vicinity Map 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

SUBJECT: COOPER PALMS INDOOR SPORTS COMPLEX - CAPITAL FACILITY 

FEES PAYMENT AGREEMENT 

 

Request: AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE THE 

CAPITAL FACILITY FEES PAYMENT AGREEMENT FOR COOPER 

PALMS INDOOR SPORTS COMPLEX 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

  

The City allowed some of the payments of impact fees to be deferred until the issuance of the 

Certificate of Occupancy.  Due to the uniqueness of the site, the Transportation Impact does not 

fit into our standard list.  Therefore, the road impact fees are being paid at a lesser category until 

an alternative study can be conducted, two years after the Certificate of Occupancy. 
 

 

 

 

________________________________________________________________ 

FUNDING SOURCE: 
      

Not applicable  
 

________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Mayor or his designee to execute the Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement for 

Cooper Palms Indoor Sports Complex. 
________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer   Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)   HR Director    City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby   IT Director    Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director  Police Chief 

  

Page 21



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 5, 2015 

COOPER PALMS INDOOR SPORTS COMPLEX - CAPITAL FACILITY FEES PAYMENT AGREEMENT 

PAGE 2 

 

Application:  Cooper Palms Sports Complex 

Owner/Applicant: Property Industrial Enterprises, Inc., c/o Michael Cooper 
Parcel ID Nos.:   09-21-28-0868-01-050 & 09-21-28-0868-01-060 

Total Acres:  7.35 +/- 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

Subject Property 

Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2437 - SECOND READING & ADOPTION - ANNEXATION - 

Ellsworth D. Bottoms Trust, property located at 4011 Golden Gem Road. (Parcel ID 

No. 13-20-27-0000-00-054) (10.25 +/- acres)  

  

Page 36



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
                                           ________                                     __ 

       CONSENT AGENDA     MEETING OF: August 5, 2015 
  X   PUBLIC HEARING     FROM:   Community Development 
       SPECIAL REPORTS     EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” Summary of Cycle 2a 
  X   OTHER: Annexation       Ordinance Nos. 2437 
          Vicinity Map 
                                           ________                                     __ 
SUBJECT:   2015 ANNEXATION - CYCLE NO. 2a 
 
Request:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NUMBER: 2437 – 

ELLSWORTH D. BOTTOMS TRUST. 
                                           ________                                     __ 
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNERS:   ELLSWORTH D. BOTTOMS TRUST 
 
LOCATIONS:   4011 Golden Gem Road – 13-20-27-0000-00-054  
     
LAND USE:   Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
EXISTING USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
TRACT SIZE:   10.25 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS 
The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future Land Use and Zoning designations.  
The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will occur at a later date, and through 
additional action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  
The City provided notification to the County on June 26, 2015. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
July 3, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
July 10, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
July 24, 2015 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
July 15, 2015 (7:00 pm) - City Council 1

st
 Reading 

August 5, 2015 (1:30 pm) - City Council 2
nd

 Reading and Adoption 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                  ____    

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief   

Page 37



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 5, 2015 
2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE #2A 
PAGE 2 

 

 

                                           ________                                     __ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2015 Annexation Cycle #2a. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on July 15, 2015, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2437 and held it over for 
Second Reading and Adoption on August 5, 2015. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2437. 
 

Page 38



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE #2A 

TOTAL ACRES: 20.04   +/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO.: 2437-2439 

Adopted this 5th day of August, 2015 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

 
 

2437 

 
 

1 Ellsworth D. Bottoms, Trust 4011 Golden Gem Road 13-20-27-0000-00-054 10.25 
Foliage 
Nursery 

Rural  
Max. 1du/10 acres 

 

 
 

2438 

 
 

2 Norman E. Sawyer 119 East Nancy Lee Lane 33-20-28-0000-00-047 0.41 Vacant Land 
Rural 

Max. 1du/10 acres 
 

 
2439 

 
3 

Technology Property, LLC 
Clarcona Road 
Clarcona Road 

476 Jellystone Avenue 

27-21-28-6024-00-005 
27-21-28-6024-00-006 
27-21-28-6024-00-007 

 
3.40 
2.37 
3.61 
9.38 

Vacant Land 
Rural Settlement 
Max. 1du/5 acres 

 

    TOTAL ACRES    20.04   

        

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2015 Cycle 2A Spreadsheet.wpd 

Page 39



ORDINANCE NO. 2437 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 

TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO 

FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS 

SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY 

ELLSWORTH D. BOTTOMS, TRUST, LOCATED AT 4011 GOLDEN GEM 

ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, Ellsworth D. Bottoms, Trust owners thereof, have 

petitioned the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex 

the properties located at 4011 Golden Gem Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida 

provide that a municipal corporation may annex property into its 

corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the owners, by passing 

and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is 

desirous of annexing and redefining the boundaries of the 

municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City 

of Apopka, Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being 

situated in Orange County, Florida, totaling 10.25 +/- acres, and 

graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A”, is hereby annexed 

into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation 

provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable 

laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

 

S1/2 OF S1/2 OF SW1/4 OF SW1/4 SEC 13-20-27 (LESS W 30 FT 

FOR RD R/W) 

Parcel I.D.: 13-20-27-0000-00-054  

Contains: 10.25 +/- Acres 

 

     SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City 

of Apopka, Florida, are hereby redefined to include said land herein 

described and annexed. 

 

 SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use 

classification and zoning category of these annexed lands in 

accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

Page 40



 

 
ORDINANCE NO.: 2417 

PAGE 2  

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future 

inhabitants of the land herein described shall be liable for all debts 

and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

 

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or 

subsection of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or 

unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section 

or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage 

and adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file 

this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange 

County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the 

Department of State of the State of Florida.  
 

 

           Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: July 3, 2015 

        July 10, 2015 

        July 24, 2015 
 

 

 

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: July 15, 2015 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     August 5, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 41



 

 

 

ANNEXATION 

ELLSWORTH D. BOTTOMS TRUST 

4011 GOLDEN GEM ROAD  

             

     

         Exhibit “A”                  

         Ord. # 2437 

         Parcel ID: 13-20-27-0000-00-054  

    

 Total Acres: 10.25 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

Page 42



 

Page 43



Page 44 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. ORDINANCE NO. 2438 - SECOND READING & ADOPTION - ANNEXATION - 

Norman E. Sawyer, property located at 119 East Nancy Lee Lane. (Parcel ID No. 33-

20-28-0000-00-047) (0.41 +/- acre)  

  

Page 44



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
                                           ________                                     __ 

       CONSENT AGENDA     MEETING OF: August 5, 2015 
  X   PUBLIC HEARING     FROM:   Community Development 
       SPECIAL REPORTS     EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” Summary of Cycle 2a 
  X   OTHER: Annexation       Ordinance Nos. 2438 
          Vicinity Map 
                                           ________                                     __ 
SUBJECT:   2015 ANNEXATION - CYCLE NO. 2a 
 
Request:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NUMBER: 2438 – 

NORMAN E. SAWYER. 
                                           ________                                     __ 
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNERS:   NORMAN E. SAWYER 
 
LOCATIONS:   119 E. Nancy Lee Lane – 33-20-28-0000-00-047  
     
LAND USE:   Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
EXISTING USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
TRACT SIZE:   0.41 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS 
The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future Land Use and Zoning designations.  
The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will occur at a later date, and through 
additional action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  
The City provided notification to the County on June 26, 2015. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
July 3, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
July 10, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
July 24, 2015 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
July 15, 2015 (7:00 pm) - City Council 1

st
 Reading 

August 5, 2015 (1:30 pm) - City Council 2
nd

 Reading and Adoption 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                  ____    

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief  
 Page 45



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 5, 2015 
2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE #2a 
PAGE 2 

 

 

 
                                           ________                                     __ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2015 Annexation Cycle #2a. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on July 15, 2015, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2438 and held it over for 
Second Reading and Adoption on August 5, 2015. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2438. 
  

Page 46



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE #2A 

TOTAL ACRES: 20.04   +/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO.: 2437-2439 

Adopted this 5th day of August, 2015 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

 
 

2437 

 
 

1 Ellsworth D. Bottoms, Trust 4011 Golden Gem Road 13-20-27-0000-00-054 10.25 
Foliage 
Nursery 

Rural  
Max. 1du/10 acres 

 

 
 

2438 

 
 

2 Norman E. Sawyer 119 East Nancy Lee Lane 33-20-28-0000-00-047 0.41 Vacant Land 
Rural 

Max. 1du/10 acres 
 

 
2439 

 
3 

Technology Property, LLC 
Clarcona Road 
Clarcona Road 

476 Jellystone Avenue 

27-21-28-6024-00-005 
27-21-28-6024-00-006 
27-21-28-6024-00-007 

 
3.40 
2.37 
3.61 
9.38 

Vacant Land 
Rural Settlement 
Max. 1du/5 acres 

 

    TOTAL ACRES    20.04   

        

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2015 Cycle 2A Spreadsheet.wpd 

Page 47



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2438 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 

TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO 

FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS 

SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY 

NORMAN E. SAWYER LOCATED AT 119 EAST NANCY LEE LANE; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, Norman E. Sawyer, owners thereof, have petitioned the 

City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the property 

located at 119 East Nancy Lee Lane; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida 

provide that a municipal corporation may annex property into its 

corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the owners, by passing 

and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is 

desirous of annexing and redefining the boundaries of the 

municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City 

of Apopka, Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being 

situated in Orange County, Florida, totaling 0.41 +/- acres, and 

graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A", is hereby annexed 

into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation 

provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable 

laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

BEG 804 FT N & 525 FT W OF SE COR OF SEC 33-20-28 TH RUN 

N 234.4 FT WLY 75 FT S 235.75 FT E 75 FT TO POB  

Parcel ID: 33-20-28-0000-00-047 Containing: 0.41 +/- Acres 

 

SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City 

of Apopka, Florida, are hereby redefined to include said land herein 

described and annexed.

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use 

classification and zoning category of these annexed lands in 

accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 

Page 48



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2438 

PAGE 2  

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future 

inhabitants of the land herein described shall be liable for all debts 

and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

  

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or 

subsection of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or 

unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section 

or subsection or part of this ordinance.  

 

 SECTION VI: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage 

and adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file 

this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange 

County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the 

Department of State of the State of Florida.  
 

 

       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: July 3, 2015 

        July 10, 2015 

        July 24, 2015 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: July 15, 2015 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     August 5, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 49



 

ANNEXATION 

NORMAN E. SAWYER 

119 EAST NANCY LEE LANE   

             

     

               Exhibit “A”                  

           Ord. # 2438 

         Parcel ID: 33-20-28-0000-00-047                     

 Total Acres: 0.41 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

Page 50



 

Page 51



Page 52 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. ORDINANCE NO. 2439 - SECOND READING & ADOPTION - ANNEXATION - 

Technology Property, LLC, property located south of Keene Road and west of 

Clarcona Road. Parcel ID Nos.27-(21-28-6024-00-005 (3.40 ac); 27-21-28-6024-00-

006 (2.37 ac); 27-21-28-6024-00-007 (3.61 ac) (Combined 9.38 +/- acres)   

  

Page 52



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
                                           ________                                     __ 

       CONSENT AGENDA     MEETING OF: August 5, 2015 
  X   PUBLIC HEARING     FROM:   Community Development 
       SPECIAL REPORTS     EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” Summary of Cycle 2a 
  X   OTHER: Annexation       Ordinance Nos. 2439 
          Vicinity Map 
                                           ________                                     __ 
SUBJECT:   2015 ANNEXATION - CYCLE NO. 2a 
 
Request:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NUMBER: 2439 –                             

TECHNOLOGY PROPERTIES, LLC. 
                                           ________                                     __ 
SUMMARY: 
 
OWNERS:   TECHNOLOGY PROPERTIES, LLC 
 
LOCATIONS:   Clarcona Road - 27-20-28-0000-00-005 - (3.40 +/- Acres)  
    Clarcona Road - 27-20-28-0000-00-006 – (2.37 +/- Acres) 
           476 Jellystone Avenue - 27-21-28-6024-00-007 – (3.61 +/- Acres) 
 
LAND USE:   Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
EXISTING USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
TRACT SIZE:   9.38 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS 
The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future Land Use and Zoning designations.  
The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will occur at a later date, and through 
additional action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  
The City provided notification to the County on June 26, 2015. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
July 3, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
July 10, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
July 24, 2015 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
July 15, 2015 (7:00 pm) - City Council 1

st
 Reading 

August 5, 2015 (1:30 pm) - City Council 2
nd

 Reading and Adoption 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                  ____    

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief   

Page 53



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 5, 2015 
2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE #2A 
PAGE 2 

 

 

 
                                           ________                                     __ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
  
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2015 Annexation Cycle #2a. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on July 15, 2015, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2439 and held it over for 
Second Reading and Adoption on August 5, 2015. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2439. 
 

Page 54



1 

 

 
EXHIBIT “A” 

CITY OF APOPKA 
2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE #2A 

TOTAL ACRES: 20.04   +/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO.: 2437-2439 

Adopted this 5th day of August, 2015 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

 
 

2437 

 
 

1 Ellsworth D. Bottoms, Trust 4011 Golden Gem Road 13-20-27-0000-00-054 10.25 
Foliage 
Nursery 

Rural  
Max. 1du/10 acres 

 

 
 

2438 

 
 

2 Norman E. Sawyer 119 East Nancy Lee Lane 33-20-28-0000-00-047 0.41 Vacant Land 
Rural 

Max. 1du/10 acres 
 

 
2439 

 
3 

Technology Property, LLC 
Clarcona Road 
Clarcona Road 

476 Jellystone Avenue 

27-21-28-6024-00-005 
27-21-28-6024-00-006 
27-21-28-6024-00-007 

 
3.40 
2.37 
3.61 
9.38 

Vacant Land 
Rural Settlement 
Max. 1du/5 acres 

 

    TOTAL ACRES    20.04   

        

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2015 Cycle 2A Spreadsheet.wpd 

Page 55



ORDINANCE NO. 2439 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 

TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO 

FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS 

SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY 

TECHNOLOGY PROPOERTIES, LLC, LOCATED AT SOUTH OF KEENE ROAD 

AND WEST OF CLARCONA ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, Technology Properties, LLC, owners thereof, have 

petitioned the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex 

the property located at south of Keene Road and west of Clarcona Road; 

and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida 

provide that a municipal corporation may annex property into its 

corporate limits upon voluntary petition of the owners, by passing 

and adopting a non-emergency ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is 

desirous of annexing and redefining the boundaries of the 

municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City 

of Apopka, Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described properties, being 

situated in Orange County, Florida, totaling 9.38 +/- acres, and 

graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A", is hereby annexed 

into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to the voluntary annexation 

provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida Statutes, and other applicable 

laws: 

 

Legal Descriptions: 

 

OAK HEIGHTS REPLAT S/8 COMM NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 OF SEC 

27-21-28 TH RUN S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TH RUN S00-17-40W 

475.57 FT TO POB TH CONT S00-17-40W 25 FT TH S89-58-35W 25 

FT TH RUN S00-17-40W 13.02 FT TO CURVE CONCAVE NELY RAD 105 

FT DELTA 18-11-44 SELY FOR 33.34 FT TO REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE 

SWLY RAD OF 95 FT DELTA 08-17-04 SELY FOR 13.74 FT TO REVERSE 

CURVE CONCAVE NELY RAD 25 FT DELTA 13-22-59 SELY FOR 5.84 

FT TH S01-29-51W 215.22 FT TH N89-58-35E 416.69 FT TH 

N69-01-28E 10 FT TH N20-58-32W 18.89 FT TH N69-01-28 E 135 

FT TH N20-58-32W 252.08 FT TH S89-58-35W 434.24 FT TO POB 

(LESS THE W 3 FT LYING WITHIN THE FOLLOWING DESC: COMM AT  

Page 56



ORDINANCE NO. 2439 

PAGE 2  

 

NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 PF SEC TH S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TO 

W LINE OF E1/2 OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 AND W LINE OF OAK HGTS REP 

S/8 TH S00-17-40W 475.58 FT ALONG SAID LINE TO S LINE OF 

N120 FT OF S1009.3 FT OF OAK HGTS REP TH N89-58-35E 434.24 

FT TO WLY R/W LINE OF SR 435 (CLARCONA RD) TH S20-58-33E 

729.76 FT TO NE COR OF TR T-10 YOGI BEAR'S JELLYSTONE PARK 

CAMP RESORT (APOPKA) TH N88-30-09W 722.91 FT ALONG SAID TR 

T-10 AND N LINE OF TR C TO POB TH N88-30-09W 3 FT TO NW COR 

OF TR C TH N01-29-51E 572.67 FT TH S88-30-09E 3 FT TH 

S01-29-51W 572.67 FT TO POB PER 10831/5459) Parcel I.D.: 

27-20-28-0000-00-005  Containing: 3.40 +/- Acres and; 

 

OAK HEIGHTS REPLAT S/8 COMM NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 OF SEC 

27-21-28 TH RUN S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TH RUN S00-17-40W 

500.57 FT TH RUN S89-58-35W 25 FT TH S00-17-40W 13.02 FT 

TO CURVE CONCAVE NELY RAD 105 FT DELTA 18-11-44 SELY FOR 

33.34 FT TO REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE SWLY RAD 95 FT DELTA 

08-17-04 SELY FOR 13.74 FT TO REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE NELY 

RAD 25 FT DELTA 13-22-59 SELY FOR 5.84 FT TH S01-29-51W 

215.22 FT TO POB TH CONT S01-29-51W 167.76 FT TH N89-58-35E 

492.56 FT TH N30-44-24E 8.03 FT TH N69-01-28E 131.97 FT TH 

N20-58-32W 196.07 FT TH S69-01-28W 135 FT TH S20-58-32E 

18.89 FT TH S69-01-28W 10 FT TH S89-58-35W 416.69 FT TO POB 

(LESS THE W 3 FT LYING WITHIN THE FOLLOWING DESC: COMM AT 

NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 PF SEC TH S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TO 

W LINE OF E1/2 OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 AND W LINE OF OAK HGTS REP 

S/8 TH S00-17-40W 475.58 FT ALONG SAID LINE TO S LINE OF 

N120 FT OF S1009.3 FT OF OAK HGTS REP TH N89-58-35E 434.24 

FT TO WLY R/W LINE OF SR 435 (CLARCONA RD) TH S20-58-33E 

729.76 FT TO NE COR OF TR T-10 YOGI BEAR'S JELLYSTONE PARK 

CAMP RESORT (APOPKA) TH N88-30-09W 722.91 FT ALONG SAID TR 

T-10 AND N LINE OF TR C TO POB TH N88-30-09W 3 FT TO NW COR 

OF TR C TH N01-29-51E 572.67 FT TH S88-30-09E 3 FT TH 

S01-29-51W 572.67 FT TO POB PER 10831/5459)Parcel I.D.: 

27-20-28-0000-00-006 Containing: 2.37 +/- Acres and; 

 

OAK HEIGHTS REPLAT S/8 COMM NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 OF SEC 

27-21-28 TH RUN S89-49-06E 645.67 FT TH S00-17-40W 500.57 

FT TH S89-58-35W 25 FT TH S00-17-40W 13.02 FT TO CURVE 

CONCAVE NELY RAD 105 FT DELTA 18-11-44 SELY FOR 33.34 FT 

TO REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE SWLY RAD 95FT DELTA 08-17-04 SELY 

FOR 13.74 FT TO REVERSE CURVE CONCAVE NELY RAD 25 FT DELTA 

13-22-59 SELY FOR 5.84 FT TH S01-29-51W 382.89 FT TO POB 

TH CONT S01-29-51W 189.70 FT TH RUN S88-30-09E 318.32 FT 

TO CURVE CONCAVE SELY RAD 100 FT CHORD N81-23-00E NELY FOR 

35.31 FT TH S01-29-51E 16.17 FT M/L TH S88-30-09E 373 FT 

TH  N20-58-32W  281.60  FT  TH S69-01-28W  131.97 FT TH  

Page 57



ORDINANCE NO. 2439 

PAGE 3  

 

S30-44-24W 8.03 FT TH S89-58-35W 492.56 FT TO POB & COMM 

AT SE CORNER OF OAK HGTS REP S/8 TH RUN N89-59-04E 129.21 

FT TO W R/W OF APOPKA VINELAND ROAD TH N20-58-32W 107.53 

FT TO POB SAID PT BEING SE CORNER OF TR T-10 OF YOGI BEARS 

JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP-RESORT 3347/2482; CONT N20-58-32W 115 

FT TO POB TH S58-19-30W 50.88 FT TH S46-42-32W 45 FT TH 

N88-17-28W 120 FT TH N80-52-21W 115 FT TH N88-30-09W 64.49 

FT TH N01-30-04E 43.83 FT TH S88-30-20E 373 FT TO POB PER 

10831/5459 (LESS THE W 3 FT LYING WITHIN THE FOLLOWING DESC: 

COMM AT NW COR OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 PF SEC TH S89-49-06E 645.67 

FT TO W LINE OF E1/2 OF NE1/4 OF NW1/4 AND W LINE OF OAK 

HGTS REP S/8 TH S00-17-40W 475.58 FT ALONG SAID LINE TO S 

LINE OF N120 FT OF S1009.3 FT OF OAK HGTS REP TH N89-58-35E 

434.24 FT TO WLY R/W LINE OF SR 435 (CLARCONA RD) TH 

S20-58-33E 729.76 FT TO NE COR OF TR T-10 YOGI BEAR'S 

JELLYSTONE PARK CAMP RESORT (APOPKA) TH N88-30-09W 722.91 

FT ALONG SAID TR T-10 AND N LINE OF TR C TO POB TH N88-30-09W 

3 FT TO NW COR OF TR C TH N01-29-51E 572.67 FT TH S88-30-09E 

3 FT TH S01-29-51W 572.67 FT TO POB PER 10831/5459) 

Containing: 3.61 +/- Acres 

 

Total combined acres: 9.38 acres +/- 

 

 SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City 

of Apopka, Florida, are hereby redefined to include said land herein 

described and annexed.

 

SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use 

classification and zoning category of these annexed lands in 

accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future 

inhabitants of the land herein described shall be liable for all debts 

and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

  

SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or 

subsection of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or 

unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section 

or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 

 

Page 58



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2439 

PAGE 4  

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage 

and adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file 

this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange 

County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the 

Department of State of the State of Florida.  
 

 

         Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: July 3, 2015 

        July 10, 2015 

        July 24, 2015 
 

 

 

 

 
READ FIRST TIME: July 15, 2015 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     August 5, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 59



 

 

 

ANNEXATION 

TECHNOLOGY PROPERTY, LLC 

CLARCONA ROAD   

             

        Exhibit “A”                  

          Ord. # 2439 

        Parcel IDs: 27-20-28-0000-00-005                   

          27-20-28-0000-00-006  

          27-20-28-0000-00-007  

Total Acres: 9.38 +/-      

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

Page 60



 

Page 61



Page 62 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. ORDINANCE NO. 2440 - SECOND READING & ADOPTION - ANNEXATION - 

Crossroads Church of Orlando, Inc., property located at 320 East Welch Road; and 

authorize the Mayor or his designee to sign the Interlocal Agreement between the City 

of Apopka and Orange County for annexation of enclaves. (Parcel ID No. 34-20-28-

9550-00-261) (1.85 +/- acres)   

  

Page 62



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
                                           ________                                     __ 

       CONSENT AGENDA     MEETING OF: August 5, 2015 

  X   PUBLIC HEARING     FROM:   Community Development 

       SPECIAL REPORTS     EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” Summary of Cycle 2b 

  X   OTHER: Annexations       Ordinance No. 2440 w/map 

          Exhibit “B” Interlocal Agreement  
                                           ________                                     __ 

SUBJECT:   2015 ANNEXATION - CYCLE NO. 2b 

 

Request:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2440 – 

CROSSROADS CHURCH OF ORLANDO, INC.; AND AUTHORIZE THE 

MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO SIGN THE INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF APOPKA AND ORANGE 

COUNTY FOR ANNEXATION OF ENCLAVES. 
                                           ________                                     __ 

SUMMARY: 

 

OWNER:   CROSSROADS CHURCH OF ORLANDO, INC. 

 

LOCATION:   320 West Welch Road 

  

LAND USE:   Refer to Exhibit “A”  

 

EXISTING USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 

  

TRACT SIZE:   1.85 +/- acres  

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

The two unincorporated enclaves included in the 2015-2b cycle are subject to an annexation agreement between 

the City and Orange County Board of County Commissioners.  Annexation of the Guarda & Son property 

(Ordinance No.2398) on December 17, 2014 created two unincorporated enclave parcels.  Prior to any hearings 

for the Guarda & Son property, Orange County planning staff raised concerns and potential objections to 

annexation of the Guarda property because it would create two unincorporated enclaves. To alleviate the 

County’s concerns, the City and County planning staffs mutually agreed to a process an Annexation Agreement 

that would eliminate these two enclaves and bring them into the City’s jurisdiction.  The City Council agenda 

package for the Guarda property annexation on December 17, 2014 read as follows:   

 
“The City Council, at its meeting on December 3, 2014, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 
2398 and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 17, 2014; and authorized staff to 
proceed with an Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves.”  
 

                                                                                  ____    

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief   

Page 63



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 5, 2015 
2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE #2B – ORDINANCE NO. 2440 
PAGE 2 

 
A proposed Annexation Agreement accompanies the proposed ordinance for each of the two parcels.  City 
Council’s action to approve this annexation ordinance must also include acceptance of the Annexation 
Agreement. 

 

The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future Land Use and Zoning designations.  

The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will occur at a later date, and through 

additional action by the City Council. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: 

The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  

The City provided notification to the County on June 26, 2015. 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

July 3, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 

July 10, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 

July 24, 2015 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

July 15, 2015 (7:00 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 

August 5, 2015 (1:30 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 

 
                                           ________                                     __ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2015 Annexation Cycle #2b. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on July 15, 2015, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2440; and 

authorized the Mayor, or his designee, to sign the Interlocal Agreement between the City of Apopka and Orange 

County for the annexation of enclaves; and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on August 5, 2015. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2440. 

Page 64



EXHIBIT “A” 
CITY OF APOPKA 

2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 2B 
TOTAL ACRES:  2.85 +/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE No.s.: 2440 & 2441 

  Adopted this 5th day of August, 2015 
 

Page 1 

 
 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2440 1 Crossroads Church of Orlando, Inc. 320 East Welch Road 34-20-28-9550-00-261 1.85 Church 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

2441 2 Donald Lee Boughan 404 East Welch Road 34-20-28-9550-00-232 1.00 
SFR 

 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

    TOTAL ACRES 2.85   

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2015\Cycle 2 

Page 65



ORDINANCE NO. 2440 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.046 THE HEREINAFEETER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

OWNED BY CROSSROADS CHURCH OF ORLANDO, INC., LOCATED AT 

320 EAST WELCH ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka, Florida and Orange County, 

Florida are entering into an interlocal agreement for annexation 

of enclaves located within unincorporated Orange County into the 

corporate limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to, and 

as authorized by, Florida Statutes 171.046; and  
 

 WHEREAS, there exists a 1.85 acre enclave of unincorporated 

Orange County located at 320 East Welch Road and  
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is 

desirous of annexing and redefining the boundaries of the 

municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.046, and 

 

 WHEREAS, following the approval of Orange County Board of 

County Commission.  
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the 

City of Apopka, Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I: That the following described property, being 

situated in Orange County, Florida, totaling 1.85 +/- acres, and 

graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A", is hereby 

annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to provisions 

of Florida Statutes 171.046, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Description: 

 

THE EAST 185 FEET OF THE NORTH 435.53 FEET OF LOT 26, 

APOPKA RANCHES, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 

RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK Z, PAGE 134, PUBLIC RECORDS OF 

ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  

PARCEL I.D.: 34-20-28-9550-00-261 

CONTAINS:  1.85 +/- ACRES 
 

     SECTION II: That the corporate territorial limits of the 

City of Apopka, Florida, are hereby redefined to include said 

land herein described and annexed. 

 

Page 66



ORDINANCE NO. 2440 

PAGE 2  

 

 SECTION III: That the City Council will designate the land 

use classification and zoning category of these annexed lands in 

accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV:  That the land herein described and future 

inhabitants of the land herein described shall be liable for all 

debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, 

laws, ordinances and regulations of the City. 

 

 SECTION V: That if any section or portion of a section 

or subsection of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, 

or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair 

the validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of 

a section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII:  That this ordinance shall take effect upon 

passage and adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby 

directed to file this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit 

Court in and for Orange County, Florida; the Orange County 

Property Appraiser; and the Department of State of the State of 

Florida.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: July 03, 2015 

        July 10, 2015 

        July 24, 2015 
 

 

 

 
FIRST READING: July 15, 2015 
 
SECOND READING 
AND ADOPTION:     August 5, 2015 
 
 
 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
 

Page 67



 

ANNEXATION 

CROSSROADS CHURCH OF ORLANDO, INC. 

320 EAST WELCH ROAD 

 
          Exhibit “A”                  

            Ord. # 2440 

          Parcel IDs:  34-20-28-

9550-00-261 

 

 Total Acres: 1.85 +/-      

 

 

 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

Page 68



EXHIBIT “B” 
 
 
 
 
THIS INSTRUMENT PREPARED BY 
AND SHOULD BE RETURNED TO: 
City of Apopka 
Community Development Department 
David Moon, Planning Manager 
P. O. Box 1229, Apopka, FL  32704-1229 

 
Tax Parcel Identification Number: 
34-20-28-9550-00-261 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR ANNEXATION OF ENCLAVES 

Between 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 

And 

ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
 THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT, dated this ______ day of _________________, 20____, 
(hereinafter referred to as “Agreement”) between the CITY OF APOPKA, a municipal 
corporation in the State of Florida whose mailing address is P. O. Box 1229, Apopka, Florida 
32704-1229 (hereinafter referred to as “City”), and ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, a charter 
county and political subdivision of the State of Florida whose mailing address is 201 South 
Rosaline Avenue, Orlando, Florida  32801 (hereinafter referred to as “County”), is entered into 
for the purpose of annexing certain enclaves located within unincorporated Orange County into 
the corporate limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to, and as authorized by, Florida 
Statutes § 171.046. 
 

WITNESSTH 
 
 WHEREAS, Florida Statutes § 171.046, adopted by the Florida Legislature, recognizes 
that enclaves can create significant problems in planning, growth management, and service 
delivery; that it is the policy of the State of Florida to eliminate enclaves; and provides a 
method for the annexation by interlocal agreement of enclaves that are ten (10) acres or less; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Florida States § 171.031, adopted by the Florida Legislature, defines areas 
that are “urban in character” as those lands used intensively for residential, urban recreational 
or conservation parklands, commercial, industrial, institutional, or governmental purposes or an 
area undergoing development for any of these purposes; and defines “enclaves” as any 
unincorporated developed or improved area that is enclosed within and bounded on all sides 
by a single municipality, or any unincorporated developed or improved area that is enclosed 
within and bounded by a single municipality and a natural or manmade obstacle that allows the 
passage of vehicular traffic to that unincorporated area only through the municipality; and 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

For Recording Purposes Only 

Page 69



Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves Between The City of Apopka and Orange County 
Parcel ID #: 34-20-28-9550-00-261 
Page 2 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Florida Statutes § 171.043, adopted by the Florida Legislature, describes the 
character of the area that may be annexed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and County agree that both parties shall work together in good faith 
to enter into interlocal agreements pursuant to Florida Statutes to eliminate such identified 
enclaves; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it has been determined by the City that the parcel to be annexed by this 
Agreement is within the future annexation and planning areas of the City and meets the 
requirements set out in Florida Statutes § 171.046; and 
 
 WHEREAS, annexation of the identified enclave into the City will avoid unnecessary 
confusion and duplication of municipal services, including emergency services. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises and 
agreements set forth herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is 
hereby acknowledged and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto do hereby 
agree as follows: 
 
 SECTION I. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and by this reference are 
incorporated herein as part of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION II. This Agreement is executed in order to adjust and redefine the corporate 
limits of the City to include the land described in Section III below in order to ensure the sound 
and efficient delivery of urban services to said lands. 
 
 SECTION III. The City and the County hereby find that the following land located in 
unincorporated Orange County is an enclave of 10 acres or less which meets the criteria for 
annexation into the City under Florida Statutes § 171.046. 
 
 See Attachment “A” which is attached hereto and by this reference made a part 
thereof. A map of the above-described land which clearly shows the area proposed to be 
annexed is attached hereto as Attachment “B” and by this reference made a part hereof. 
 
 SECTION IV.  The City hereby finds that the annexation of the land herein described is 
consistent with State law, the City’s Comprehensive Plan and meets all of the requirements for 
annexation set forth in State law and the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 SECTION V. Pursuant to Florida Statutes § 171.046(2), the City and the County by this 
Agreement hereby annex into the corporate limits of the City that land described in Attachment 
“A” hereto. 
 
 SECTION VI. The land herein described and future inhabitants of said land shall be liable 
for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, ordinances and 
regulations of the City and shall be entitled to the same privileges and benefits as other areas of 
the City. 
 

Page 70



Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves Between The City of Apopka and Orange County 
Parcel ID #: 34-20-28-9550-00-261 
Page 3 

 
 SECTION VII.  The land herein described shall have the existing County land use plan and 
County zoning or subdivision regulations in full force and effect until the City adopts a 
comprehensive plan amendment and rezoning that includes said land.  The City agrees to 
process for change of land use classification and zoning category of this annexed land in 
accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws within twenty-four (24) months 
following the date of execution of this Agreement by the second party hereto and at no charge 
to the owners of the land described in Attachment “A” hereto. 
 
 SECTION VIII.  The City hereby acknowledges that, prior to their approval of this 
Agreement, they have jointly provided written notice to all owners of the real property 
identified in Attachment “A” whose names and addresses are known by reference to the latest 
published ad valorem tax records of the Orange County Property Appraiser. The written notice 
described the purpose of this Agreement and stated the date, time, and place of the meetings 
of the City of Apopka City Council at which this Agreement was to be considered for approval. 
 
 SECTION IX.  Miscellaneous. 
 
 1. This Agreement may not be modified or amended, or any term or provision 
hereof waived or discharged except in writing, in recordable form, signed by the parties hereto, 
or their respective successors or assigns.  Any such modification or amendment shall not be 
effective until recorded in the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 
 
 2. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and 
governed by, the laws of the State of Florida. 
 
 3. All of the terms of this Agreement, whether so expressed or not, shall be binding 
upon the respective successors, assigns and legal representatives of the parties hereto and shall 
inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the parties hereto and their respective successors, 
assigns and legal representatives. 
 
 4. The headings of this Agreement are for reference only and shall not limit or 
otherwise affect the meaning thereof. 
 
 5. Each party to this Agreement shall bear its own attorneys’ fees and costs in 
connection with this Agreement and/or in connection with any action undertaken in 
compliance with, or relating to, this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION X. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 
Agreement is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision and 
such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion hereto. 
 
 SECTION XI. This Agreement shall become effective upon its execution by the second of 
the two parties hereto and each respective date shall be inserted on the first page of this 
Agreement.  Thereafter the City Clerk is directed to file a certified copy of this Agreement and 
associated attachments with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange County, Florida; 
the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State of the State of Florida. 
 

Page 71



Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves Between The City of Apopka and Orange County 
Parcel ID #: 34-20-28-9550-00-261 
Page 4 

 
 SECTION XII. Following its execution by the City and the County, a copy of this 
Agreement shall be recorded and thereafter provided by certified mail to all owners of the real 
property identified in Attachment “A” whose names and addresses are known by reference to 
the latest published ad valorem tax records of the Orange County Property Appraiser. 
 

[Remainder of page left blank intentionally] 
  

Page 72



Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves Between The City of Apopka and Orange County 
Parcel ID #: 34-20-28-9550-00-261 
Page 5 

 

  “CITY” 
  CITY OF APOPKA, a Florida Municipal 

Corporation 
ATTEST:   
   
   
  By:___________________________________ 
By:___________________________________  Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk   
  APPROVED BY THE CITY OF APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AT  

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  A MEETING HELD ______________________________ 

   
   
By:___________________________________   

Clifford B. Sheppard, City Attorney   
  “COUNTY” 
  ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
   
ATTEST:  By:  Board of County Commissioners 
   
   
   
By:___________________________________  By:___________________________________ 

Martha O. Hayne, County Comptroller  Teresa Jacobs, Orange County Mayor 
As Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners   

  Date: ________________________________ 
Date: ________________________________   
 

  

Page 73



Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves Between The City of Apopka and Orange County 
Parcel ID #: 34-20-28-9550-00-261 
Page 6 

 

ATTACHMENT “A” 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF ANNEXED LAND 

 
 
APOPKA RANCHES Z/134 THE E 185 FT OF N 435.53 OF LOT 26   
Parcel ID: 34-20-28-9950-00-261 
Containing 1.85 +/- Acres 
  

Page 74



Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves Between The City of Apopka and Orange County 
Parcel ID #: 34-20-28-9550-00-261 
Page 7 

 

ATTACHMENT “B” 
CROSSROADS CHURCH OF ORLANDO 

320 EAST WELCH ROAD 
Total Acres:  1.85 +/- 

 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

Page 75



 

Page 76



Page 77 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. ORDINANCE NO. 2441 - SECOND READING & ADOPTION - ANNEXATION - Donald 

Lee Boughan, property located at 404 East Welch Road; and authorize the Mayor or 

his designee to sign the Interlocal Agreement between the City of Apopka and Orange 

County for annexation of enclaves. (Parcel ID No. 34-20-28-9550-00-232) (1.00 +/- 

acre) 

  

Page 77



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
                                           ________                                     __ 

       CONSENT AGENDA     MEETING OF: August 5, 2015 

  X   PUBLIC HEARING     FROM:   Community Development 

       SPECIAL REPORTS     EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” Summary of Cycle 2b 

  X   OTHER: Annexations       Ordinance No. 2441 w/map 

          Exhibit “B” Interlocal Agreement 

   
                                           ________                                     __ 

SUBJECT:   2015 ANNEXATION - CYCLE NO. 2b 

 

Request:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2441 – 

DONALD LEE BOUGHAN; AND AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR OR HIS 

DESIGNEE TO SIGN THE INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF APOPKA AND ORANGE COUNTY FOR ANNEXATION 

OF ENCLAVES. 
                                           ________                                     __ 

SUMMARY: 

 

OWNER:   DONALD LEE BOUGHAN 

 

LOCATION:   404 East Welch Road 

  

LAND USE:   Refer to Exhibit “A”  

 

EXISTING USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A” 

  

TRACT SIZE:   1.00 +/- acre  

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

The two unincorporated enclaves included in the 2015-2b cycle are subject to an annexation agreement between 

the City and Orange County Board of County Commissioners.  Annexation of the Guarda & Son property 

(Ordinance No.2398) on December 17, 2014 created two unincorporated enclave parcels.  Prior to any hearings 

for the Guarda & Son property, Orange County planning staff raised concerns and potential objections to 

annexation of the Guarda property because it would create two unincorporated enclaves. To alleviate the 

County’s concerns, the City and County planning staffs mutually agreed to a process an Annexation Agreement 

that would eliminate these two enclaves and bring them into the City’s jurisdiction.  The City Council agenda 

package for the Guarda property annexation on December 17, 2014 read as follows:   

 
“The City Council, at its meeting on December 3, 2014, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 
2398 and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 17, 2014; and authorized staff to 
proceed with an Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves.”  
 

                                                                                  ____    

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director   Police Chief   

Page 78



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 5, 2015 
2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE #2B – ORDINANCE NO. 2440 
PAGE 2 

 
A proposed Annexation Agreement accompanies the proposed ordinance for each of the two parcels.  City 
Council’s action to approve this annexation ordinance must also include acceptance of the Annexation 
Agreement. 

 

The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future Land Use and Zoning designations.  

The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will occur at a later date, and through 

additional action by the City Council. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: 

The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to the first reading of any annexation ordinance.  

The City provided notification to the County on June 26, 2015. 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

July 3, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 

July 10, 2015 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 

July 24, 2015 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

July 15, 2015 (7:00 pm) - City Council 1st Reading 

August 5, 2015 (1:30 pm) - City Council 2nd Reading and Adoption 

 
                                           ________                                     __ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2015 Annexation Cycle #2b. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on July 15, 2015, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2441; 

authorized the Mayor, or his designee, to sign the Interlocal Agreement between the City of Apopka and Orange 

County for the annexation of enclaves; and held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on August 5, 2015. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2441. 

Page 79



EXHIBIT “A” 
CITY OF APOPKA 

2015 ANNEXATION CYCLE # 2B 
TOTAL ACRES:  2.85 +/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE No.s.: 2440 & 2441 

  Adopted this 5th day of August, 2015 
 

Page 1 

 
 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2440 1 Crossroads Church of Orlando, Inc. 320 East Welch Road 34-20-28-9550-00-261 1.85 Church 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

2441 2 Donald Lee Boughan 404 East Welch Road 34-20-28-9550-00-232 1.00 
SFR 

 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

    TOTAL ACRES 2.85   

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2015\Cycle 2 

Page 80



ORDINANCE NO. 2441 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 

TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO 

FLORIDA STATUTE 171.046 THE HEREINAFEETER DESCRIBED LANDS 

SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY 

DONALD LEE BOUGHAN, LOCATED AT 404 EAST WELCH ROAD; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka, Florida and Orange County, Florida 

are entering into an interlocal agreement for annexation of enclaves 

located within unincorporated Orange County into the corporate limits 

of the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to, and as authorized by, 

Florida Statutes 171.046; and  

 WHEREAS, there exists a 1.00 acre enclave of unincorporated 

Orange County located at 404 East Welch Road and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is 

desirous of annexing and redefining the boundaries of the 

municipality to include the subject property pursuant to Florida 

Statute 171.046, and 

 

 WHEREAS, following the approval of Orange County Board of County 

Commission.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City 

of Apopka, Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described property, being 

situated in Orange County, Florida, totaling 1.00 +/- acre, and 

graphically depicted by the attached Exhibit "A", is hereby annexed 

into the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to provisions of Florida 

Statutes 171.046, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Description: 

 

NORTH 425 FEET OF WEST 102.5 FEET OF LOT 23, APOPKA RANCHES, 

ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK Z, PAGE 

134, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

PARCEL I.D.: 34-20-28-9550-00-232 

CONTAINS:  1.00 +/- ACRE 
 

     SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City 

of Apopka, Florida, are hereby redefined to include said land herein 

described and annexed. 

 
 SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use 
classification and zoning category of these annexed lands in 
accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

Page 81



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2441 

PAGE 2  

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future 

inhabitants of the land herein described shall be liable for all debts 

and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, 

ordinances and regulations of the City. 

 

 SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or 

subsection of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or 

unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section 

or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage 

and adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file 

this ordinance with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange 

County, Florida; the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the 

Department of State of the State of Florida.  
 

 

              

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: July 03, 2015 

        July 10, 2015 

        July 24, 2015 
 

 

 

 
 FIRST READING: July 15, 2015 
 
 SECOND READING 
 AND ADOPTED:     August 5, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                          
 

Page 82



 

ANNEXATION 

DONALD LEE BOUGHAN 

404 EAST WELCH ROAD 

 
        Exhibit “A”                  

          Ord. # 2441 

        Parcel ID:  34-20-28-9550-00-232 

 

 Total Acres: 1.00 +/-      

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

Page 83



EXHIBIT “B” 
 
 
 
 
THIS INSTRUMENT PREPARED BY 
AND SHOULD BE RETURNED TO: 
City of Apopka 
Community Development Department 
David Moon, Planning Manager 
P. O. Box 1229, Apopka, FL  32704-1229 

 
Tax Parcel Identification Number: 
34-20-28-9550-00-232 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT FOR ANNEXATION OF ENCLAVES 

Between 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 

And 

ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
 THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT, dated this ______ day of _________________, 20____, 
(hereinafter referred to as “Agreement”) between the CITY OF APOPKA, a municipal 
corporation in the State of Florida whose mailing address is P. O. Box 1229, Apopka, Florida 
32704-1229 (hereinafter referred to as “City”), and ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, a charter 
county and political subdivision of the State of Florida whose mailing address is 201 South 
Rosaline Avenue, Orlando, Florida  32801 (hereinafter referred to as “County”), is entered into 
for the purpose of annexing certain enclaves located within unincorporated Orange County into 
the corporate limits of the City of Apopka, Florida, pursuant to, and as authorized by, Florida 
Statutes § 171.046. 
 

WITNESSTH 
 
 WHEREAS, Florida Statutes § 171.046, adopted by the Florida Legislature, recognizes 
that enclaves can create significant problems in planning, growth management, and service 
delivery; that it is the policy of the State of Florida to eliminate enclaves; and provides a 
method for the annexation by interlocal agreement of enclaves that are ten (10) acres or less; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Florida States § 171.031, adopted by the Florida Legislature, defines areas 
that are “urban in character” as those lands used intensively for residential, urban recreational 
or conservation parklands, commercial, industrial, institutional, or governmental purposes or an 
area undergoing development for any of these purposes; and defines “enclaves” as any 
unincorporated developed or improved area that is enclosed within and bounded on all sides 
by a single municipality, or any unincorporated developed or improved area that is enclosed 
within and bounded by a single municipality and a natural or manmade obstacle that allows the 
passage of vehicular traffic to that unincorporated area only through the municipality; and 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

For Recording Purposes Only 

Page 84



Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves Between The City of Apopka and Orange County 
Parcel ID #: 34-20-28-9950-00-232 
Page 2 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Florida Statutes § 171.043, adopted by the Florida Legislature, describes the 
character of the area that may be annexed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and County agree that both parties shall work together in good faith 
to enter into interlocal agreements pursuant to Florida Statutes to eliminate such identified 
enclaves; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it has been determined by the City that the parcel to be annexed by this 
Agreement is within the future annexation and planning areas of the City and meets the 
requirements set out in Florida Statutes § 171.046; and 
 
 WHEREAS, annexation of the identified enclave into the City will avoid unnecessary 
confusion and duplication of municipal services, including emergency services. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises and 
agreements set forth herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is 
hereby acknowledged and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto do hereby 
agree as follows: 
 
 SECTION I. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and by this reference are 
incorporated herein as part of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION II. This Agreement is executed in order to adjust and redefine the corporate 
limits of the City to include the land described in Section III below in order to ensure the sound 
and efficient delivery of urban services to said lands. 
 
 SECTION III. The City and the County hereby find that the following land located in 
unincorporated Orange County is an enclave of 10 acres or less which meets the criteria for 
annexation into the City under Florida Statutes § 171.046. 
 
 See Attachment “A” which is attached hereto and by this reference made a part 
thereof. A map of the above-described land which clearly shows the area proposed to be 
annexed is attached hereto as Attachment “B” and by this reference made a part hereof. 
 
 SECTION IV.  The City hereby finds that the annexation of the land herein described is 
consistent with State law, the City’s Comprehensive Plan and meets all of the requirements for 
annexation set forth in State law and the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 SECTION V. Pursuant to Florida Statutes § 171.046(2), the City and the County by this 
Agreement hereby annex into the corporate limits of the City that land described in Attachment 
“A” hereto. 
 
 SECTION VI. The land herein described and future inhabitants of said land shall be liable 
for all debts and obligations and be subject to all species of taxation, laws, ordinances and 
regulations of the City and shall be entitled to the same privileges and benefits as other areas of 
the City. 
 

Page 85



Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves Between The City of Apopka and Orange County 
Parcel ID #: 34-20-28-9950-00-232 
Page 3 

 
 SECTION VII.  The land herein described shall have the existing County land use plan and 
County zoning or subdivision regulations in full force and effect until the City adopts a 
comprehensive plan amendment and rezoning that includes said land.  The City agrees to 
process for change of land use classification and zoning category of this annexed land in 
accordance with applicable City ordinances and State laws within twenty-four (24) months 
following the date of execution of this Agreement by the second party hereto and at no charge 
to the owners of the land described in Attachment “A” hereto. 
 
 SECTION VIII.  The City hereby acknowledges that, prior to their approval of this 
Agreement, they have jointly provided written notice to all owners of the real property 
identified in Attachment “A” whose names and addresses are known by reference to the latest 
published ad valorem tax records of the Orange County Property Appraiser. The written notice 
described the purpose of this Agreement and stated the date, time, and place of the meetings 
of the City of Apopka City Council at which this Agreement was to be considered for approval. 
 
 SECTION IX.  Miscellaneous. 
 
 1. This Agreement may not be modified or amended, or any term or provision 
hereof waived or discharged except in writing, in recordable form, signed by the parties hereto, 
or their respective successors or assigns.  Any such modification or amendment shall not be 
effective until recorded in the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 
 
 2. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with, and 
governed by, the laws of the State of Florida. 
 
 3. All of the terms of this Agreement, whether so expressed or not, shall be binding 
upon the respective successors, assigns and legal representatives of the parties hereto and shall 
inure to the benefit of and be enforceable by the parties hereto and their respective successors, 
assigns and legal representatives. 
 
 4. The headings of this Agreement are for reference only and shall not limit or 
otherwise affect the meaning thereof. 
 
 5. Each party to this Agreement shall bear its own attorneys’ fees and costs in 
connection with this Agreement and/or in connection with any action undertaken in 
compliance with, or relating to, this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION X. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this 
Agreement is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision and 
such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion hereto. 
 
 SECTION XI. This Agreement shall become effective upon its execution by the second of 
the two parties hereto and each respective date shall be inserted on the first page of this 
Agreement.  Thereafter the City Clerk is directed to file a certified copy of this Agreement and 
associated attachments with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange County, Florida; 
the Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State of the State of Florida. 
 

Page 86



Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves Between The City of Apopka and Orange County 
Parcel ID #: 34-20-28-9950-00-232 
Page 4 

 
 SECTION XII. Following its execution by the City and the County, a copy of this 
Agreement shall be recorded and thereafter provided by certified mail to all owners of the real 
property identified in Attachment “A” whose names and addresses are known by reference to 
the latest published ad valorem tax records of the Orange County Property Appraiser. 
 

[Remainder of page left blank intentionally] 
  

Page 87



Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves Between The City of Apopka and Orange County 
Parcel ID #: 34-20-28-9950-00-232 
Page 5 

 

  “CITY” 
  CITY OF APOPKA, a Florida Municipal 

Corporation 
ATTEST:   
   
   
  By:___________________________________ 
By:___________________________________  Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk   
  APPROVED BY THE CITY OF APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AT  

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  A MEETING HELD ______________________________ 

   
   
By:___________________________________   

Clifford B. Sheppard, City Attorney   
  “COUNTY” 
  ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
   
ATTEST:  By:  Board of County Commissioners 
   
   
   
By:___________________________________  By:___________________________________ 

Martha O. Hayne, County Comptroller  Teresa Jacobs, Orange County Mayor 
As Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners   

  Date: ________________________________ 
Date: ________________________________   
 

  

Page 88



Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves Between The City of Apopka and Orange County 
Parcel ID #: 34-20-28-9950-00-232 
Page 6 

 

ATTACHMENT “A” 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF ANNEXED LAND 

 
 
APOPKA RANCHES Z/134 THE N 425 FT OF W 102.5 FT OF LOT 23  
Parcel ID: 34-20-28-9950-00-232 
Containing 1.00 +/- Acres 
  

Page 89



Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves Between The City of Apopka and Orange County 
Parcel ID #: 34-20-28-9950-00-232 
Page 7 

 

ATTACHMENT “B” 
DONALD LEE BOUGHAN 
404 EAST WELCH ROAD 

Total Acres:  1.00 +/- 
 

 

VICINITY MAP 

Page 90



 

Page 91



Page 92 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. ORDINANCE NO. 2446 - FIRST READING - Creation of a synthetic tax incremental 

financing district [STIF] within the Ocoee/Apopka Small Study Area.   

  

Page 92



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

     CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: August 5, 2015 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:        Administration 

     SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:    Ordinance No. 2446  

  x  OTHER:  Ordinance No. 2446       establishing a Synthetic Tax  
 Incremental Financing District  

 [STIF] 

Marden Interchange Agreement  
 

SUBJECT: CREATION OF A SYNTHETIC TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING DISTRICT 

[STIF] WITHIN THE OCOEE/APOPKA SMALL STUDY AREA.  

 

Request: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2446 – CREATING A [STIF]; HOLD OVER 

FOR SECOND READING AND ADDOPTION.   

  
SUMMARY: 

 

The ordinance under consideration tonight is the end product of many months of work between the developer 

and the City.  It came about after MMI Development approached staff about sharing the costs of constructing a 

“half interchange” from the expressway [SR 414] that would connect with Marden Road. After a period of 

discussion and negotiation, a document was drafted setting forth the terms of a cost sharing agreement, which 

will be brought before council for discussion and consideration at the August 19, 2015 meeting (“Marden 

Road Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement”).  This document is included for Council review and discussion; 

however, it only requires one hearing whereas the affiliated ordinance which gives life to the agreement 

requires two readings.  The agreement will only be entered if the ordinance before you tonight is adopted but 

both documents must be read together to understand what the developer and the City are trying to accomplish. 

The ordinance under consideration will establish a Synthetic Tax Incremental Financing [STIF] District.  The 

district boundaries include specific properties in the immediate area of the interchange which have previously 

been identified as the “Ocoee/Apopka Small Study Area.”  The STIF district is anticipated to generate 

incrementally increased tax revenues to the city as the area develops following the construction of the 

interchange.  If the ordinance is accepted as written, 95% of the incremental increase in tax revenues for the 

district will be deposited upon receipt from the Orange County Tax Collector into a separate and restricted 

trust fund.  Monies will then be shared at a ratio of 50% with the developer of the interchange for a period of 

10 years or until 90% of total construction costs are shared, not to exceed $5.85 million dollars (the maximum 

cost share). 

The Agreement explains in detail how the various methods by which the City will share in the costs of the 

interchange construction.  Once construction is complete and accepted by the Expressway Authority, the City 

shall pay to the developer an initial sum of $2.5 million from the Transportation Impact Fee Fund.  The 

developer is also constructing Marden Ridge in phases and is required to pay Transportation Impact Fees.  

 

Page 93



These fees will be credited toward the maximum cost share by the city.  Other development within the STIF 

district will also be required to pay Transportation Impact Fees to the City.  One hundred percent of these 

collections shall be shared with the developer up to 90% of the cost of construction of the interchange or the 

maximum cost share is reached, whichever is lower.  Additional cost share methods include possible toll 

revenues if City ever receives same. 

 
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

Incremental Tax Revenue increases over time – not to exceed 10 years. 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2446; creating a new Synthetic Tax Incremental Financing District 

in the specific area of the Ocoee/Apopka Small Study Area; and Hold Over for Second Reading and Adoption 

on August 19, 2015. 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

Page 94



ORDINANCE NO. 2446 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING MARDEN ROAD INTERCHANGE TRUST FUND; 

PROVIDING FOR THE FUNDING OF THE MARDEN ROAD INTERCHANGE 

TRUST FUND; PROVIDING FOR ADMINISTRATION OF THE MARDEN ROAD 

INTERCHANGE TRUST FUND; DETERMINING THE TAX INCREMENT TO BE 

DEPOSITED INTO THE MARDEN ROAD INTERCHANGE TRUST FUND; 

ESTABLISHING THE BASE YEAR FOR DETERMINING ASSESSED VALUES 

RELATING TO PROPERTY LOCATED IN THE MARDEN ROAD 

INTERCHANGE PROJECT AREA FOR TAX INCREMENT PURPOSES; 

PROVIDING FOR ANNUAL APPROPRIATION OF THE TAX INCREMENT; 

APPOINTING THE MAYOR OR HIS/HER DESIGNEE AS TRUSTEE OF THE 

MARDEN ROAD INTERCHANGE TRUST FUND; PROVIDING FOR 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka desires to improve transportation access within the City and 

surrounding areas through the construction of an interchange at Marden Road (“Marden Road 

Interchange”) on Florida State Road 414; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Apopka City Council, after reviewing the infrastructure needs of the community, 

determined that construction of the Marden Road Interchange would be in the best interest of the City‟s 

residents and businesses; and  

 

WHEREAS, to encourage the owners of the property on which the Marden Road Interchange will 

be constructed to move forward with the project, the City of Apopka agreed to engage in a cost-sharing 

enterprise with the owners for project costs associated with the Marden Road Interchange; and 

 

WHEREAS, The City of Apopka, Emerson Point Assoc., LLLP and Emerson Point Phase II, 

LLC (“Owners”) and Emerson MMI-INT, LLC (“Owners‟ Agent”), entered into the Marden Road 

Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement (“Marden Agreement”) to effectuate construction of the Marden 

Road Interchange; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to implement the Marden Agreement, it is necessary to establish the Marden 

Road Interchange Trust Fund. 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, THAT: 

  

 SECTION 1.   LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS. 

 
  The recitals set forth above are hereby adopted as legislative findings of the City Council of the 

City of Apopka. 

 

 SECTION 2.    CREATION OF THE MARDEN ROAD INTERCHANGE TRUST 

FUND. 

 

 (a).  There is hereby established and created, in accordance with the „Home Rule‟ powers 

granted to the City pursuant to Florida Statute 166.021, the Marden Road Interchange Trust Fund (“Trust 

Page 95



ORDINANCE NO. 2446 
PAGE 2 
 

2 

 

Fund”), which funds shall be utilized to provide a cost-sharing mechanism through which the City of 

Apopka may share in the costs associated with construction of the Marden Road Interchange. 

 

SECTION 3.   PURPOSE OF TRUST FUND; USE OF REVENUES DEPOSITED IN 

TRUST FUND. 

 

 The monies to be allocated to and deposited in the Trust Fund shall be used as a cost-sharing 

mechanism by which to support construction of the Marden Road Interchange according to tax increment 

revenues attributed to real property in the Marden Road Interchange Project Area, which shall be 

appropriated by the City annually.  The City shall utilize the funds and revenues paid into and earned by 

the Trust Fund as provided in the Marden Agreement and as permitted by law.  Monies shall be held in 

the Trust Fund by the City and shall be disbursed from the Trust Fund as provided by the City, consistent 

with the terms of the Marden Agreement. 

 

 SECTION 4.   ESTABLISHMENT OF BASE YEAR. 

  

 The Base Year Value shall be the value set forth for the Marden Road Interchange Project Area in 

the assessment roll used in connection with the taxation of property shall be the preliminary assessment 

roll of taxable real property in Orange County, Florida, prepared by the Property Appraiser of Orange 

County, Florida and certified pursuant to Section 193.122, Florida Statutes, reflecting the valuation of 

real property for purposes of ad valorem taxation for the year in which all Marden Road Interchange 

improvements are completed as evidenced by a Certificate of Acceptance for said improvements (the 

“Base Year”).  All deposits into the Trust Fund shall be in the amount of tax increment calculated as 

provided in Section 5 hereof based upon increases in valuation of taxable real property from the Base 

Year as reflected on the final assessment roll of taxable real property in the Marden Road Interchange 

Project Area in Apopka, Florida, prepared by the Property Appraiser of Orange County, Florida, filed 

with the Department of Revenue pursuant to Section 193.1142, Florida Statutes.  

 

 SECTION 5.  CALCULATION OF TAX INCREMENT. 

 

 The tax increment shall be determined and appropriated annually by the City, and shall be ninety-

five percent (95%) of the difference between: 

  

a) The City‟s portion of the amount of ad-valorem taxes levied each year by all taxing authorities, 

exclusive of any debt service millage, on taxable real property located within the geographic 

boundaries of the Marden Road Interchange Project Area; and 

 

b) The City‟s portion of the amount of ad-valorem taxes levied by all taxing authorities, exclusive 

of any debt service millage, on taxable real property located within the geographic boundaries 

of the Marden Road Interchange Project Area during the Base Year. 

  

SECTION 6. ANNUAL APPROPRIATIONS INTO TRUST FUND. 

 

The City shall annually appropriate to and cause to be deposited into the Trust Fund the tax 

increment determined to pursuant to Section 5 of this Ordinance at the beginning of each fiscal year 

thereof.  The obligation of the City to annually appropriate the tax increment for deposit into the Trust 

Fund shall commence when the Certificate of Acceptance for the Marden Road Interchange is issued. 

 

Page 96



ORDINANCE NO. 2446 
PAGE 3 
 

3 

 

 SECTION 7.  ADMINISTRATION OF THE TRUST FUND. 

 

 The Trust Fund shall be established and maintained as a separate trust fund by the City so that the 

Trust Fund may be promptly and effectively administered and utilized by the City expeditiously and 

without undue delay for its contractual purposes pursuant to the Marden Agreement.  Allocation of the 

monies in the Trust Fund shall be in accordance with the procedures delineated in Section 6.2 of the 

Marden Agreement.   

 

 SECTION 8.  TRUSTEE OF THE TRUST FUND. 

 

 The Mayor or his/her designee shall be the trustee of the Trust Fund and shall be responsible for 

the receipt, custody, disbursement, accountability, management investment and proper application of all 

monies paid into the Trust Fund.   

 

SECTION 9.   CONFLICTS. 

 

  All ordinances or resolutions or parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 SECTION 10. SEVERABILITY. 

 

  If any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, 

unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or effect of any 

other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 SECTION 11. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

   

  

 PASSED AND DULY ENACTED THIS ______ DAY OF _______________, 2015. 

 

 

 

FIRST READING: 

 

 

  

SECOND 

READING 

AND ADOPTION: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

        

 

ATTEST: 

 

Page 97



ORDINANCE NO. 2446 
PAGE 4 
 

4 

 

 

 

_____________________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________________ 

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 98



20150108 

 

PREPARED BY AND RETURN TO: 
EDWARD J. FORE, ESQUIRE 
1350 N. ORANGE AVENUE, SUITE 260 
WINTER PARK, FLORIDA  32789 
 
 
 
Tax Parcel I.D. Nos.: 
 
 
 

 
 

MARDEN ROAD INTERCHANGE COST SHARING AGREEMENT 
 
 

THIS MARDEN ROAD INTERCHANGE COST SHARING AGREEMENT (the 
“Agreement”), is effective as of the latest date of execution by the parties hereto (the 
“Effective Date”), and is made and entered into by and between EMERSON POINT 
ASSOC., LLLP, a Florida limited liability limited partnership (“Emerson I”); EMERSON 
POINT PHASE II, LLC,  a Florida limited liability company (“Emerson II”) (Emerson I 
and Emerson II collectively referred to as the “Owners”, and individually as  an 
“Owner”), EMERSON MMI-INT, LLC, a Florida limited liability company (“Owners’ 
Agent”),  and THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, a Florida municipal corporation 
(“City” or “Apopka”) (Owners, Owners’ Agent,  and the City are collectively referred 
to as the “Parties” and individually as a “Party”). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Owners are the owners of fee simple title to certain real property 
shown on the project location map identified as Composite Exhibit “A” and more 
particularly described in Composite Exhibit “B,” both of which exhibits are attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference; and 

WHEREAS, the Property lies within the City; and 

WHEREAS, Owners intend for the Property to be developed as a mixed use 
project which is anticipated to provide economic benefits to the City (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, Owners and Owners’ Agent have received, or anticipate in the near 
future receiving approval from the Central Florida Expressway Authority to construct an 
Interchange pursuant to the terms and conditions of that certain Letter from Joseph A. 
Berenis to Kevin Knudsen dated July 24, 2014, attached hereto as Exhibit “C;” and 

WHEREAS, Owners are willing to convey certain portions of the Property to the 
Central Florida Expressway Authority and/or City to construct or cause to be 
constructed the Interchange in accordance with plans approved by the Central Florida 
Expressway Authority, including, potentially, access roads to be owned by the City (if 
necessary); and  

Page 99



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 2 
 

WHEREAS, to encourage Owners to construct the Interchange, the City has 
agreed to engage in a cost-sharing enterprise with Owners for the Project Costs 
associated with construction of the Interchange, as provided herein; and 

WHEREAS, Apopka desires to improve transportation access in the vicinity of 
the Property and surrounding areas through the construction of an interchange at 
Marden Road on Florida State Road 414 (“Expressway”) at the general location 
depicted on Exhibit “D” attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Apopka City Council, after reviewing the infrastructure needs of 
the community, concludes that the interchange will be beneficial in improving 
transportation in, to and from the City of Apopka; and 

WHEREAS, the Apopka City Council finds that the interchange will aid the 
promotion and development of businesses within the City limits; and 

WHEREAS, the Apopka City Council finds that entering into this cost-sharing 
agreement with Owners is in the best interest of Apopka residents and business 
owners’ welfare, health and safety. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, the City and Owners 
hereby agree as follows: 

1. Recitals.  The above recitals are true and correct and are incorporated 
herein by reference. 

2. Definitions.  Unless defined elsewhere within this Agreement, the terms 
set forth below shall have the following meanings when used in this Agreement: 

2.1 Authority – shall mean the Central Florida Expressway Authority. 

2.2 CRA – shall mean Community Redevelopment Area as defined in 
Chapter 163.330, et al., Fla. Stats., as amended from time to time. 

2.3 Initial Contribution – shall mean a payment by City to Owner’s 
Agent of up to $2,500,000 towards City’s maximum cost share in the Project Costs as 
set forth in Section 5 herein and pursuant to the terms of this agreement. 

2.4 Interchange – shall refer to all roadway, drainage and other 
improvements designed, engineered, permitted, approved and constructed in 
connection with the improvements described in Section 3 herein below and the 
Interchange Agreement. 

2.5 Interchange Agreement – shall mean the Marden Road Interchange 
Agreement to be negotiated between Owners and the Authority consistent with the 
Letter attached hereto as Exhibit “C.” 

2.6 Owners – shall refer to EMERSON POINT ASSOC., LLLP, a 
Florida limited liability limited partnership and EMERSON POINT PHASE II, LLC,  a 

Page 100



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 3 
 

Florida limited liability company, and, to the extent provided in Section 11, below, their 
successors or assigns as the fee Owners of the Property or any Parcel (as hereinafter 
defined) within the Property. 

2.7 Owners’ Agent – shall mean EMERSON MMI-INT, LLC, a Florida 
limited liability company, or such other entity as may be designated in writing by Owners 
from time to time. 

2.8 Parcel – shall mean any lot, tract or other portion of the Property on 
which any building or other structure requiring a City building permit may be 
constructed. 

2.9 Project Area - shall mean certain property shown on the project 
location map identified as composite Exhibit “A” and more particularly described in 
Composite Exhibit “B,” both of which exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference. 

2.10 Project Costs – shall mean the total cost of the Interchange 
incurred by Owners’ Agent, including the value of any land or drainage easements 
required to be conveyed by Owners to the Authority for the Project as set forth herein. 

2.11 Property – shall mean certain property shown on the project 
location map identified as composite Exhibit “A” and more particularly described in 
Composite Exhibit “B,” both of which exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference. 

2.12 Road Impact Fee Credits – shall have the meaning set forth in 
Section 7.1 hereof. 

2.13 Road Impact Fees – shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7.1 
hereof. 

2.14 Termination Date – shall mean ten (10) years following the Trust 
Fund Commencement Date as referenced in Section 6.1 of this agreement. 

2.15 Trust Fund Commencement Date - shall have the meaning set forth 
in Section 6.1. 

3. Interchange. Owners’ Agent shall complete the design, engineering, 
permitting and construction of the Interchange pursuant to the terms and conditions of 
the Interchange Agreement, including the design, engineering, legal, permitting, and 
construction of any roads, drainage, retention, or other structures related to the 
construction of the Interchange all as set forth in the Interchange Agreement. 

(i) Upon completion of the Interchange the City shall make an Initial 
Contribution of up to $2,500,000 towards City’s maximum cost share in the Project 
Costs as set forth in Section 5 herein.  The Initial Contribution shall be paid to the 
Owner’s Agent pursuant to the procedures set forth in Section 3(ii) herein. 

Page 101



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 4 
 

(ii) As a condition precedent for payment of the Initial Contribution, 
upon completion of the Interchange (as evidenced by a Certificate of Completion from 
the Authority), Owners’ Agent shall deliver to City and Owners (i) a request for a draw 
payment, (ii) General Contractor’s sworn statements and unconditional waivers of lien, 
and subcontractors,’ material suppliers’ and laborers’ conditional waivers of lien, 
covering all work, paid with the proceeds of the prior draw requests, together with such 
invoices, contracts or other supporting data as the City may reasonably require to 
evidence that all costs for which disbursement is sought have been incurred, and (iii) 
evidence that any inspection required by the Authority for the Interchange has been 
completed with results satisfactory to the Authority.  In this regard, the City shall have 
the right to reasonably inspect all books, records and accounts relating to such work. 
These books, records and accounts are considered public records and therefore will be 
available for review by the public upon request.  Based upon the available maximum 
cost share not exceeding $5,850,000.00, the City shall promptly pay 42.7350% of the 
total Project Costs supported by the draw request, not to exceed $2,500,000.  
Payments shall be made to Owner’s Agent within ten (10) days of receipt of the draw 
request and supporting documentation set forth herein. 

(iii) Upon City’s payment of the Initial Contribution towards the total 
Project Costs for the Interchange as calculated above, the Owner shall be eligible to 
receive additional cost sharing from the City as set forth herein, not to exceed the 
maximum cost share in the Project Costs as set forth in Section 5 herein. 

4. Dedication of Right of Way and Drainage Easements.  Pursuant to 
the terms and conditions of the Interchange Agreement, Owners shall (i) dedicate to 
the Authority such lands owned by Owners as shall be reasonably necessary for the 
construction of the Interchange and (ii) provide drainage easements to accommodate 
the stormwater runoff for the Interchange improvements.  In consideration thereof, the 
Project Costs may include (i) the value of the lands transferred by Owners to the 
Authority for the Interchange and (ii) the value of any lands owned by Owners used to 
provide drainage easements to the Authority for stormwater runoff for the Interchange 
improvements.  To the extent any drainage ponds are joint use ponds, only the 
portions of the drainage ponds allocable to the Interchange improvements shall be 
used for the purposes hereof, it being the intent that the City may not share costs with 
the Owners for the portions of any joint use drainage ponds not necessary for the 
Interchange.  The amount of any cost share shall be determined at the time of right-
of-way or easement dedication based upon (i) mutual agreement of the Owners and 
the City, or, (ii) the appraised value of the land dedicated for right-of-way or 
drainage purposes. If desired, Owners and the City agree to acquire an appraisal 
for the right-of-way and drainage easements to be dedicated, which shall be 
prepared by an MAI and/or State Certified Appraiser. Owners and City shall split 
equally the appraisal costs. The Owners or City may, at their option, retain an 
additional appraisal to ascertain the value of property to be dedicated as right-of-
way or drainage easements.  Owners and the City agree that, should a conflict arise 
regarding the fair market value for the right-of-way and drainage easements, 
independent appraisers selected by the Owners and City shall appoint a third 
appraiser whose determination shall be conclusive as to the fair market value of the 
right of way and drainage easements. 

Page 102



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 5 
 

5. Cost Sharing.  The City shall share in the Project Costs from revenues 
exclusively generated as follows: (i) synthetic tax increment financing for the Property, 
as provided herein; (ii) Road Impact Fee Credits, as provided herein; (iii) Road Impact 
Fees from the Surrounding Lands, as provided herein and (iv) 25% of any toll revenue 
provided to the City by the Authority, as provided herein.  The City specifically and 
expressly does not pledge its general or any other revenue sources to the Project 
Costs.  Total cost sharing may not exceed a maximum contribution by City of 
$5,850,000.00.  On an annual basis by not later than April 1 of each year, the City shall 
provide an accounting to the Owner’s Agent of the funds available for cost sharing, 
including information regarding incremental tax increases, Road Impact Fees, any toll 
revenue received, and the amounts paid to Owner’s Agent as set forth herein. 

6. Synthetic Tax Incremental Financing (“STIF”). 

6.1 Establishment of Tax Trust Fund. The Apopka City Council has 
adopted Ordinance No. _______ establishing a tax trust fund for the Project Area to be 
funded by tax increment.  The Base Year Value shall be the value set forth for the 
Marden Road Interchange Project Area in the assessment roll used in connection with 
the taxation of property shall be the preliminary assessment roll of taxable real property 
in Orange County, Florida, prepared by the Property Appraiser of Orange County, 
Florida and certified pursuant to Section 193.122, Florida Statutes, reflecting the 
valuation of real property for purposes of ad valorem taxation for the year in which all 
Marden Road Interchange improvements are completed as evidenced by a Certificate 
of Acceptance for said improvements (the “Base Year”).   The amount of tax increment  
shall be determined and appropriated annually by the City, and shall be ninety-five 
percent (95%) of the difference between: 

(i) The City’s portion of the amount of ad-valorem taxes levied each 
year by all taxing authorities, exclusive of any debt service millage, on taxable real 
property located within the geographic boundaries of the Marden Road Interchange 
Project Area; and 

(ii) The City’s portion of the amount of ad-valorem taxes levied by all 
taxing authorities, exclusive of any debt service millage, on taxable real property located 
within the geographic boundaries of the Marden Road Interchange Project Area during 
the Base Year. 

6.2 The City shall share in the Project Costs expended by Owners’ 
Agent, in the amount of 50% of any incremental ad valorem taxes received by the City 
and deposited in the tax trust fund if same is established as set forth in Section 6.1 
above until the maximum cost share as set forth in Section 5 above has been paid to 
Owners’ Agent under any of the permissible means of Cost Sharing authorized under 
this Agreement.  The tax trust fund shall be administered by the Mayor or his/her 
designee, with funds disbursed to Owners’ Agent annually by April 1 for a term 
beginning on the first of January of the year following the establishment of the Base 
Year, and ending on the Termination Date, not to exceed the maximum cost share as 
set forth in Section 5 above. 

Page 103



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 6 
 

6.3 Pre-Conditions for Payment.  As a condition for sharing the Project 
Costs beyond the Initial Contribution, Owners’ Agent shall deliver to City (i) a request to 
share in Project Cost, (ii) proof of payment of the Project Costs, and (iii) evidence that 
any inspection required by the Authority for the Interchange has been completed with 
results satisfactory to the Authority.  In this regard, the City shall have the right to 
reasonably inspect all books, records and accounts relating to such work, and may, at 
its option, require execution by Owners’ Agent and any contractors, subcontractors, 
laborers and material suppliers of such affidavits, endorsements and releases as City 
deems necessary. These books, records and accounts are considered public records 
and therefore will be available for review by the public upon request. 

6.4 Change in Law. In the event ad valorem taxes are abolished in 
Apopka and are replaced with a similar funding mechanism, this Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect as to synthetic tax incremental financing, except that the 
name of the new tax or fee shall automatically be substituted for the term “ad valorem 
taxes” throughout the text of this Agreement.  In such an event, the new tax system 
shall be established and managed in conformity with the procedures outlined in Section 
6.1.  Owners’ Agent and the City shall meet, in such an event, to determine what 
modifications, if any, are needed to this Agreement to reflect the then current tax 
structure for the City relating to the use of taxes related to all or any portion of the 
Property to share in any remaining Project Costs.  The parties shall then work 
cooperatively to make the appropriate revisions to this Agreement.  The new tax system 
shall follow the same 50% proportionality described in Section 6.2 and shall terminate 
once the maximum cost share as set forth in Section 5 above has been paid to Owners’ 
Agent, or on the Termination Date. 

6.5 Sunset Provision. The tax trust fund shall expire and terminate 
upon the Termination Date.   

7. Impact Fee Credits Capacity Reservation and CRA. 

7.1 Allocation of Credits to Project. Commencing with the Effective 
Date, Owners’ Agent shall be entitled to receive transportation impact fee credits 
pursuant to Section 26-81, Apopka City Code, in an amount not to exceed the maximum 
cost share set forth in Section 5 above (“Road Impact Fee Credits”) to offset 
transportation impact fees otherwise payable for any development within the Property 
(“Road Impact Fees”).  In the event an Owner, assignee, successor or assign, desires 
to obtain building permits for which Road Impact Fees would be payable, Owners’ 
Agent shall provide the City a statement indicating the amount of impact fees that have 
been determined for the number and type of building permits desired.  The City shall 
provide Road Impact Fee Credits in the amount shown on the statement so provided, 
the dollar value of which credits shall be applied towards but shall not exceed the 
maximum cost share as set forth in Section 5 above.  The provisions of this Section 7.1 
shall automatically expire and terminate on the tenth (10th) anniversary of the Trust 
Fund Commencement Date after which date Road Impact Fee Credits shall no longer 
be available to Owner, and successors and assigns.    

Page 104



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 7 
 

7.2 Allocation of Road Impact Fees for Property and Surrounding 
Lands.  Commencing with the Effective Date and to the extent Owners’ Agent has not 
received the maximum cost share towards the Project Costs as set forth in Section 5 
above, the City shall pay to Owners’ Agent any Road Impact Fees received for 
development of such lands within the vicinity of the Interchange depicted on Exhibit 
“E” attached hereto (the “Surrounding Lands”).  Payment to the Owners’ Agent shall 
occur within thirty (30) days after the date the City receives payment of such Road 
Impact Fees from third parties and shall be credited towards the maximum cost share 
towards the Project Costs as set forth in Section 5 above.  Should all or a portion of the 
Property be sold or transferred from Owners to another party and such subsequent 
owner does not receive from Owners’ Agent Impact Fee Credits as provided in Section 
7.1, the portion of the property no longer owned by the Owners shall be treated as 
Surrounding Lands within this provision. 

7.3 Change in Law.  In the event Road Impact Fee collections pursuant 
to Chapter 26-72, et al., are abolished in Apopka and are replaced with a Transportation 
Mobility Fee or similar fee relating to the use of capacity on the City’s road network, this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect as to credits, except that the name of the 
new fee shall automatically be substituted for the term “Impact Fees” throughout the text 
of this Agreement.  The Parties acknowledge that a Transportation Mobility Fee may 
include components for pathways and/or transit operations that are not included as part 
of the impact fee formula.  Notwithstanding that circumstance, the Transportation 
Mobility Fee shall be used dollar for dollar in the same manner that Impact Fees are 
used under the terms of this Agreement.  The City acknowledges that the provisions of 
this Agreement may vary from the Transportation Mobility Fee use and structure 
applicable to other property owners in the City. 

7.4 Capacity Reservation. In the event the Owners proceed with the 
construction of the Interchange and related improvements, the Owners shall be entitled 
to a capacity reservation for the development of the Project pursuant to Section 4.04.02 
of the City Code, without paying any additional consideration, other than the 
construction of the Interchange.  The capacity reservation shall run with the land from 
the date hereof for the representative scope of development set forth on Exhibit “F” 
attached hereto, and ending on the Termination Date.  All capacity reservation costs, if 
any, are to be applied only to Project Costs up to the maximum cost share as set forth 
in Section 5 above.  However nothing herein shall vest Owners or Owners’ Agent with 
any right to build any of the units or commercial square footages indicated on Exhibit 
“F,” and all such improvements are and will otherwise be subject to all of City’s codes 
and approval processes. 

7.5 Toll Collection.  The City may request that the Authority place a toll 
booth at the Interchange or otherwise petition the Authority to seek toll revenue for the 
City from the Interchange.  To the extent Owners’ Agent has not received the maximum 
available cost share of the Project Costs as set forth in Section 5 above, the City shall 
pay to Owners’ Agent 25% of toll revenue received by the City from the Interchange or 
from the Authority in connection therewith which sums shall be credited towards the 
Project Costs not to exceed the maximum cost share as set forth in Section 5 above.  
However should the Authority agree to accept the ramps into its system for future 

Page 105



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 8 
 

maintenance, the City shall have no obligation to seek any portion of toll revenues from 
the Authority. 

7.6 CRA. The City may also seek to establish a CRA for the Property, 
which may include surrounding areas to address transportation or other blight as 
provided by Florida Statutes.  To the extent the City establishes a CRA which includes 
all or any part of the Property, funding available from the CRA may proportionally be 
applied to satisfying the maximum cost share as set forth in Section 5 above. 

7.7  Expiration. On the Termination Date, all obligations of the City to 
the Owners and the Owners’ Agent hereunder shall terminate. 

8. Design, Construction and Funding of Interchange 

8.1 Design.  Owners’ Agent shall commence permitting, design and 
engineering for the Interchange pursuant to consulting contracts and budgets reviewed 
and approved by the Authority for improvements under the jurisdiction of the Authority 
and the City for improvements under the jurisdiction of the City, if any. 

8.2 Budget. Attached hereto as Exhibit “G” is the preliminary budget 
for the direct and indirect costs of the Interchange based upon an engineer’s opinion of 
cost, not on actual bids submitted by qualified contractors.  Such Budget may be 
modified from time to time by mutual agreement of the parties hereto.  

8.3 Construction.  Prior to construction of the Interchange, Owners’ 
Agent shall obtain all applicable permits and final construction plan approval from the 
Authority.  The Interchange shall be constructed according to the terms and conditions 
of the Interchange Agreement.  The City’s approval may not be required for any 
improvement under the jurisdiction of the Authority, but Owners’ Agent shall keep the 
City fully informed as to the status of the Interchange improvements.  Owners’ Agent 
shall obtain the approval of the City for any improvements within the jurisdiction of the 
City. The City shall reasonably cooperate with Owner for approval of such 
improvements, if any, within the jurisdiction of the City, which at this time is anticipated 
to be joint use drainage ponds upon the Property. 

8.4 Funding.  The funding of all permitting, design, legal, engineering 
and construction costs relating to each phase or phases of the Interchange undertaken 
by Owners’ Agent pursuant to this Agreement shall be the responsibility of Owners’ 
Agent. 

8.5 Roadway Landscaping Maintenance.  The Parties acknowledge 
that any roadway constructed by Owners’ Agent pursuant to this Agreement may 
include a substantial amount of landscaping, including irrigation.  Owners’ Agent, or a 
successor in interest, shall maintain said roadway landscaping for the benefit of the 
Project.  Accordingly, upon completion of construction of any required roadway 
hereunder, at Owners’ Agent’s request, the Parties shall enter into a right-of-way 
utilization agreement providing for Owners or Owners’ Agent or its successors to 
maintain all landscaping improvements constructed within said road rights-of-way, if 
applicable. 

Page 106



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 9 
 

8.6 Street Lighting.  To the extent any improvements pursuant to this 
Agreement include street lighting, the Parties shall cooperate in the formation of a City 
municipal service benefit unit for the Property to maintain the annual cost of such street 
lighting not maintained by the Authority. 

9. Owners’ Agent.  Owners shall designate an agent to exercise any of 
Owners' rights under this Agreement and any of the other related matters including but 
not limited to (i) receipt of Road Impact Fee Credits and (ii) receipt of the tax trust fund 
funds, or (iii) other cost sharing mechanisms from the City for Project Costs.  Owners 
hereby designate EMERSON MMI-INT, LLC, a Florida limited liability company, as its 
Owners’ Agent.  The City may rely upon any and all directions from the Designated 
Agent on behalf of the Owners unless and until such time as Owners either remove the 
Owners’ Agent or appoint a successor.  Notwithstanding any sale of all or any portions 
of the Property, Owners shall retain entitlement to cost sharing of the Project Costs with 
the City (via Owner’s Agent), potential allocation of Road Impact Fee Credits, or any 
other rights and benefits pursuant to this Agreement, unless and until Owners or 
Owners’ Agent provide the City written notice of an assignment of all or any such rights 
to a third party or third parties. 

10. Notice. Any notice or other communication permitted or required to be 
given hereunder by one Party to the other shall be in writing and shall be either (i) hand 
delivered, or (ii) sent by electronic transmission with proof of electronic transmission 
retained by the sending Party, or (iii) sent by reputable private courier service (e.g., 
Federal Express, Express Mail, Airborne, United Parcel Service, or Emery Air), or (iv) 
mailed by registered or certified U.S. mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to 
the Party entitled or required to receive the same at the address specified below or at 
such other address as may hereafter be designated in writing by any such Party, to wit: 

 

As to Emerson I : 

 
 
 
 
 
With a Copy to: 

Emerson Point Assoc., LLLP 
Attn: Michael Wright  
1350 N. Orange Ave, Suite 250 
Winter Park, FL 32789 
Phone:  (407) 385-0664 
Email: mike@MMI.com 

 
Ted B. Edwards, Esquire 
Law Office of Ted B. Edwards, P.A.  
1350 Orange Ave, Suite 260 
Winter Park, FL 32789 
Phone:  (407) 340-9284 
Email:  TEdwards@TEdwardslaw.com 
 
 

As to Emerson II: 
 
 

Emerson Point Phase II, LLC 
Attn: Michael Wright  
1350 N. Orange Ave, Suite 250 

Page 107



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 10 
 

 
 
 
 
With a Copy to: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As to MMI-INT: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
With a Copy to: 

Winter Park, FL 32789 
Phone:  (407) 385-0664 

Email: mike@MMI.com 
 
Ted B. Edwards, Esquire 
Law Office of Ted B. Edwards, P.A.  
1350 Orange Ave, Suite 260 
Winter Park, FL 32789 
Phone:  (407) 340-9284 
Email:  TEdwards@TEdwardslaw.com 
 
Emerson MMI-INT, LLC 
Attn: Michael Wright  
1350 N. Orange Ave, Suite 250 
Winter Park, FL 32789 
Phone:  (407) 385-0664 
Email: Bill@MMI.com 
 
Ted B. Edwards, Esquire 
Law Office of Ted B. Edwards, P.A.  
1350 Orange Ave, Suite 260 
Winter Park, FL 32789 
Phone:  (407) 340-9284 
Email:  TEdwards@TEdwardslaw.com 
 
 
 

As to City of Apopka: 
 
 
 
 
 
With a Copy to: 

The City of Apopka 
120 East Main Street 
Apopka, Florida 32703 
Phone:  (407) 703-1700 
Email:   girby@apopka.net 
 
Clifford B. Shepard, Esquire 
Shepard, Smith & Cassady, P.A. 
2300 Maitland Center Parkway, Suite 100 
Maitland, FL 32751 
Phone:  (407) 622-1772 
Email:  cshepard@shepardfirm.com 

 
 

11. Covenants Running with the Land.  This Agreement shall run with the 
Property and shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit and detriment of the 
legal representatives, successors, and assigns of Owners and any person, firm, 
corporation, or other entity that may become the successor in interest to the Property or 
any Parcel.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, the authority to instruct City to 
provide any Road Impact Fee Credits or receive cost-sharing of Project Costs shall 
remain with Owners via Owners’ Agent, as provided herein, unless expressly assigned 

Page 108



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 11 
 

in writing to another party by Owners’ Agent, and then only to the extent of such 
assignment. 

12. Limitation of Remedies.  City and Owners expressly agree that the 
consideration, in part, for each of them entering into this Agreement is the willingness of 
the other to limit the remedies for all actions arising out of or in connection with this 
Agreement. 

12.1 Limitations on City’s remedies.  Upon any failure by Owners or 
Owners’ Agent to perform its obligations under this Agreement, City shall be limited 
strictly to only the following remedies: 

(a) action for specific performance or injunction; or 

(b) the right to set off, against the amounts of Project Costs to 
be shared by the City pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the cost 
to City of performing any action or actions required to be done under this Agreement by 
Owners, but which Owners have failed or refused to do when required; or 

(c) any combination of the foregoing. 

12.2 Limitations on Owners’ remedies.  Upon any failure by City to 
perform its obligations under this Agreement, Owners or Owners’ Agent shall be limited 
strictly to only the following remedies: 

(a) action for specific performance or writ of mandamus; or 

(b) action for injunction; or 

(c) action for declaratory judgment regarding the rights and 
obligations of Owners and Owners’ Agent; or 

(d) any combination of the foregoing. 

 The Parties expressly waive their respective rights to sue for damages 
of any type for breach of, or default under, this Agreement by the other.  Both Parties 
expressly agree that each Party shall bear the cost of its own attorney fees for any 
action arising out of or in connection with this Agreement.  Venue for any actions 
initiated under or in connection with this Agreement shall be in the Circuit Court of the 
Ninth Judicial Circuit in and for Orange County, Florida. 
 

13. Recordation of Agreement.  An executed original of this Agreement 
shall be recorded, at Owners’ expense, in the Public Records of Orange County, 
Florida, within thirty (30) days after the Effective Date. 

14. Applicable Law.  This Agreement and the provisions contained herein 
shall be construed, controlled, and interpreted according to the laws of the State of 
Florida. 

Page 109



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 12 
 

15. Further Documentation.  The Parties agree that at any time following a 
request therefor by the other Party, each shall execute and deliver to the other Party 
such further documents and instruments reasonably necessary to confirm and/or 
effectuate the obligations of either Party hereunder and the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated hereby. 

 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to 
be duly executed by their respective duly authorized representatives on the dates set 
forth below. 
 

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA  
By:  Apopka City Council 
 
 
By:   

Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
 
Date:   

 
 
ATTEST:  Linda F. Goff  
As Clerk of the City of Apopka 
 
 
By:   

City Clerk 
 

Page 110



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 13 
 

 

 

 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ___________, 
2015, by Joseph E. Kilsheimer, as Mayor of the CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, a 
Florida municipal corporation.  He/she is personally known to me or has produced 
______________________________ as identification. 

 
 
   
Signature of Notary Public 
 
   
Typed name of Notary Public 
 

 
[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 

 
 
 
 
 
Witnesses: 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Print Name:    
 
    
Print Name:    
 
 
 

“EMERSON I” 
 
EMERSON POINT ASSOC., LLLP a 
Florida limited liability limited partnership 
 
 
By:   
Print Name: Michael E. Wright 
Title: General Partner 
 
 
Date:      
 

 

Page 111



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 14 
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ___________, 
2015, by Michael E. Wright, as General Partner for EMERSON POINT ASSOC., LLLP, 
a Florida limited liability limited partnership, on behalf of the partnership.  He is 
personally known to me or has produced ___________________________________ 
as identification. 

 
   
Signature of Notary Public 
 
   
Typed name of Notary Public 
 

 
[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON FOLLOWING PAGES] 

  

Page 112



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 15 
 

Witnesses: 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Print Name:    
 
    
Print Name:    
 
 

“EMERSON II” 
 
EMERSON POINT PHASE II, LLC  a 
Florida limited liability company  
 
 
By:   
Print Name:  Michael E. Wright 
Title:  Manager 
 
Date:      
 

   
Print Name:    
 
    
Print Name:    
 
 

By:   
Print Name:  Mary L. Demetree 
Title:  Manager 
 
Date:      
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ___________, 
2015, by Michael E. Wright, as Manager for EMERSON POINT PHASE II, LLC, a 
Florida limited liability company, on behalf of the company.  He is personally known to 
me or has produced ___________________________________ as identification. 

 
   
Signature of Notary Public 
 
   
Typed name of Notary Public 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ___________, 
2015, by Mary L. Demetree, as Manager for EMERSON POINT PHASE II, LLC, a 
Florida limited liability company, on behalf of the company.  She is personally known to 
me or has produced ___________________________________ as identification. 

 
   
Signature of Notary Public 
 
   
Typed name of Notary Public 

Witnesses: “OWNERS’ AGENT” 

Page 113



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 16 
 

 
 
 
 
 
   
Print Name:    
 
    
Print Name:    
 
 

 
EMERSON MMI-INT, LLC  a Florida 
limited liability company  
 
 
By:   
Print Name:  Michael E. Wright 
Title:  Manager 
 
Date:      
 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF ORANGE 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of ___________, 
2015, by Michael E. Wright, as Manager for EMERSON MMI-INT, LLC, a Florida limited 
liability company, on behalf of the company.  He is personally known to me or has 
produced ___________________________________ as identification. 

 
   
Signature of Notary Public 
 
   
Typed name of Notary Public 

  

Page 114



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 17 
 

 
Composite Exhibit “A” 
Project Location Map 

 

Page 115



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 18 
 

Composite Exhibit “B” 
Property Legal Descriptions 

 
  

Page 116



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 19 
 

 
  

Page 117



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 20 
 

 

Page 118



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 21 
 

 
  

Page 119



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 22 
 

Exhibit “C” 
Berenis to Knudson Letter of July 24, 2014 

 

Page 120



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 23 
 

 
  

Page 121



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 24 
 

 
  

Page 122



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 25 
 

 
  

Page 123



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 26 
 

 
  

Page 124



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 27 
 

Exhibit “D” 
Conceptual Improvements Plan  

 

 
 

Page 125



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 28 
 

Exhibit “E” 
Surrounding Lands  

 

Page 126



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 29 
 

Exhibit “F” 
Representative Scope of Development 

 
Emerson I Multifamily:  544 units 

Emerson I Commercial:  75,000 square feet 
 
Emerson II Multifamily:  272+ units 
Emerson II Commercial:  350,000 square feet. 
  

Page 127



Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement 

 

 30 
 

 
Exhibit “G” 

Budget 

 

Page 128



Page 129 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

7. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-14 - To amend the capital improvement plan (CIP), reflecting 

improvements to Alonzo Williams Park. 

  

Page 129



 

 

      CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  

CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: August 5, 2015 
PUBLIC HEARING FROM:   Administration 
SPECIAL HEARING EXHIBITS:  
OTHER:   

  
  
SUBJECT:   
 
 
REQUEST:    ADOPT RESOLUTION 2015-14 TO AMEND THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT  

PLAN (CIP) REFLECTING IMPROVEMNTS TO ALONZO WILLIAMS PARK 
 
 
 
SUMMARY:   
 
The FRDAP is a competitive grant program, providing funds for the acquisition or development of  
land for outdoor public recreation.  It is administered by FDEP and available to municipalities,  
counties and other entities with the legal responsibility of providing public outdoor recreation.   
Applications are submitted to FDEP no later than August 14, 2015, for evaluation, and assigned  
a score.  Based on those scores, a priority list is prepared and submitted to the Florida Legislature  
for funding consideration. 
 
Amendments to the CIP are a requirement to receive funds which will include $28,000 in renovations  
and $22,000 of new construction. 
 
Renovations 
 Playground – Additional Surface Materials   $1,000 
 Basketball Court – Resurfacing   $20,000 
 Baseball Field – Irrigation    $3,000 
 Drinking Fountain – Replace Existing  $2,000 
 Picnic Facilities – Table/Barbeque Grill  $2,000 
New Construction     
 Playground – Additional Equipment   $10,000 
 Security Lighting     $10,000 
 Picnic Facilities      $2,000 
 
The City is requesting $50,000 in no-match grant funding, for renovations and new construction of  
facilities at the Alonzo Williams Park.  

 
 

Resolution 2015-14 
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-14 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
(FDEP) & FLORIDA RECREATION DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE 
PROGRAM (FRDAP) 
 
 

     

Page 130



 

 

 
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2015-14, amending Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for improvements to Alonzo 
Williams Park. 
 
 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director 
Commissioners     HR Director   City Clerk 
City Administrator    IT Director   Fire Chief 
Community Development Director  Police Chief    

Page 131



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-14 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN 
APPLICATION FOR THE FLORIDA RECREATION 
DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (FRDAP) TO THE 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
FOR FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Apopka desires to submit an application to the Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection for a Florida Recreation Development 
Assistance Program Grant to benefit the local residents. 
 
WHEREAS, there is a present and growing need for outdoor recreation opportunities 
among persons of all ages within the City of Apopka, Florida corporate limits and among 
those visiting the area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City recognizes this need for additional recreational opportunities; and  
 
WHEREAS, meeting the increasing demand for, recreation opportunities can best be 
met with the improvements to Alonzo Williams Park as detailed in the application for 
funding in which the City is submitting an application in the August 14, 2015 application 
cycle requesting $50,000.00 in grant funds. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of Apopka 
as follows: 
 

1. That the City of Apopka hereby authorizes the filing of an application for a Florida 
Recreation Development Assistance Program Grant; and 
 

2. That the Mayor of the City of Apopka is hereby authorized to execute all 
documents required in connection with the filing of said application to be 
submitted on August 14, 2015. 
 

3. That as part of the application for the Florida Recreational Development 
Assistance Program (FRDAP) grant, the Capital Improvements Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan of the City of Apopka, Florida will be amended to include 
the improvements of Alonzo Williams Park in the City of Apopka, if the project is 
funded in the 2016 – 2017 application cycle. 

 
 
Approved by the City Commission of the City of Apopka, Florida, on this 5th day of 
August, 2015. 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Linda F. Goff, CMC, City Clerk 

Page 132



Page 133 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

8. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-15 - To amend the capital improvement plan (CIP), reflecting 

improvements to Kit Land Nelson Park. 

  

Page 133



 

 

      CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  

CONSENT AGENDA MEETING OF: August 5, 2015 
PUBLIC HEARING FROM:   Administration 
SPECIAL HEARING EXHIBITS:    
OTHER:   

  
  
SUBJECT:   
 
 
REQUEST:    ADOPT RESOLUTION 2015-15 TO AMEND THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT  

PLAN (CIP) REFLECTING IMPROVEMNTS TO KIT LAND NELSON PARK 
 
 
 
SUMMARY:   
 
The FRDAP is a competitive grant program, providing funds for the acquisition or development  
of land for outdoor public recreation.  It is administered by FDEP and available to municipalities,  
counties and other entities with the legal responsibility of providing public outdoor recreation.   
Applications are submitted to FDEP no later than August 14, 2015, for evaluation, and assigned  
a score.  Based on those scores, a priority list is prepared and submitted to the Florida Legislature  
for funding consideration. 
 
Amendments to the CIP are a requirement to receive funds which will include $7,500 in renovations 
and $42,500 of new construction. 
 
Renovations 
 Playground – Additional Surface Materials   $2,500 
 Tennis Court – Net      $1,000 
 Drinking Fountain – Replace Existing  $2,000 
 Picnic Facilities     $2,000 
New Construction     
 Playground – Additional Equipment   $30,000 
 Bike Rack      $2,500 
 Picnic Facilities      $10,000 
 
The City is requesting $50,000 in no-match grant funding, for renovations and new construction of  
facilities at the Kit Land Nelson Park. 

 
 
 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:   

Resolution 2015-15 
  RESOLUTION NO. 2015-15     

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
(FDEP) AND FLORIDA RECREATION DEVELOPMENT  
ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (FRDAP) 
 
 

     

Page 134



 

 

 
N/A 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2015-14, amending Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for improvements to  
Kit Land Nelson Park. 
 
 
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director 
Commissioners     HR Director   City Clerk 
City Administrator    IT Director   Fire Chief 
Community Development Director  Police Chief    

Page 135



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-15 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN 
APPLICATION FOR THE FLORIDA RECREATION 
DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (FRDAP) TO THE 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 
FOR FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Apopka desires to submit an application to the Florida 
Department of Environmental Protection for a Florida Recreation Development 
Assistance Program Grant to benefit the local residents.   
 
WHEREAS, there is a present and growing need for outdoor recreation opportunities 
among persons of all ages within the City of Apopka, Florida corporate limits and among 
those visiting the area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City recognizes this need for additional recreational opportunities; and  
 
WHEREAS, meeting the increasing demand for, recreation opportunities can best be 
met with the improvements to Kit Land Nelson Park as detailed in the application for 
funding in which the City is submitting an application in the August 14, 2015 application 
cycle requesting $50,000.00 in grant funds. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Commission of the City of Apopka 
as follows: 
 

1. That the City of Apopka hereby authorizes the filing of an application for a 
Florida Recreation Development Assistance Program Grant; and 
 

2. That the Mayor of the City of Apopka is hereby authorized to execute all 
documents required in connection with the filing of said application to be 
submitted on August 14, 2015. 

 
3. That as part of the application for the Florida Recreational Development 

Assistance Program (FRDAP) grant, the Capital Improvements Element of 
the Comprehensive Plan of the City of Apopka, Florida will be amended to 
include the improvements to Kit Land Nelson Park in the City of Apopka, if 
the project is funded in the 2016 – 2017 application cycle. 

 
Approved by the City Commission of the City of Apopka, Florida, on this 5th day of 
August, 2015. 
 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Linda F. Goff, CMC, City Clerk 
 

Page 136



Page 137 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2442 - FIRST READING - CHANGE OF ZONING – Ponkan Road 

Properties, LLC, from “County” A-1 (ZIP) (Agriculture) to “City” AG-E (Agricultural 

Estates), for property located south of West Ponkan Road, west of Plymouth Sorrento 

Road. (Parcel ID #: 25-20-27-0000-00-003) 

  

Page 137



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  July 14, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance        Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map  
           Ordinance No. 2442 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2442 - CHANGE OF ZONING - PONKIN ROAD 
PROPERTY, LLC 

    
Request: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2442 - CHANGE OF ZONING - 

PONKIN ROAD PROPERTY, LLC - FROM “COUNTY” A-1 
(ZIP)(AGRICULTURE) TO “CITY” AG-E (AGRICULTURE ESTATES); 
AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF AUGUST 
19, 2015. (PARCEL ID #  25-20-27-0000-00-003) 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Ponkin Road Property, LLC 
 
LOCATION:   South of West Ponkan Road, west of Plymouth Sorrento Road  
 
EXISTING USE:  Single-family home 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Residential Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) 
 
ZONING:   “County” A-1 (ZIP) (Agriculture) 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING:   AG-E (min. lot area of 2.5 acres) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Cellular telecommunications tower 
 
TRACT SIZE:   7.28 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  1 Residential Units 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 3 Residential Units 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director    Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby   IT Director     Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director   Police Chief   
 

G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\REZONING\2015\Ponkan Road LLC ZON\Planning Commission\Ponkin Rd Property LLC – CC 8-5-15 1st Rd 

 Page 138



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 5, 2015 
PONKIN ROAD PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

 

The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 17, 2014, through the adoption of 

Ordinance No. 2395.  The proposed zoning change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area and 

the subject parcels are vacant.  The applicant has requested the AG-E zoning to assure that the 7.28-acre parcel 

can be consistent with the Residential Low Suburban future land use designation.  The property owner intends 

to use the property for a cellular telecommunications tower, which will require a separate special exception 

application to address the site and other requirements for a telecommunications tower within the AG-E zoning 

district, pursuant to Sec. 75-27 of the Apopka Code of Ordinances. 

 

Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support this 

zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed AG-E rezoning is consistent with the proposed 

Future Land Use Designation of Residential Low Suburban (up to two units per acre) for this property.   

Minimum lot size for property assigned the AG-E zoning category is 2.5 acres.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed rezoning will not result in an increase in the number of 

residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  A capacity enhancement agreement with 

OCPS is not necessary because the impacts on schools will be de minimus.  

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on June 12, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

July 14, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

August 5, 2015- City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

August 19, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

June 26, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

August 7, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad/¼ Page w/Map Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the change in Zoning from “County” A-1 

(ZIP) to “City” AG-E for the parcel owned by Ponkin Road Property, LLC. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on July 14, 2015, recommended approval (7-0) of the change in 

Zoning from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” AG-E for the parcel owned by Ponkin Road Property, LLC. 

 

Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2442 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on August 

19, 2015. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 
Page 139



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 5, 2015 
PONKIN ROAD PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

 
ZONING REPORT 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) 
Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) 

A-1 (ZIP) 
A-1 

Vacant Residential & Manufactured home 

East (City) & 
(County) 

Residential Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) 
Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) 

A-1 (ZIP) 
A-1 

Warehousing & Single-family home 

South (City) Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) A-1 Vacant 

West (County) Rural (0-2 du/ac) A-1 (ZIP) Vacant Residential 

 
LAND USE & TRAFFIC 
COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (W Ponkan Road). 
 
 The zoning application covers approximately 7.28 acres. The property owner intends 

to use the property for one (1) single-family residence. 
  
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed AG-E zoning is consistent with the City’s Residential Low Suburban 

(0-2 du/ac) Future Land Use designation and with the character of the surrounding 
area and future proposed development.  Per Section 2.02.01, Table II-1, of the Land 
Development Code, AG zoning is one of the acceptable zoning districts allowed 
within the Residential Low Density Future Land Use designation.   Development 
Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the adopted Future Land Use 
Designation. 

 
AG-E DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 2,200 sq. ft. 

Minimum Site Area: 2.5 acres 

Minimum Lot Width 150 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 45 ft. 

 Rear: 50 ft. 

 Side: 35 ft. 

 Corner 35 ft. 
 
Based on the above zoning standards, the existing 7.28 acre parcel complies with 
code requirements for the AG-E district. 

 
BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS: Developments shall provide a minimum six-foot high brick or stone finished wall 

adjacent to all external roadways, erected inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped 
bufferyard.  Landscape materials shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way, on the 
exterior of the buffer wall. 

ALLOWABLE USES:  Single-family dwellings providing they are consistent with the stated purpose of the 
AG-E zoning district.  Commercial wholesale foliage plant production nurseries, 
livestock barnes and stables, crop and animal production and support buildings. 

 Page 140



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 5, 2015 
PONKIN ROAD PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 
 
 
 

Ponkin Road Property, LLC 
7.28 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  1 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 3 dwelling units 

Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 

To: “City” AG-E 

Parcel ID #s: 25-20-27-0000-00-003 
 

VICINITY MAP 

  

Subject 
Property 

Page 141



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 5, 2015 
PONKIN ROAD PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 
 
 

 

  

Page 142



CITY COUNCIL – AUGUST 5, 2015 
PONKIN ROAD PROPERTY LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 143



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2442 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP)(AGRICULTURE) TO “CITY” 

AG-E (AGRICULTURE ESTATES) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF WEST PONKAN ROAD, WEST OF 

PLYMOUTH SORRENTO ROAD, COMPRISING 7.28 ACRES MORE OR 

LESS, AND OWNED BY PONKIN ROAD PROPERTY, LLC; PROVIDING 

FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 

of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 

City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 

identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed AG-E zoning has been found to be consistent with the City of 

Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated 

in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby AG-E as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code. 

 

 Legal Description: 

 

THE SOUTH ½ OF THE NORTH ½ OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ OF THE 

NORTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 25, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 27 EAST, 

(LESS COMMENCE AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER THEN RUN S00-06-25W 

663.89 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH ½ OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ OF 

THE NORTHEAST ¼ THENCE S89-59-56W 952.6 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING THENCE CONTINUTE S89-59-56W 393.39 FEET TO A POINT 

ON THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST ½ OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ THENCE N00-

11-22W 334.1 FEET TO THE POINT ON SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH ½ OF 

THE NORTHWEST ¼ OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ 

THENCE S89-56-51E 394.23 FEET THENCE S00-02-39E 333.73 FEET TO THE 

POINT OF BEGINNING PER PLAT BOOK 10780, PAGE 6579, ORANGE 

COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

Parcel I.D.: 25-20-27-0000-00-003  

Contains: 7.28 +/- Acres 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

Page 144



ORDINANCE NO. 2442 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.  The Community Development Director shall not accept an 

application for a development plan until such time the property owner addresses school capacity 

enhancement review with Orange County Public Schools. 

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 

to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 

force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance.   

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 
 
 

                       
 
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: June 26, 2015 
    August 7, 2015 

READ FIRST TIME:   
August 5, 2015 

READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     August 19, 2015 

Page 145



Page 146 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

2. ORDINANCE NO. 2443 - FIRST READING - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL 

SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – VSI Custom Homes, from “County” 

Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) to “City” Residential Low (0-5 du/ac), for property 

located south of East 6th Street, west of Orange Blossom Trail. (Parcel ID #s: 10-21-

28-8652-07-010 & 10-21-28-8652-08-060) 

  

Page 146



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  August 5, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance         Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Uses Map 
           Ordinance No. 2443 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2443 - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - SMALL SCALE - 
FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT - VSI CUSTOM HOMES 

     
Request: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2443 - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

- SMALL SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT - VSI CUSTOM 
HOMES FROM “COUNTY” LOW DESNITY RESIDENTIAL (0-4 DU/AC) 
TO “CITY” RESIDENTIAL LOW (0-5 DU/AC); AND HOLD OVER FOR 
SECOND READING & ADOPTION ON AUGUST 19, 2015. (PARCEL ID 
#S: 10-21-28-8652-07-010 & 10-21-28-8652-08-060) 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
APPLICANT:   Jim Hall - Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, Inc. (VHB) 
 
OWNER:   VSI Custom Homes 
 
LOCATION: South of E 6

th
 Street, west of Orange Blossom Trail 

 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” R-2 (ZIP) (“City” R-2 proposed) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Single-family home or duplex 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING: “City” R-2 (Note: this Future Land Use Map amendment request is being 

processed along with a request to change the Zoning Map designation from 
“County” R-2 (ZIP) to “City” R-2.) 

 
TRACT SIZE:   3.6 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 14 Units 
    PROPOSED: 18 Units 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Dir. 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Dir.     Police Chief   

 
 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Small Scale\2015\VSI Custom Home – 742 & 804 E 6th St - FLU CC 08-05-15 1st Rd 
 

Page 147



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

VSI CUSTOM HOMES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 
The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on December 7, 2007, through the adoption of 

Ordinance No. 1898.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the 

owner/applicant.  Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be processed 

as a small-scale amendment.  Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 

 

A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Residential Low is compatible with the designations 

assigned to abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 3.6 acres. The property owner 

intends to use the site for a residential development.    

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 

with the Rural Settlement Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed R-2 Zoning classification.  Site 

development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed rezoning will not result in an increase in the number of 

residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  A capacity enhancement agreement with 

OCPS is not necessary because the impacts on schools will be de minimus.  

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on June 12, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

July 14, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

August 5, 2015- City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

August 19, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

June 26, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

August 7, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad w/Map/¼ Page w/Map Ad 
_____________________________________________+___________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and  recommends approval of the change in Future Land Use from “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) to “City” 
Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) for the property owned by VSI Custom Homes. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on July 14, 2015, recommended approval (7-0) of the change in 
Future Land Use from “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) to “City” Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac) for the property 
owned by VSI Custom Homes. 
 

Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2443, and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on August 

19, 2015. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

Page 148



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

VSI CUSTOM HOMES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

                                                                                                                                                                          

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Institutional/Public Use PO/I & C-2 R-O-W & stormwater/retention pond 

East (City) Commercial C-2 Single-family home 

South (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-1 (ZIP) Single-family home 

West (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-1AA Single-family home 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is compatible with this development of low 
density residential.  The property lies south of East 6

th
 Street and west of Orange Blossom Trail. 

 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 

 Area of Critical State Concern: No 

 DRI / FQD: No 

 

 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 

October 26, 2004.  The subject property is not located within “Core Area” of the JPA.   

 

 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 

Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin Study Area, the 

subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is consistent with the 

adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 

reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 

Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the 

following policies: 

 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 

 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 

 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 

Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are no karst features on this property. 

 

 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The Property fronts East 6
th

 St.  The vegetative communities 

present are urban; the soils present are Candler fine sand; and no wetlands occur on the site, and the terrain has 

a 5-12 percent slope. 

 

 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.e Residential 

Low Future Land Use designation. 

 

 Page 149



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

VSI CUSTOM HOMES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land 

use designation for the Property is Rural Settlement (0-1 du/5 ac).  Based on the housing element of the City's 

Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population.   

 

CALCULATIONS: 

ADOPTED (City designation): 14 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 37 persons 

PROPOSED (City designation): 18 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 48 persons 

 

 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 

Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 

Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This site 

is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan application.   

 

 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 

3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ;   81 GPD/Capita; 

 81 GPD / Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka                  

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  2744 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  3528 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 

 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 177 GPD/Capita; 

 177 GPD/Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka   

 
Page 150



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

VSI CUSTOM HOMES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  6356 GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  8172 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area: No           

 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

City of Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  148 lbs./person/day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  192 lbs./person/day 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 

Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21.981 GPD 

 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696 GPD 

 Page 151



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

VSI CUSTOM HOMES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property:  No 

 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: Martins Pond 

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  25 year - 96 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 25 year - 96 hour design storm  

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.111 AC 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.144 AC 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 

approval. 

  

Page 152



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

VSI CUSTOM HOMES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

VSI Custom Homes, LLC 
3.6 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  14 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 18 dwelling units 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) 

To: “City” Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 
Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” R-2 (ZIP) 

To: “City” R-2 

Parcel ID #: 10-21-28-8652-07-010 & 10-21-28-8652-08-060 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

Page 153



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

VSI CUSTOM HOMES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 
 
 

 

  

Page 154



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

VSI CUSTOM HOMES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 155



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

VSI CUSTOM HOMES - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 
 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 

Page 156



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2443 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” LOW 

DESNITY RESIDENTIAL (0-4 DU/AC) TO “CITY” RESIDENTIAL LOW 

(0-5 DU/AC),  FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 

LOCATED SOUTH OF E 6TH STREET, WEST OF ORANGE BLOSSOM 

TRAIL, COMPRISING 3.6 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY 

VSI CUSTOM HOMES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, 
Florida Statutes and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2402 on January 7, 2015; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent.  This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and 
intent of, and exercise the authority set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning 
and Land Development Regulation Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element.  Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use 
Element of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance 
No. 2402, is amended in its entirety to change the land use from “County” Low Density 
Residential (0-4 du/ac) to “City” Residential Low (0-5 du/ac), for certain real property generally 
located south of East 6

th
 Street, west of Orange Blossom Trail, comprising 3.6 acres more or less, 

(Parcel Nos. 10-21-28-8652-07-010 & 10-21-28-8652-08-060; as further described in Exhibit 
“A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect.  The applicability and effect of the City of 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as provided by the Local Government Comprehensive 
Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida 
Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability.  If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by 
any court of competent jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all 
remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 
 

Page 157



 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2443 
PAGE 2 
 
 
 Section VI. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
        day of                , 2015. 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
August 5, 2015 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
August 19, 2015 

 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: June 26, 2015 

      August 7, 2015 

 

Page 158



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
ORDINANCE NO. 2443 

 
VSI Custom Homes 

3.6 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  14 dwelling unit 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 18 dwelling unit 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 

From: “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) 
To: “City” Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 

Parcel ID #s: 10-21-28-8652-07-010 & 10-21-28-8652-08-060 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

Page 159



Page 160 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

3. ORDINANCE NO. 2444 -FIRST READING - CHANGE OF ZONING – VSI Custom 

Homes, from “County” R-2 (ZIP) to “City” R-2, for property located south of East 6th 

Street, west of Orange Blossom Trail. (Parcel ID #s: 10-21-28-8652-07-010 & 10-21-

28-8652-08-060) 

  

Page 160



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  August 5, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance        Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Uses Map 
           Ordinance No. 2444  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 2444 - CHANGE OF ZONING - VSI CUSTOM HOMES  
     
Request: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2444 - CHANGE OF ZONING - 

VSI CUSTOM HOMES, FROM “COUNTY” R-2 (ZIP) (RESIDENTIAL) 
TO “CITY” R-2 (RESIDENTIAL); AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND 

READING AND ADOPTION. (PARCEL ID #S: 10-21-28-8652-07-010 & 10-21-
28-8652-08-060 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
APPLICANT:   Jim Hall - Vanasse Hangen Brustlin, Inc. (VHB) 
 
OWNER:   VSI Custom Homes 
 
LOCATION:   South of East 6

th
 Street, west of Orange Blossom Trail 

 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) 
 
PROPOSED 
LAND USE: “City” Residential Low (0- 5 du/ac) (Note: this Change of Zoning amendment 

request is being processed along with a request to change the Future Land Use 
Map designation from “County” Low Density Residential to “City” Residential 
Low (0-5 du/ac). 

 
ZONING:   “County” R-2 (ZIP) (Residential) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” R-2 (min. lot area of 7,500 sq. ft. for single-family homes or 15,000 sq. ft.  

for duplex) 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Single-family or duplex residential development 
 
TRACT SIZE:   3.6 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  14 Residential Units 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 18 Residential Units 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director    Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby   IT Director     Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\REZONING\2015\VSI Custom Homes\Planning Commission\VSI Custom Homes – 742 & 804 E 6th St – CC 8-5-15 1st Rd 
 

Page 161



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 
VSI CUSTOM HOMES – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

 

Presently, the subject properties have not yet been assigned a “City” Future Land Use Designation or a “City” 

zoning category.  Applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning category to the subject properties that is 

comparable to that which was already assigned by Orange County government – R-2 residential.   

 

The subject properties were annexed into the City of Apopka on December 7, 2007, through the adoption of 

Ordinance No. 1898.  The proposed zoning change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area and 

the subject parcels are vacant.  The applicant has requested the R-2 zoning to assure that the property can be 

developed for single-family or duplex residential. The property comprises approximately 3.6 acres. 

 

The subject properties are located within the Downtown Development Overlay district.  Any future residential 

development would be subject to the development design standards for this overlay district (see Exhibit A for 

applicable conditions). 

 

Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support this 

zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed R-2 rezoning is consistent with the proposed 

Future Land Use Designation of Residential Low (up to five units per acre) for this property.   Minimum lot size 

for property assigned the R-2 zoning category is 7,500 sq. ft. for single-family homes and 15,000 sq. ft. for 

duplex development.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed rezoning will result in a minimal increase in the number of 

residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  Because increase is considered deminimus 

(i.e., net increase of 9 or fewer units), the School Planning Agreement designates the school impact as 

deminimus, exempting this application from School Capacity Enhancement review.  A preliminary or final 

development plan will be subject to school concurrency review. 

  

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on June 12, 2015. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

July 14, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

August 5, 2015 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

August 19, 2015 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

June 26, 2015 – Public Notice and Notification 

August 7, 2015 – Ordinance Heading Ad/¼ Page w/Map Ad 

  

Page 162



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 
VSI CUSTOM HOMES – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the change in zoning from “County” R-2 (ZIP) 

to “City” R-2 for the parcel owned by VSI Custom Homes. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on July 14, 2015, recommended denial (7-0) of change in zoning 

from “County” R-2 (ZIP) to “City” R-2 for the parcel owned by VSI Custom Homes; and recommended 

approval (7-0) of the change in zoning from “County” R-2 (ZIP) to “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-

2) with the conditions that duplexes are not permitted to be built and the density be no more than four (4) units 

per acre, for the parcels owned by VSI Custom Homes. 

 

Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2444 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on August 

19, 2015. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

Page 163



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 
VSI CUSTOM HOMES – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 

 
ZONING REPORT 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

North (City) Institutional/Public Use PO/I & C-2 R-O-W & stormwater/retention pond 

East (City) Commercial C-2 Single-family home 

South (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-1 (ZIP) Single-family home 

West (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-1AA Single-family home 

North (City) Institutional/Public Use PO/I & C-2 R-O-W & stormwater/retention pond 

 
LAND USE & TRAFFIC 
COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (E 6

th
 Street). 

 
 The zoning application covers approximately 3.6 acres. The property owner intends to 

use the property for residential development. 
COMPREHENSIVE  
PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed R-2 zoning is consistent with the City’s Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 

Future Land Use designation and with the character of the surrounding area and future 
proposed development.  Per Section 2.02.01, Table II-1, of the Land Development 
Code, R-2 zoning is one of the acceptable zoning districts allowed within the 
Residential Low Density Future Land Use designation.   Development Plans shall not 
exceed the density allowed in the adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

 
R-2 DISTRICT 
REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,350 sq. ft. (Single-family or Duplex) 

Minimum Site Area: 7,500 sq. ft. (Single-family) 

15,000 sq. ft. (Duplex) 

Minimum Lot Width 70 ft. (Single-family) 

140 ft. (Duplex) 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft. 

 Rear: 20 ft. 

 Side: 7.5 ft. (Single-family) 

10 ft. (Duplex) 

 Corner 25 ft. 
 
Based on the above zoning standards, the existing 3.6 acre parcels comply with code 
requirements for the R-2 district. 

BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS: Developments shall provide a six-foot high brick, stone or decorative block finished 

wall adjacent to all external roadways, erected inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped 
bufferyard.  Landscape materials shall be placed adjacent to the right-of-way on the 
exterior of the buffer wall.  The city may allow the developer the option to provide up 
to 50 percent of the buffer wall length in a six-foot wrought iron fence between solid 
columns.  The columns shall be a minimum of 32 feet off-set and shall have a stone, 
brick, or decorative block finish. 

ALLOWABLE USES:  One and two-family dwelling structures, including customary accessory structures 
and Uses in accordance with article VII of Land Development Code. One-family 
garage apartment providing the principal building is a one-family dwelling unit. 

Page 164



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 
VSI CUSTOM HOMES – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 
 
 

VSI Custom Homes, LLC 
3.6 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development:  14 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 18 dwelling units 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) 

To: “City” Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 
Proposed Zoning Change 
From: “County” R-2 (ZIP) 

To: “City” R-2 

Parcel ID #: 10-21-28-8652-07-010 & 10-21-28-8652-08-060 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

 

SUBJECT  

PROPERTIES 

Page 165



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 
VSI CUSTOM HOMES – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 
 

 

  

Page 166



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 
VSI CUSTOM HOMES – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 167



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 
VSI CUSTOM HOMES – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 

 

 

 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

„Exhibit A‟ – Downtown Development Overlay Zoning District Residential Design (Sec. 3.03.00 Part H) 

  
Page 168



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 
VSI CUSTOM HOMES – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 

 

H. Residential design. 

 

1. All new residential homes within the downtown development overly zoning district shall meet the 

following style criteria: 

 

 Tudor 

 Victorian 

 Cape Code 

 Colonial 

 “Florida Vernacular” 

 Plantation 

 Other architecture design styles which are in keeping with the history of Apopka, as approved by the 

city’s redevelopment advisory board. 

 

2. Primary residential entries shall face the street and shall not be recessed more than six feet from the face 

of the primary façade. 

 

3. All residential façade must have a minimum of two different building materials to provide sufficient 

architectural diversity. 

 

4. The addition of at least one of the following should be incorporated in the design and layout of the 

home: porch, veranda, patio, terrace, balcony or sitting area not obstructing doorway entrances. 

 

5. Porches may extend six feet into the front yard setback if it is at least six feet deep and comprises a 

minimum of 30 percent of the façade. 

 

6. Roofing material shall be wood shingles, slate, tile, sheet metal or asphalt shingles that resemble 

traditional materials. 

 

I. Residential lot sizes.  Within the downtown development overlay zoning district a number of the lots were 

platted as part of the historic Town of Apopka subdivision with minimum lot sizes at 50 feet in width and lot 

area at 7,500 square feet.  These types of lot sizes tend to be located within the established R-1 zoning 

district.  In keeping with the traditional lot sizes within the R-1 zoning district, the minimum single-family 

lot standards are as follows: 

 

1. R-1 Lot width:  Minimum 50 feet 

2. R-1 Lot size:  Minimum 7,500 square feet 

3. R-1 Setbacks:  Front 25 feet, sides 7.5 feet, rear 20 feet, and corners 15 feet 

4. R-1 Minimum living area: 1,350 square feet 

 

 

Page 169



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2444 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” R-2 (ZIP) (RESIDENTIAL) TO “CITY” 

R-2 (RESIDENTIAL)FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 

LOCATED SOUTH OF EAST 6
TH

 STREET, WEST OF ORANGE BLOSSOM 

TRAIL, COMPRISING 3.6 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY VSI 

CUSTOM HOMES; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 

of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 

City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 

identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed R-2 zoning has been found to be consistent with the City of 

Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated 

in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby R-2 as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code. 

 

 Legal Description: 

 

Lots 1 and 2, Block G, L.F. TILDEN'S ADDITION TO APOPKA CITY, according to the 

plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book A, Page 140, of the Public Records of ORANGE 

County, Florida, AND the West 1/2 of the vacated street lying on the East of Lot 1, LESS 

the West 128 feet of the North 200 feet thereof; AND, Lots 6 and 7,Block H, L.F. 

TILDEN'S ADDITION TO APOPKA CITY, according to the plat thereof as recorded in 

Plat Book A, Page 140, of the Public Records of ORANGE County, Florida, AND the East 

½ of the vacated street lying on the West of Lot 7 

Parcel ID #s: 10-21-28-8652-07-010 & 10-21-28-8652-08-060  

Contains: 3.6 +/- Acres 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 

City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.  The Community Development Director shall not accept an 

application for a development plan until such time the property owner addresses school capacity 

enhancement review with Orange County Public Schools. 

Page 170



ORDINANCE NO. 2444 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 

to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 

force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance.   

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 
 
 

                       
 
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: June 26, 2015 
    August 7, 2015 

READ FIRST TIME:   
August 5, 2015 

READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     August 19, 2015 

Page 171



Page 172 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

4. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Elro Properties, LLC – Owner/applicant Elro 

Properties, LLC; Engineer Ali Tehrani, P.E., property located at 511 Marshall Lake 

Road (north of Marshall Lake Road and west of Bradshaw Road). (Parcel ID No.: 09-

21-28-0000-00-011) 

  

Page 172



    

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

  X  PUBLIC HEARING   MEETING OF: August 5, 2015 

       ANNEXATION   FROM:  Community Development  

       PLAT APPROVAL       EXHIBITS: Vicinity/Aerial Map 

  X  OTHER: Final Development Plan    Site/Landscape Plans 

              Building Elevations 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

PROJECT:                FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN - ELRO PROPERTIES, LLC. 

       
Request: APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR ELRO 

PROPERTIES, LLC; AND ISSUANCE OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT 
ORDER (PARCEL ID #09-21-28-0000-00-011) 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY: 

 

OWNER/APPLICAN: Elro Properties, LLC 

 

ENGINEER:                         Ali Tehrani, P.E. 

 

LOCATION: 511 Marshall Lake Road  

(North of Marshall Lake Road and west of Bradshaw Road) 

 

PARCEL ID #:  09-21-28-0000-00-011 

 

LAND USE: Industrial 

 

ZONING: I-1 

 

EXISTING USE:                    Vacant Land 

 

PROPOSED USE: Industrial Warehouse (18,000 S.F.) w/ Office Complex (11,340 S.F.)   

 

TRACT SIZE:   6.46 +/- acres  

 

OVERALL SITE                    26.64 +/- acres   

 

BUILDING SIZE: 29,340 sq. ft. 

 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director    Public Ser. Director 

Commissioners (4)           HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby      IT Director     Fire Chief  

Community Dev. Director        Police Chief    

 
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Site Plans\Elro Properties\1 Elro Properties FDP CC 08-05-15   Page 173



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 
ELRO PROPERTIES, LLC - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Commercial C-3 Warehouse Facility\Railroad track 

East (City) Commercial C-3 Vacant Property 

South (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Property 

West (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant Property 

         

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The Elro Properties, LLC - Final Development Plan proposes a 29,340 square 

foot industrial warehouse and office complex.  Prior to commencement of any clearing or grading of the subject 

property, a parcel split must be submitted to the Orange County Property Appraiser’s office. 

       

PARKING AND ACCESS:  A total of 82 parking spaces are provided, of which four are reserved as a 

handicapped parking space.  Access to the site is provided by a driveway cut along Bradshaw Road and 

Marshall Lake Road.   

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  Design of the building exterior meets the intent of the City’s Development 

Design Guidelines.  Height of the building is presently 35 feet.  The property owner has submitted a zoning 

application to allow maximum building height not to exceed 50 feet.  

   

STORMWATER:   Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated by an off-site retention pond 

through a cross access easement agreement.  The off-site stormwater management system will be designed 

according to standards set forth in the Land Development Code. All cross-access easement documents must be 

recorded prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 

 

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:   A twenty-five foot landscape buffer is provided along Bradshaw Road and 

Marshall Lake Road. The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for the property. The 

planting materials and irrigation system design are consistent with the water-efficient landscape standards set 

forth in Ordinance No. 2069.   

 

Total inches on-site: 176 

Total number of specimen trees: 0 

Total inches removed 132 

Total inches retained: 44 

Total inches required: 132 

Total inches replaced: 171 

Total inches post development: 215 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
July 28, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

August 5, 2015 - City Council (1:30 pm)  

  

Page 174



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 
ELRO PROPERTIES, LLC - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Elro Properties, LLC – Final Development 

Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its special meeting on July 28, 2015, recommended approval (6-0) of the Elro 

Properties, LLC – Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Approve the Elro Properties LLC Final Development Plan and issue the Final Development Order. 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

Page 175



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 
ELRO PROPERTIES, LLC - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner:   Elro Properties, LLC 

Engineer:  Ali Tehrani, P.E. 
Parcel I.D. No:    09-21-28-0000-00-011 
Location:  511 Marshall Lake 
Total Acres:  6.46 +/- Acres 

 
 
 

 

 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 

SUBJECT 
PROPERTY 

Page 176



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 
ELRO PROPERTIES, LLC - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 

Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner:   Elro Properties, LLC 

Engineer:  Ali Tehrani, P.E. 

Parcel I.D. No:    09-21-28-0000-00-011 

Location:              511 Marshall Lake Road 

Total Acres:              6.46 +/- Acres 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

Subject 

Property 

Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

5. MASS GRADING PLAN - Golden Gem Estates, Phase 1A – owner/applicant Cantero 

Holdings, LLC, c/o Jose Cantero; engineer is GL Summit, c/o Geoffrey Summit, P.E., 

for the property generally located south of Kelly Park Road, north of the Ponkan Road 

and east of Golden Gem Road. (Parcel ID Nos.: 24-20-27-0000-00-097, 24-20-27-

0000-00-98, 24-20-27-0000-00-100, 24-20-27-0000-00-101, 24-20-27-0000-00-102,  

24-20-27-0000-00-100-103, 24-20-27-0000-00-104, 24-20-27-0000-00-105) 

  

Page 188



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  August 5, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 
   X    OTHER: Mass Grading Plan       Mass Grading Plan 
            
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: MASS GARDING PLAN – GOLDEN GEM ESTATES - PHASE 1A, 
OWNED BY CANTERO HOLDINGS, LLC, C/O JOSE CANTERO  

 

Request: APPROVAL OF THE MASS GRADING PLAN FOR GOLDEN GEM ESTATES, 

OWNED BY CANTERO HOLDINGS, LLC. (PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 24-20-27-

0000-00-097, 24-20-27-0000-00-098, 24-20-27-0000-00-100, 24-20-27-0000-00-100, 24-

20-27-0000-00-101, 24-20-27-0000-00-102, 24-20-27-0000-00-103, 24-20-27-0000-00-

104, 024-20-27-0000-00-105) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Cantero Holdings, LLC., c/o Jose Cantero 
 
ENGINEER:   GL Summit., c/o Goeffrey Summit, P.E. 
 
LOCATION:               South of Kelly Park Road, north of the Ponkan Road and east of  

Golden Gem Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Planted Pine Site 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Rural Settlement (1du/ac) 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  AG  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: 12 Single Family Residential Subdivision\Mass Grading of Final Development 

Plans 
 
TRACT SIZE:              80 +/- Acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 80 Units  
    PROPOSED: 12 Units (PHASE 1A)  
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer      Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
 
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Site Plans\2015\1 Golden Gem Estates Mass Grading Plan – CC 08-05-15 

 Page 189



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

GOLDEN GEM ESTATES– MASS GRADING PLAN, PHASE 1A 
PAGE 2 
 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Mixed Use ZIP Vacant Land\Planted Pine Trees 

North (County) Rural (1du/10 ac/agricultural) A-1 Foliage Nursery 

East (County) Rural (1du/10 ac/agricultural) A-2  Manufactured Home\Grazing Land 

South (City) Rural Settlement(1du/ac)/Conservation ZIP Manufactured Home\Planted Pine Trees 

West (County) Rural (1du/10 ac/agricultural) A-1 Construction, Debris, and Class 3 Land Fill 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   The proposed mass grading plan allows site grading to occur consistent with 

the ground elevations and contours established within the Golden Gem Estates - Phase 1B Preliminary Devel-

opment Plan.  All required permits from the St. Johns Water Management District and other state agencies must 

be obtained by the applicant prior to commencing any grading activities.   Planted pine has already been har-

vested from the subject property, leaving few canopy trees.   

 

HAUL ROUTE:  There has been a temporary access easement agreement established with the abutting proper-

ty owner to the east, granting direct access to Wekiva Parkway (S.R. 429) as illustrated on Sheet 4, of the Mass 

Grading Plan. 

  

ENVIRONMENTAL:  A habitat management plan was submitted by the applicant.  Based on the results of 

this study, the developer must obtain approval from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection prior 

to commencing any grading or further site construction activity. 

 

TREE PROGRAM: The planted pine located on this site is exempt from the arbor mitigation requirements and 

was harvested for silviculture purposes.  Pine trees have already been harvested from the site. The applicant will 

be required to demonstrate the site meets this tree stock requirement on the final development plan or contribute 

into the tree bank mitigation program, if applicable. 

 

LANDSCAPING\BUFFERS:    Per city code, a six-foot brick wall within a ten-foot landscape buffer is re-

quired along Golden Gem Road.  However, a brick wall will be out of character with the surrounding landscape 

and environment.  In lieu of a brick wall, a 50-foot wide landscape buffer is proposed.  The City owns acres to 

the south, the landfill is located to the west, and large lot residential uses occur to the south and north along 

Golden Gem Road.  Further north along Golden Gem Road, the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area 

is just to the north along Golden Gem Road, and it promotes a pedestrian-oriented development theme.  Further, 

it is unreasonable to believe that a 12 lot residential development, which could be trailer homes, can financially 

support maintenance and replacement of a brick wall at such time it deteriorates or is damaged. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: No development activity beyond the grading activities approved within the 

Mass Grading Plan can occur until such time that a concurrency mitigation agreement or letter has been ap-

proved by OCPS.  The applicant has applied to OCPS for this agreement.  The developer has submitted a school 

capacity determination application to OCPS.  The schools designated to serve this community are the following: 

Zellwood Elementary, Wolf Lake Middle and Apopka High School.  

 

Page 190



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

GOLDEN GEM ESTATES– MASS GRADING PLAN, PHASE 1A 
PAGE 3 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the land use amendment and 

rezoning application for this property, and coordination occurred with County planning staff regarding impact 

on adjacent parcels.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

July 28, 2015 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

August 5, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm)  

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Golden Gem Estates Ph.1A Mass Grading 

Plan for the property owned by Cantero Holdings, LLC  

 

The Planning Commission, at its special meeting on July 28, 2015, recommended approval (6-0) of the Golden 

Gem Estates, Phase 1A Mass Grading Plan for the property owned by Cantero Holdings, LLC.  

 

Approve the Golden Gem Estates, Phase 1A Mass Grading Plan for the property owned by Cantero Holdings, 

LLC. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

Page 191



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

GOLDEN GEM ESTATES– MASS GRADING PLAN, PHASE 1A 
PAGE 4 
 

Golden Gem Estates, Phase 1A 
Mass Grading Plan 

Cantero Holdings, LLC., c/o Mr. Jose Cantero 
GL Summit., c/o Goeffrey Summit, P.E. 

Proposed Maximum Development - 80 Units 
80.00 +/- Total Acres 

  Parcel ID #s:   24-20-27-0000-00-097, 24-20-27-0000-00-098, 24-20-27-0000-00-100,  
 24-20-27-0000-00-100, 24-20-27-0000-00-101, 24-20-27-0000-00-102,  
 24-20-27-0000-00-103, 24-20-27-0000-00-104, 024-20-27-0000-00-105 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

6. PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - Golden Gem Estates, Phase 1B – 

owner/applicant Cantero Holdings, LLC, c/o Jose Cantero; engineer is GL Summit, c/o 

Geoffrey Summit, P.E., for the property generally located south of Kelly Park Road, 

north of the Ponkan Road and east of Golden Gem Road. (Parcel ID Nos.: 24-20-27-

0000-00-097, 24-20-27-0000-00-98, 24-20-27-0000-00-100, 24-20-27-0000-00-101, 

24-20-27-0000-00-102,  24-20-27-0000-00-100-103, 24-20-27-0000-00-104, 24-20-27-

0000-00-105) 

  

Page 203



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  August 5, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 
   X    OTHER: Preliminary Development Plan     Site/Landscape Plan 
            
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – GOLDEN GEM ESTATES - 
PHASE 1B, OWNED BY CANTERO HOLDINGS, LLC, C/O JOSE 
CANTERO  

 

Request: APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR GOLDEN 

GEM ESTATES, PHASE 1B, OWNED BY CANTERO HOLDINGS, LLC; AND 

ISSUANCE OF THE PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT ORDER. (PARCEL ID 

NUMBERS: 24-20-27-0000-00-097, 24-20-27-0000-00-098, 24-20-27-0000-00-100, 24-

20-27-0000-00-100, 24-20-27-0000-00-101, 24-20-27-0000-00-102, 24-20-27-0000-00-

103, 24-20-27-0000-00-104, 024-20-27-0000-00-105) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Cantero Holdings, LLC., c/o Jose Cantero 
 
ENGINEER:   GL Summit., c/o Goeffrey Summit, P.E. 
 
LOCATION:               South of Kelly Park Road, north of the Ponkan Road and east of  

Golden Gem Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Planted Pine Site 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Rural Settlement (1du/ac) 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  AG  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: 12 Single Family Residential Subdivision\Mass Grading of Final Development 

Plans 
 
TRACT SIZE:              80 +/- Acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 80 Units  
    PROPOSED: 12 Units (Phase 1B)  
 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer      Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
 
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Site Plans\2015\1 Golden Gem Estates PDP  – CC 08-05-15 Page 204



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

GOLDEN GEM ESTATES, PHASE 1B – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Mixed Use ZIP Vacant Land\Planted Pine Trees 

North (County) Rural (1du/10 ac/agricultural) A-1 Foliage Nursery 

East (County) Rural (1du/10 ac/agricultural) A-2  Manufactured Home\Grazing Land 

South (City) Rural Settlement(1du/ac)/Conservation ZIP Manufactured Home\Planted Pine Trees 

West (County) Rural (1du/10 ac/agricultural) A-1 Construction, Debris, and Class 3 Land Fill 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   The applicant proposes to develop 12 single family lots in the Golden Gem 
Estates subdivision.  The current  zoning is AG; however, the applicant has submitted an application to rezone 
the property to AG-E.  This preliminary design utilizes the requirements contained int he AG-E zoning catego-
ry.   
 
ACCESS:  Ingress/egress for the development will be via full access from Golden Gem Road. 
  
STORMWATER: One retention pond has been designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL:  A habitat management plan was submitted by the applicant.  Based on the results of 
this study, the developer must obtain approval from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection prior 
to commencing any grading or further site construction activity. 
 
TREE PROGRAM: The planted pine located on this site is exempt from the arbor mitigation requirements and 
was harvested for silviculture purposes.  Pine trees have already been harvested from the site. The applicant will 
be required to demonstrate the site meets this tree stock requirement on the final development plan or contribute 
into the tree bank mitigation program, if applicable. 
 
LANDSCAPING\BUFFERS:    Per city code, a six-foot brick wall within a ten-foot landscape buffer is re-
quired along Golden Gem Road.  However, a brick wall will be out of character with the surrounding landscape 
and environment.  In lieu of a brick wall, a 50-foot wide landscape buffer is proposed.  The City owns acres to 
the south, the landfill is located to the west, and large lot residential uses occur to the south and north along 
Golden Gem Road.  Further north along Golden Gem Road, the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area 
is just to the north along Golden Gem Road, and it promotes a pedestrian-oriented development theme.  Further, 
it is unreasonable to believe that a 12 lot residential development, which could be trailer homes, can financially 
support maintenance and replacement of a brick wall at such time it deteriorates or is damaged. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: No development activity beyond the grading activities approved within the 
Mass Grading Plan can occur until such time that a concurrency mitigation agreement or letter has been ap-
proved by OCPS.  The applicant has applied to OCPS for this agreement.  The developer has submitted a school 
capacity determination application to OCPS.  The schools designated to serve this community are the following: 
Zellwood Elementary, Wolf Lake Middle and Apopka High School.  
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the land use amendment and 
rezoning application for this property, and coordination occurred with County planning staff regarding impact 
on adjacent parcels.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
July 28, 2015 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 
August 5, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm)  
 Page 205



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

GOLDEN GEM ESTATES, PHASE 1B – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 
 
WAIVERS 
 
1. Waiver Request #1:  Section 2.02.02.F., LDC.   Request to waive requirement for a 1,400 foot long, six foot 

high brick wall along Golden Gem Road.  Applicant requests a waiver to allow a planted 50’ landscape 
buffer in lieu of the construction of a screen wall.   

 
DRC recommendation -- DRC supports this waiver request for the following reasons:  (a) A homeowners 
association with only twelve homes is unlikely to financially maintain or replace a 1,400 foot long brick 
wall; (b) a 50 foot wide landscape buffer will be provided in lieu of a 10 foot wide buffer, and will suffice to 
provide sufficient screen and distance from the road, and residential setbacks will be measured from the 
buffer easement or tract line; and (c) an active landfill is located to the west of Golden Gem Road. 

 
2. Waiver Request #2:  Section 6.02.07, LDC. Request to waive the requirement for subdivision roadways to 

have “F” curb and closed drainage systems.  Applicant requests a waiver to allow for the use of a “Rural” 
roadway section utilizing swale drainage and no raised curb.  

 
 DRC recommendation -- DRC supports the waiver because the character of the subdivision is large-lot and 

this waiver has been applied to other similar residential developments such as Bluegrass Estates. 
 
3. Waiver Request #3: Section 6.04.01., LDC.  Request to waive the requirement for all development to 

connect to City water and sewer.  Applicant requests a waiver to allow the use of individual lot wells and 
septic systems in lieu of connecting to the City system.  

 
 DRC recommendation -- DRC does not support this waiver because policy within the City’s 

Comprehensive Plan requires that central water and sewer must be provided to the site, consistent with the 
intent of the outcome of regional actions emerging from the Wekiva River Basin Protection Study.   While 
the Land Development Code allows for the use of septic tanks, the standard is inconsistent with the below 
Policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Policy 1.5.5 - Infrastructure Element of the Comprehensive Plan states:   
 
The permanent use of septic tanks shall only occur for residential developments and neighborhood 
commercial uses if the following conditions apply: 
 
a) the septic tanks serve a lot of one acre or larger in size; 
  
b) a residential development within the City that is located more than one mile from the City’s wastewater 

collection system. The one-mile distance shall be measured from the nearest lot line where the facilities 
are located; and  

 
c) it can be demonstrated through soil analysis, subdivision layout, or the use of enhanced technology that 

comparable groundwater protection can be achieved with small lots.  
 
Exceptions to this policy may be granted by the City for infill projects. For the purposes of this exception 
provision, infill development shall be considered the development of vacant or underutilized parcels within 
the City’s urbanized areas which are already largely developed. Designation as an infill project shall be done 
at the sole discretion of the city’s Community Development Department (and in compliance with Policy 
1.5.9). 

 
 Policy 1.5.9, Infrastructure Element of the Comprehensive Plan states:   
 
 “The use of septic tanks for new development may be undertaken on an interim basis, not to exceed five 

years, in cases where central sewer improvements necessary to serve the proposed development are 
scheduled for construction in the adopted Capital Improvements Program within that five year timeframe.  Page 206



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

GOLDEN GEM ESTATES, PHASE 1B – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 
 

The approval for and conditions of the use of septic tanks on an interim basis shall be at the sole discretion 
of the City.” 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Golden Gem Estates Ph.1A – Preliminary 
Development Plan for the property owned by Cantero Holding, LLC. 
 
Staff requests: 
 

1. Approval of Waiver Request No. 1 to allow a planted 50’ landscape buffer in lieu of the construction of a 
screen wall. 

 
2. Approval of Waiver Request No. 2 to allow for the use of a “Rural” roadway section utilizing swale 

drainage and no raised curb.  
 
3. Denial of Waiver Request No. 3 to allow the use of individual lot wells and septic systems in lieu of 

connecting to the City system.  
 
4. Approval of the Golden Gem Estates Ph.1A – Preliminary Development Plan for the property owned by 

Cantero Holding, LLC; and issuance of the Preliminary Development Order. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its special meeting on July 28, 2015, recommended: 
 

1. Recommend approval (6-0) of Waiver Request No. 1 to allow a planted 50’ landscape buffer in lieu of 
the construction of a screen wall. 

 
2. Recommended approval (6-0) of Waiver Request No. 2 to allow for the use of a “Rural” roadway section 

utilizing swale drainage and no raised curb.  
 
3. Recommend denial (6-0) of Waiver Request No. 3 to allow the use of individual lot wells and septic 

systems in lieu of connecting to the City system.  
 
4. Recommend approval (6-0) of the Golden Gem Estates Ph.1A – Preliminary Development Plan for the 

property owned by Cantero Holding, LLC. 
 
Approve the Golden Gem Estates, Phase 1B Preliminary Development Plan and issue the Preliminary 
Development Order. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
  

Page 207



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

GOLDEN GEM ESTATES, PHASE 1B – PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 
 

Golden Gem Estates, Phase 1A 
Preliminary Development Plan 

Cantero Holdings, LLC., c/o Mr. Jose Cantero 
GL Summit., c/o Goeffrey Summit, P.E. 

Proposed Maximum Development - 80 Units 
80.00 +/- Total Acres 

  Parcel ID #s:   24-20-27-0000-00-097, 24-20-27-0000-00-098, 24-20-27-0000-00-100,  
 24-20-27-0000-00-100, 24-20-27-0000-00-101, 24-20-27-0000-00-102,  
 24-20-27-0000-00-103, 24-20-27-0000-00-104, 024-20-27-0000-00-105 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Page 208



SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

CoverSheet

1 10

NOTE:

1. A PERMIT IS REQUIRED FROM FFWCC FOR REMOVAL OR
RELOCATION OF GOPHER TORTOISES PRIOR TO START OF
ANY SITE CONSTRUCTION.

2. THESE CONSTRUCTION PLANS WERE PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUAL OF UNIFORM STANDARDS
FOR DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE FOR
STREETS AND HIGHWAYS, FDOT GREEN BOOK, CITY OF
APOPKA AND THE ORANGE COUNTY ROADWAY
SPECIFICATIONS.

Page 209



SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

Symbols &
Abbreviations

2 10

WATER & REUSE WATER

M

100 LF SAN 8 PVC 0.40%

SECTIONHIGHWAYCLASS SECTHWYCLS

EXTEND/EXTENSION
EXPAND/EXPANSION
EXISTING
EXCAVATE/EXCAVATION
ENDWALL
EACH WAY
ESTIMATE
EASEMENT
EQUIVALENT
EQUIPMENT
EQUAL/EQUATION
EDGE OF PAVEMENT
ENGINEER(ING)
ENCASEMENT
ELLIPSE/ELLIPTICAL
ELEVATION
ELECTRIC
ELBOW
EASEMENT LINE
EXISTING GRADE
EFFLUENT
EACH FACE
ENERGY DISSIPATOR
EDGE OF CONCRETE
EACH
EAST

DRIVEWAY
DRAWING
DRAIN
DOWN
DROP MANHOLE
DISTANCE
DISCHARGE
DUCTILE IRON PIPE
DIMENSION
DIAGONAL
DIAMETER
DUCTILE IRON
DESIGN HIGH WATER LEVEL
DETAIL
DEPARTMENT
DEFLECT(ION)
DEGREE
DOUBLE

CYLINDER
CUBIC YARD
CULVERT
CABLE TELEVISION
CENTER
COATING
CONTROL STRUCTURE
CONCRETE POWER POLE
COUPLING
CORNER
COORDINATE(S)
CONTINUOUS
CONSTRUCT(ION)
CONNECTION
CONCRETE
COMPLETE
COLUMN
CLEANOUT
COUNTY
CONDUIT
CORRUGATED METAL PIPE ARCH
CORRUGATED METAL PIPE
CONCRETE MONUMENT

EXT
EXP
EXIST
EXC
EWL
EW
EST
ESMT
EQUIV
EQUIP
EQ
EOP
ENG
ENC
ELLIP
ELEV
ELEC
ELB
E/L
EG
EFF
EF
ED
EC
EA
E

DWY
DWG
DRN
DN
DMH
DIST
DISCH
DIP
DIM
DIAG
DIA
DI
DHWL
DET
DEPT
DEFL
DEG OR °
DBL

CYL
CY
CULV
CTV
CTR
CTG
CS
CPP
CPLG
COR
COORD
CONT
CONST
CONN
CONC
COMP
COL
CO
CO.
CND
CMPA
CMP
CM

2221

16 15

NORTHNORTH

8

8

8

8

8

8" MISC. TREE

8" PALM TREE

8" PINE TREE

8" OAK TREE

8" MAPLE TREE

DIRT ROAD

BRICK PAVERS

99.50 SPOT ELEVATION

HANDICAP PARKING

GUY WIRE

SATALITE DISH

TRANSFORMER

TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE

RR CROSSING GATE

R R RR CROSSING SIGN

DUMPSTER

MW MONITORING WELL

W WELL

E

T

ELECTRIC BOX /

TELEPHONE RISER

T TELEPHONE MANHOLE

E ELECTRIC MANHOLE

CONCRETE UTILITY POLE
SET 4x4 CM

RECOVERED IRON ROD

SET IRON ROD

CONCRETE LIGHT POLE

LIGHT POLE

BACKFLOW PREVENTOR

REUSE WATER MAINRM
Y

WV

FDOT TYPE 1 INLET 

FDOT TYPE 2 INLET 

FDOT TYPE 3 INLET

FDOT TYPE 4 INLET

FDOT TYPE 5 INLETFDOT TYPE 6 INLET

DELTA
AT
AND

YEAR
YARD

WELDED WIRE MESH
WELDED WIRE FABRIC
WATER VALVE
WEIGHT
WET SEASON WATER TABLE
WATER SURFACE
WOOD POWER POLE
WATER/WEATHER PROOF
WITHOUT
WATER MAIN
WITH
WEST

VERTICAL POINT OF TANGENCY
VERTICAL POINT OF INTERSECTION
VERTICAL POINT OF CURVE
VERTICAL
VITRIFIED CLAY PIPE
VERTICAL CURVE
VALVE BOX

UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE CABLE
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
UNDERGROUND
UNDERDRAIN

TYPICAL
TOWNSHIP
TOP OF SLOPE
TOTAL
TOE OF SLOPE
TOP OF CURB
TOP OF BANK
TERMINAL LAMPHOLE
TEMPORARY
TECHNICIAN/TECHNICAL
TOTAL DYNAMIC HEAD
TRENCH DRAIN
TIME OF CONCENTRATION
TEMPORARY BENCH MARK
TOP AND BOTTOM
TURFBLOCK
TANGENT

SYSTEM
SYMMETRICAL
SYMBOL(S)
SIDEWALK
SOUTHWEST
SERVICE
SUSPEND/SUSPENSION
SUPPORT
STORM SEWER
STRUCTURE
STEEL
STANDARD
STATION
STREET
STAINLESS STEEL
STATE ROAD
SQUARE YARD(S)
SQUARE FOOT/FEET
SQUARE INCH(ES)
SQUARE
SPECIFICATION(S)
SHEET METAL
SLOPE
SETBACK LINE
SIMILAR
SEASONAL HIGH GROUND WATER TABLE
SHEET

OVERHEAD
OVERFLOW
OUTFALL STRUCTURE
OVAL REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE
OPPOSITE
OPENING
OR EQUAL
OUTSIDE DIAMETER
ON CENTER

NORMAL WATER LEVEL
NORTHWEST
NOT TO SCALE
NOMINAL
NUMBER
NOT IN CONTRACT
NATURAL GROUND
NORTHEAST
NAIL AND CAP
NOT APPLICABLE
NORTH

MOUNTING
MEAN SEA LEVEL
MILES PER HOUR
MONUMENT
MEAN LOW WATER LEVEL
METAL LIGHT POLE
MECHANICAL JOINT
MISCELLANEOUS
MINIMUM
MEAN HIGH WATER LEVEL
MANHOLE COVER
MANHOLE
MILLION GALLONS PER DAY
MANUFACTURER
MITERED END
MECHANICAL
MAXIMUM
MATERIAL
MAINTENANCE

LOW WATER LEVEL
LEFT
LONG
LIGHT POLE
LIMIT(S)
LONG
LINEAR FEET/FOOT
POUND
LATERAL
LATITUDE
LENGTH

JOINT
JOIST
JUNCTION
JUNCTION BOX

INVERT
INTERSECT/INTERSECTION
IRON ROD
IRON PIPE
INSTALL
INSERT
INLET
INCHES
INSIDE FACE
INSIDE DIAMETER
INTERSECTION ANGLE
INTERSTATE HIGHWAY

HYDRAULIC

@
&

YR
YD

WWM
WWF
WV
WT
WSWT
WS
WPP
WP
W/O
WM
W/
W

VPT
VPI
VPC
VERT
VCP
VC
VB

UTC
UON
UG
UD

TYP
TWP
TS
TOT
TOS
TOC
TOB
TL
TEMP
TECH
TDH
TD
TC
TBM
T&B
TB
T

SYS
SYMM
SYM
SWK
SW
SVC
SUSP
SUP
STS
STR
STL
STD
STA
ST
SS
SR
SQ YD
SQ FT
SQ IN
SQ
SPEC
SM
SL
S/L
SIM
SHGWT
SH

OVHD
OVFL
OS
ORCP
OPP
OPNG
OE
OD
OC

NWL
NW
NTS
NOM
NO OR #
NIC
NG
NE
N&C
NA
N

MTG
MSL
MPH
MON
MLWL
MLP
MJ
MISC
MIN
MHWL
MHC
MH
MGD
MFR
ME
MECH
MAX
MATL
MAINT

LWL
LT
LONG
LP
LIM
LG
LF
LB
LATL
LAT
L

JT
JST
JCT
JB

INV
INT
IR
IP
INST
INS
INL
IN
IF
ID
IA
I-4

HYD

EDGE OF PAVEMENT
W/O CURB

W/CURB
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

GUY POLEBENCHMARK

RECOVERED 4x4 CM

CONCRETE

COUNTY ROADS

INTERSTATE ROADS

WOOD AND/OR METAL

MISCELLANEOUS SIGN

SECTION CORNER

STATE ROADS

520

YARD LIGHT

WOOD UTILITY POLE

95

50

HIGHWAY & UTILITIES

D

STORM DRAIN

STORM SEWER

MANHOLE

MITERED END

STORM INLET

WATER METER

WATER MAIN 6" PVC PIPE WATER VALVE

FIRE HYDRANT

6"WM

WATER & REUSE WATER

ABBREVIATIONS

BFP BACKFLOW PREVENTER

CLEAR/CLEARANCE
CONCRETE LIGHT POLE
CENTER LINE
CONSTRUCTION JOINT
CAST IRON PIPE
CAST IRON
CURB AND GUTTER
CUBIC FEET PER SECOND
CUBIC FEET PER MINUTE
CUBIC FEET
CEMENT
CENTER TO CENTER
CATCH BASIN
CAPACITY

BUTTERFLY VALVE
BOTTOM OF SLOPE
BEARING
BOTTOM
BACK OF CURB
BLOWOFF
BOUNDARY
BENCH MARK
BOULEVARD
BUILDING
BASELINE

AZIMUTH
AVERAGE
AVENUE
ASSEMBLY
ASPHALT
AIR RELEASE VACUUM VALVE
AIR RELEASE VALVE
APPROXIMATE
AMPERE(S)
BEFORE NOON
ALTERNATE
ALUMINUM
AVERAGE DAILY TRAFFIC
ADDITIONAL
ASBESTOS CEMENT PIPE
ACRE FOOT/FEET
ACRE(S)
ABANDON(ED)
ANCHOR BOLT
AREA

CLR
CLP
C/L
CJ
CIP
CI
C&G
CFS
CFM
CF
CEM
CC
CB
CAP

BV
BS
BRG
BOT
BOC
BO
BND
BM
BLVD
BLDG
BL

AZ
AVG
AVE
ASSY
ASPH
ARVV
ARV
APPROX
AMP
AM
ALT
AL
ADT
ADDL
ACP
AC-FT
AC
ABD
AB
A

PROFILE GRADE POINTPFGP

FM

CABLE TELEVISION
UNDERGROUNDCTV

UGT

UE

GAS

OVERHEAD
TELEPHONE

OVERHEAD
ELECTRIC

UNDERGROUND
ELECTRIC

TELEPHONE

80

L

81

BUILDING LINE

CONTOURS

WOOD FENCE

RAILROAD TRACKS

GAS MAIN

UNDERGROUND

HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENEHDPE

SECONDS
SOUTHEAST
SHELF DRAIN
SIDE DRAIN
SCHEDULE
SPLASH BLOCK
SANITARY SEWER
SOUTH

REUSE WATER MAIN
RIGHT-OF-WAY
RELIEF VALVE
RIGHT
RAILROAD
REVOLUTIONS PER MINUTE
REVISE/REVISION
REQUIRED
REINFORCE(D)
REFERENCE
REDUCER
ROADWAY
ROAD
REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE ARCH
REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE
RADIUS

FLOW RATE

POWER
PAVEMENT
POLYVINYL CHLORIDE
POINT OF TANGENCY
POUNDS PER SQUARE INCH
POUNDS PER SQUARE FOOT
POINT OF REVERSE VERTICAL CURVE
PROPOSED
PROJECT
PRESSURE
POINT OF REVERSE CURVATURE
PHONE RISER
POWER POLE
PUSH ON JOINT
POINT OF BEGINNING
PROPERTY LINE
POINT OF INTERSECTION

POLYETHYLENE PIPE
POINT OF COMPOUND CURVATURE
POINT OF CURVATURE

HIGH WATER LEVEL
HEADWALL
HEIGHT
HOUR
HORSEPOWER
HORIZONTAL
HARDWARE

HOSE BIBB

GROUND WATER TABLE
GUY WIRE
GATE VALVE AND BOX
GATE VALVE
GALVANIZED STEEL PIPE
GROUND/GRADE
GUARD RAIL
GALLONS PER SECOND
GALLONS PER MINUTE
GALLONS PER HOUR
GALLONS PER DAY
GAS MAIN
GALVANIZED
GALLON
GAUGE

FOOTING
FEET/FOOT
FEET PER SECOND
FEET PER MINUTE
FEET PER HOUR
FOUND
FORCE MAIN
FLANGE
FLEXIBLE
FLOOR
FENCE LINE
FITTING
FINISHED
FIGURE
FURNISH AND INSTALL
FIRE HYDRANT
FINISHED GRADE
FINISHED FLOOR
OF TRANSPORTATION
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT
FOUNDATION
FLOOR DRAIN
FRAME AND COVER

SEC
SE
SDN
SD
SCH
SB
SAN
S

RWM
R/W
RV
RT
RR
RPM
REV
REQD
REINF
REF
RED
RDY
RD
RCPA
RCP
R

Q

PWR
PVMT
PVC
PT
PSI
PSF
PRVC
PROP
PROJ
PRESS
PRC
PR
PP
POJ
POB
P/L
PI

PEP
PCC
PC

HWL
HW
HT
HR
HP
HORIZ
HDW

HB

GWT
GW
GV&B
GV
GSP
GRD
GR
GPS
GPM
GPH
GPD
GM
GALV
GAL
GA

FTG
FT
FPS
FPM
FPH
FND
FM
FLG
FLEX
FLR
FL
FIT
FIN
FIG
F&I
FH
FG
FF

FDOT
FDN
FD
F&C

S

S

SANITARY SEWER LINE

CLEANOUT

FORCE MAIN

MANHOLE

SANITARY

LINES

CHAIN LINK FENCE

CENTER LINE

WIRE FENCE

EASEMENT

GUARDRAIL 

EXISTING PLATS

RETAINING WALL

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

SHORELINE

SWALE

x x

R/W

C

x

EXISTING SYMBOLS

UNDERDRAIN CEANOUT

RECLAIMED WATER MAINRM

2
24
901

24
901

21

16 15

22

CHECK VALVE

WATER SERVICE
DOUBLE REUSE

TYPE A

FF=98.76

PREVENTER
BACKFLOW

SP

REUSE WATER SYSTEM
CONNECTION

SAMPLE POINT

CROSS SECTION DETAIL

SERVICE

SERVICE

100 LINEAR FEET

PAVEMENT MARKING

MIAMI CURB

TYPE F CURB & GUTTER

BLDG OR STRUCTURE

W/ FHA LOT TYPE

50

95

SILT FENCE

TRAFFIC FLOW

UTILITY POLE

520

STATE ROADS

SECTION CORNER

SIGNS

LIGHT POLE

INTERSTATE ROADS

HANDICAP PARKING

GUY POLE

FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION

DUMPSTER PAD

DETAIL REFERENCE

COUNTY ROADS

CONCRETE

BOUND CORNER

STORM INLET

HIGHWAY & UTILITIES

SANITARY

WM

TEE

REDUCER

METER

FIRE HYDRANT

GATE VALVE

DOUBLE WATER 

CHECK VALVE
DOUBLE DETECTOR 

CROSS

BLOWOFF

90° BEND

45° BEND

22 1/2° BEND

11 1/2° BEND

WATER MAIN 

FM

MANHOLE

FORCE MAIN

DOUBLE SANITARY 

CLEANOUT

PIPE @ 0.40% SLOPE
SANITARY 8" PVC 

TREE LINE

SWALE

SHORELINE

C

80

SETBACK

P/L

R/W
FOR POND SIDE SLOPE

TYPE 1

TYPE 2

TYPE 3

TYPE 4

TYPE 5

TYPE 6

100 LF STS 24 RCP @ 0.20%

SPOT ELEVATION

SLOPE DIRECTION ARROW

MITERED END SECTION

MANHOLE

FDOT INLET

FDOT INLET

FDOT INLET

FDOT INLET

FDOT INLET

FDOT INLET

DRAINAGE FLOW DIRECTION

UNDERDRAIN 6" PVC PIPE

PIPE @ 0.20%
24" REINFORCED CONCRETE
100 LINEAR FEET STORM PIPE

STORM DRAINLINES

81

xx

SETBACK LINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

RETAINING WALL

PROPERTY LINE

LOT LINE

GUARDRAIL 

EASEMENT

CONTOUR

CHAIN LINK FENCE

CENTER LINE

CONSERVATION

BOUNDARY

FENCE

PROPOSED SYMBOLS

100.00

Page 210



SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

Existing
Conditions

Plan

3 10

0120 120 240 48060

PROPERTY LINE
PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE PROPERTY LINE

Page 211



Area :4.99

Area :5.59

Area :5.00 Area :5.01 Area :5.01 Area :5.01 Area :5.01

Area :14.64

Area :5.01Area :5.01Area :5.01Area :5.01Area :6.63

811.68

62
8.

38

179.15

374.87

44
6.

04

437.71

49
8.

19

354.00

62
1.

30

178.41

150.57
127.03 351.00

62
1.

30

344.00 351.00

62
1.

30

351.00 351.00

62
1.

30

351.00 351.00

61
9.

05

55.82

84.1613.06216.53

217.53

1 3

.06 83.96

41
.1

9

54.92

61
9.

02

62
1.

30

351.00351.00

62
1.

37

351.00

468.25

13
22

. 4
5

491.53

351.00

62
1.

45

351.00351.00

62
1.

53

351.00

94
.1

5

39.

27 82.74

497.5
5

340.18

126.04
19

6.
18

371.3
7

85.26

39 .2 7

99.69

1

2

3 4 5 6 7

89101112

TRACT ATRACT A

TRACT A

TRACT B

TRACT B

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

Overall Site
Plan

4 10

0120 120 240 48060

CHANDLER FINE SANDS

CHANDLER-APOPKA FINE SANDS

TAVARES MILLHOPPER FINE SANDS

5

47

6

G
O

LD
EN

 G
EM

 R
O

A
D

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL SETTLEMENT
ZONING: ZIP
EXISTING USE: MANUFACTURED HOMES

G
O

LD
EN

 G
EM

 R
O

A
D

FUTURE LAND USE: RURAL SETTLEMENT
ZONING: ZIP
EXISTING USE: PLANTED PINE TREE

FUTURE LAND USE: MIXED USE
ZONING: ZIP
EXISTING USE: VACANT/PLANTED PINE

FUTURE LAND USE: AG
ZONING: A-1
EXISTING USE: NURSERY

FU
TU

R
E 

LA
N

D
 U

S
E:

 R
U

R
A
L

Z
O

N
IN

G
: 

A
-2

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 U

S
E:

 M
A
N

U
FA

C
TU

R
ED

H
O

M
E,

 G
R
A
Z
IN

G
 L

A
N

D

FU
TU

R
E 

LA
N

D
 U

S
E:

 A
G

Z
O

N
IN

G
: 

A
-1

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 U

S
E:

 C
O

N
S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

,
D

EB
R
IS

, 
C
LA

S
S
 3

 L
A
N

D
FI

LL

6

6

6

47

47 47 47

47

47

47

4747

47

47

47

47

47

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5
5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

5

47

SOILS LINE

SOILS LINE

50' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE XZONE X
ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE X

ZONE X

Page 212



Area :4.99

Area :5.59

Area :5.00 Area :5.01 Area :5.01 Area :5.01 Area :5.01

Area :14.64

Area :5.01Area :5.01Area :5.01Area :5.01Area :6.63

811.68

62
8.

38

179.15

374.87

44
6.

04

437.71

49
8.

19

354.00

62
1.

30

178.41

150.57
127.03 351.00

62
1.

30

344.00 351.00

62
1.

30

351.00 351.00

62
1.

30

351.00 351.00

61
9.

05

55.82

84.1613.06216.53

217.53 13.06

83.96

41
.1

9

54.92

61
9.

02

62
1.

30

351.00351.00
62

1.
37

351.00

468.25

13
22

. 4
5

491.53

351.00

62
1.

45

351.00351.00

62
1.

53

351.00

94
.1

5
39

.27 82.74

497.5
5

340.18

126.04

19
6.

18

371.3
7

85.26

3 9 .2 7

99.69

1

2

3 4 5 6 7

89101112

TRACT ATRACT A

TRACT A

TRACT B

TRACT B

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

Site Plan

5 10

0100 100 200 40050

50' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

35' SIDE SETBACK

50' REAR SETBACK

45' FRONT SETBACK

80' RIGHT-OF-WAY
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

24' PAVEMENT

35' SIDE SETBACK

50' REAR SETBACK

5' SIDEWALK
R50.0

R36.0

35' SIDE SETBACK

50' REAR SETBACK

R300.0

R275.0

100' RIGHT-OF-WAY

35' SIDE STREET SETBACK

10' UTILITY EASEMENT

50' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

35' SIDE SETBACK

50' REAR SETBACK

35' SIDE SETBACK

R35.0

35' SIDE SETBACK

10' UTILITY EASEMENT5' SIDEWALK

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED
MONUMENT
ENTRY SIGN

10' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

10' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

10' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

10' LANDSCAPE EASEMENT

Page 213



1

2

3 4 5 6 7

89101112

TRACT ATRACT A

TRACT A

TRACT B

TRACT B

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

Paving &
Drainage Plan

6 10

0100 100 200 40050

50' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

50' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

TYPE 'A-MOD'

TYPE 'A-MOD'

TYPE 'A'TYPE 'A'TYPE 'A'TYPE 'A'

TYPE 'A'

TYPE 'A'

TYPE 'A' TYPE 'A' TYPE 'A' TYPE 'A'

100
10 ENTRANCE DRIVE

SECTION

102
10

ROADWAY
SECTION

118
10

DRY RETENTION
POND SECTION

ROADSIDE SWALE
CENTERLINE

ROADSIDE SWALE
CENTERLINE

ROADSIDE SWALE
CENTERLINE

ROADSIDE SWALE
CENTERLINE

PROPERTY LINE

Page 214



1

2

3 4 5 6 7

89101112

TRACT ATRACT A

TRACT A

TRACT B

TRACT B

QV
25
VO
450

LI
3

LJ
1

QV
3

LI
3

QV
3

VO
50

SOD

SOD

SOD

SOD

SOD

QV
31

LC
75

SOD

SOD

SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

Landscape
Plan

7 10

0100 100 200 40050

50' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

50' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

NOTE:

1. AN IRRIGATION PLAN & DESIGN MEETING THE CITY OF
APOPKA REQUIREMENTS WILL BE PROVIDED WITH THE
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN.

2. LANDSCAPING & IRRIGATION PLANS SHALL BE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH LDC ARTICLE V, WATER-WISE
ORDINANCE NO. 2069.

3. IN ADDITION TO THE STREET TREES SHOWN EACH LOT
SHALL BE REQUIRED TO HAVE THREE (3) ADDITIONAL
TREES PLANTED ON THE LOT.Page 215



SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

Landscape
Details

8 10

12" 12"

6" MI
N.

6" 6"

6" MI
N.

6" MI
N.

12"12"

GENERAL LANDSCAPE NOTES
1.     ALL PLANTS TO BE FLORIDA NO. 1, OR BETTER AS OUTLINED UNDER 'GRADES AND                                7.     NO TREES SHALL BE PLANTED CLOSER THAN FIVE FEET (5') FROM THE EDGE OF PAVEMENT
       STANDARDS FOR NURSERY PLANTS, PART I, 1963 AND PART II, STATE OF FLORIDA                                         TO ALLOW ADEQUATE TREE TRUNK PROTECTION .
       DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA, AND ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO.             8.     LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE WHOLLY RESPONSIBLE FOR STABILITY AND PLUMB
2.    ALL TREES AND PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE PLANTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE                                           CONDITION OF ALL TREES AND SHALL BE LEGALLY LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGE CAUSED
       SPECIFICATIONS DESCRIBED IN THE CITY OF APOPKA LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE                                          BY THE INSTABILITY OF ANY PLANT MATERIAL.
       LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS.                                                                                                                               9.     ALL LAWN AREAS TO RECEIVE SOD SHALL BE DISKED FOUR(4) TO SIX(6) INCHES AND
                                                                                                                                                                                                   DRAGGED TO ESTABLISH A LEVEL FINISH GRADE.  ALL DEBRIS TO BE REMOVED FROM
3.    THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR (CONTRACTED BY OWNER, N.I.C.)                                                                       THE SITE.
       SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL MATERIALS AND ALL WORK AS CALLED FOR ON THE                         10.    SOD SHALL BE FREE OF WEEDS AND PESTS.  IT SHALL BE LAID EVENLY AND ROLLED,
       LANDSCAPE PLANS.  THE LIST OF PLANT QUANTITIES ACCOMPANYING THE PLANS SHALL                             WITH TIGHT FITTING JOINTS.  THE SOD SHALL CONTAIN MOIST SOIL WHICH DOES NOT FALL
       BE USED AS A GUIDE ONLY.  IF A VARIATION OCCURS BETWEEN THE PLANS AND THE                                    APART OR TEAR WHEN LIFTED.  ALL AREAS NOT PAVED OR OTHERWISE LANDSCAPED
       PLANT LIST, THE PLANS SHALL CONTROL.                                                                                                                 SHALL BE SODDED. SOD SHALL BE ARGENTINE BAHIA OR EQUAL.
4.    ALL TREES, SHRUBS AND GROUND COVERS SHALL BE PLANTED USING A SOIL MIXTURE                       11.   ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS TO BE IRRIGATED WITH AN AUTOMATIC UNDERGROUND SYSTEM,
       PREPARED ACCORDINGLY (2/3 EXISTING SOIL, 1/3 PEAT).                                                                                      WITH 100% COVERAGE, BACKFLOW PREVENTOR, & RAIN SENSOR DEVICE.
5.    THE LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSURE ADEQUATE VERTICAL DRAINAGE IN ALL                                 DIRECT SPRAY HEADS AWAY FROM ANY NATURAL AREAS AND PAVED SURFACES.
       PLANT BEDS AND PLANTERS.  VERTICAL DRILLING THROUGH ANY COMPACTED FILL TO                        12.   THE TREE CALIPER OF ALL CANOPY TREES SPECIFIED ON THE PLANT LIST SHALL BE AT LEAST
       NATIVE SOIL SHALL BE ACCOMPLISHED TO AID DRAINAGE.                                                                                   THREE (2.5) INCHES IN DIAMETER WHEN MEASURED AT FIFTY-FOUR(54) INCHES ABOVE GRADE.
6.    ALL PLANT BEDS AND TREE WATERING BASINS SHALL BE TOP DRESSED WITH THREE                           13.    LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGE OCCURRING ON SITE
       INCHES (3") OF SHREDDED CYPRESS MULCH                                                                                                            OR ADJACENT AREAS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO BUILDINGS, PAVING, UTILITIES, ETC.,
                                                                                                                                                                                                   WHICH IS CAUSED BY PREPARING OR INSTALLING ANY AND ALL PLANT MATERIAL.

.

1  MULTI-TRUNK DETAIL          NTS

PLANT LIST

3 SHRUB AND GROUND COVER DETAIL  NTS

TREE PLANTING DETAIL          NTS

  PALM PLANTING DETAIL           NTS

VIBURNUM 

 ( )

NOTE:

1. AN IRRIGATION PLAN & DESIGN MEETING THE CITY OF
APOPKA REQUIREMENTS WILL BE PROVIDED WITH THE
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN.

2. LANDSCAPING & IRRIGATION PLANS SHALL BE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH LDC ARTICLE V, WATER-WISE
ORDINANCE NO. 2069.

Page 216



SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

General
Details 1

9 10

N.T.S.
TYPE 'P' & 'J' STRUCTURE BOTTOMS101

-

N.T.S.
TEMPORARY EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL100

-

EROSION CONTROL /SILT FENCE DETAIL102
-

Page 217



SHEET NUMBER

www.GLSeng.com

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

OF

General
Details  2

10 10

GOLDEN GEM ROAD GRADING SECTION
N.T.S.

*  SEE GRADING PLANS FOR TOP ELEVATIONS.

5% MAX. SLOPE

5' BERM

R
O

W
 L

IN
E

6' CHAIN-LINK W/SEDIMENT BARRIER

DRY RETENTION  POND CROSS SECTION
N.T.S.

VARIES

POND BOTTOM

1
6

89.75 89.75

80.00 80.00

SLOPE
TO BE SODDED

SEED & MULCH
POND BOTTOM

BERM
5'

CLEAN BACKFILL

90.0010yr.24hr. ELEV. = TBD
25yr.96hr. ELEV. = TBD
100yr.24hr. ELEV. = TBD

1
6

BERM
5'

90.00

1
4 MAX.

1
4 MAX

PR
O

PE
R
TY

 L
IN

E

BUFFER
20'

SLOPE
VARIES

CL

TYPICAL ROADWAY SECTION 'ENTRANCE ROAD' AT MEDIAN

90'

100
-

10'-0"
SOD

TYPE 'E' CURB
& GUTTER

PGL

2%

2'-4"10'-0"
SOD

PGL

2%

2'-4"

1.5" TYPE SP9.5
ASPHALT

2%

R
.O

.W
.

13.67'
SWALE

1'
DRIVE ISLE

18'

2%

50'

1' RIBBON
CURB

N.T.S.

8" CRUSHED CONCRETE BASE (MIN. LBR 160)
 95% MIN. AASHTO T-180 DENSITY

12" COMPACTED SUBGRADE
TO 95% PER AASHTO T-180

TOP 6" STABILIZED TO 50 LBR12" COMPACTED SUBGRADE
TO 95% PER AASHTO T-180

TOP 6" STABILIZED TO
MIN. FBV 50. EXTEND 1'
BEYOND BACK OF CURB

2%

TYPICAL ROADWAY CROSS SECTION

1.5" TYPE SP9.5
ASPHALT

2%

R
.O

.W
.

22'
ROADSIDE

SWALE

1'
DRIVE ISLE

12'

CL

2%

DRIVE ISLE

12' 1'

R
.O

.W
.

SIDEWALK

5'

12" COMPACTED SUBGRADE
TO 95% PER AASHTO T-180

TOP 6" STABILIZED TO 50 LBR

40'

80'

40'

8" CRUSHED CONCRETE BASE (MIN LBR 160)
 98% MIN. AASHTO T-180 DENSITY

1" RIBBON
CURB

1' RIBBON
CURBPGL 2%

U
TI

LI
TY

 E
A

SE
M

E
N

T

10' UTILITY/
SIDEWALK
EASEMENT

10' UTILITY/
SIDEWALK
EASEMENT

12" COMPACTED SUBGRADE
TO 95% PER AASHTO T-180

TOP 6" STABILIZED TO
MIN. FBV 50. EXTEND 1'
BEYOND BACK OF CURB

12" COMPACTED SUBGRADE
TO 95% PER AASHTO T-180
TOP 6" STABILIZED TO
MIN. FBV 50. EXTEND 1'
BEYOND BACK OF CURB

N.T.S.

5'
SIDEWALK LANDSCAPE

22'

N.T.S.
STANDARD SIDEWALK DETAIL103

-

4' S/W

2"
 T

YP
.

4"

CONCRETE WALK AT 3,000 PSI
WOOD FLOAT FINISH. SAW CUT
CONTRACTION JOINTS AT 5' O.C. MIN.
EXPANSION JOINT AT 20' O.C. MIN

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

NOTE: ALL SIDEWALK TO BE CONSTRUCTED AS PART OF INFRASTRUCTURE

PAVEMENT

CONCRETE RIBBON CURB

12" STABILIZED SUBGRADE 

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

N.T.S.

12"

12"

12"

BASE

9"

300R
-

SHWL. = 70.00 (PER GEOTECHINCAL REPORT)

Page 218



Page 219 
 

 

Backup material for agenda item: 

 

7. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Marden Ridge – owned by Emerson Point 

Associates, LLLP; Applicant MMI Development, Inc., c/o Michael E. Wright, Esq.; 

Engineer GAI Consultants, Inc., c/o Anthony Call, P.E., property located Between S.R. 

451 and Marden Road, south of Ocoee Apopka Road, and north of the Apopka 

Expressway. (Parcel ID No.: 17-21-28-0000-00-029) 

  

Page 219



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  August 5, 2015 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 
   X    OTHER: Final Development Plan      Site Plan  
                                                                                                                                    Architecture Elevations 

            Landscape Plan 
 Parking Lot Buffer 

                      Hardscape Plan 
Lighting Plan 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN - MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS, 
PHASE 1B, OWNED BY EMERSON POINT ASSOCIATES, LLLP 

 

Request: APPROVE THE MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS, PHASE 1B, FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN, OWNED BY EMERSON POINT ASSOCIATES, 
LLLP; AND ISSUE THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT ORDER.  (PARCEL ID 
NUMBER: 17-21-28-0000-00-029) 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNERS:   Emerson Point Associates, LLLP 
 
APPLICANT:   MMI Development, Inc., c/o Michael E. Wright, Esq. 
 
ENGINEER:   GAI Consultants, Inc., c/o Anthony Call, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: Between S.R. 451and Marden Road, south of Ocoee Apopka Road, north of the S.R. 414 
 
EXISTING USE:  Planted Pine 
 
FUTURE LAND USE:  Residential High (0-15du/ac) 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  R-3  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Apartment (272 units/5 Buildings)  
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-3)  
 
TRACT SIZE:   Apartments: 18.05 +/- Acres  

Overall Site: 42.17 +/- Acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 536 Units (35.74 ac) 
    PROPOSED: 272 Units (Phase 1B) on 18. 05 ac 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer      Finance Director   Public Ser. Director 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator Irby    IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Director    Police Chief   
 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Site Plans\2015\Marden Ridge Apartment Ph.B- Final Development Plan CC 08-05-15 Page 220



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS, PHASE 1 B – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 
 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Commercial C-1 Vacant Land 

East (City) 

East (County) 

Res. Medium (0-10 du/ac) 

Low Medium Density Res. (10 du/ac) 

R-3 

R-2 

Vacant Land 

Apartments 

South (City) Mixed Use (0-15 du/ac) M-EC Vacant Land 

West (City) Industrial I-1 Northwest Distribution 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The Marden Ridge Apartments, Phase 1B, Final Development Plan proposes 

272 apartment units located on approximately 18.05 acres within 42.17 +/- acres site.  The overall site is com-

prised of 6.43 acres being designated for Commercial (C-1) use and 35.74 acres of the property designated for 

Residential High (PUD/R-3) use.  Development of the remaining 17.69 acres of residential land will occur at a 

later date through a separate Preliminary Development Plan application, as will development of the 6.43 acres 

of land assigned the C-1 commercial zoning category.  The developer has proposed five (5), four (4) story 

buildings at approximately fifty-eight (58) feet in height; with a projected population of 784 people.  The 

PUD/R-3 zoning district allows for the construction of apartments with a minimum living area of 750s.f. per 

unit.   

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  The design of the building exterior meets the intent of the City’s Development 

Design Guidelines.   

 

PARKING: The developer has proposed 544 parking spaces which meet the City’s Land Development Code.  

 

LDC 6.03.02. - Number of parking spaces required.  

 

Residential dwelling units, single-family, duplex, multifamily 2 spaces per dwelling unit 

 

ACCESS:  Ingress/egress for the development will be via two (2) full access points from Marden Road.     

 

STORMWATER:  The stormwater management system includes on-site retention ponds.  The developer has 

provided three (3) dry retention ponds designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code requirements. 

 

RECREATION: The developer is proposing 2.98 acres (129,809 sq. ft.) of passive and active recreation space.  

Some of the proposed amenities: clubhouse (6,183s.f.), swimming pool and tot lot. At the time of the final de-

velopment plan application, details of active and passive recreation equipment and facilities will be submitted 

for the City’s review.   

 

ENVIRONMENTAL:  A habitat management plan was submitted by the applicant.  Based on the results of 

this study, the developer must obtain approval from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection prior 

to commencing any site construction activity. 

 

OPEN SPACE: The developer is proposing 12.89 acres of open space to meet the thirty (30) percent PUD zon-

ing standards.  

 
Page 221



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS, PHASE 1 B – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 
 

TREE PROGRAM: The planted pine located on this site is exempt from the arbor mitigation requirements and 

was harvested for silviculture purposes.  The maximum tree stock formula requires a total of 2,752 tree inches 

to be replanted onto the site.  The applicant will be required to demonstrate the site meets this tree stock re-

quirement on the final development plan or contribute into the tree bank mitigation program.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: No development activity can occur until such time that a concurrency miti-

gation agreement or letter has been approved by OCPS.  The applicant has applied to OCPS for this agreement. 

The schools designated to serve this community are the following: Wheatley Elementary, Wolf Lake Middle 

and Apopka High School.  

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the land use amendment and 

rezoning application for this property, and coordination occurred with County planning staff regarding impact 

on adjacent parcels.   

 

BUFFERS:  The applicant is requesting a waiver to install a six-foot high wrought iron fence between brick 

columns for the perimeter wall, erected inside a ten foot landscaped buffer along Marden Road and State Road 

451.  

 

WAIVER REQUESTS 

 

1. The applicant is requesting a waiver from LDC 2.02.07.H.1a, which requires a six-foot-high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall to be placed within a 10 foot wide buffer adjacent to Marden Road, erected 

inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard.  The applicant is proposing a six-foot high wrought iron 

fence between brick columns with additional landscaping adjacent to external roads. 

 

 DRC reviewed the waiver request and can support it because the nearest building is setback at 

least 60 feet from the road; additional landscaping is provided; the apartment buildings are 58 

feet high and four stories, preventing a wall from screening buildings form adjacent  properties; 

and the parking lot will be screened by the buffer landscaping.  Attached illustrations provided by 

the applicant support the DRC recommendation. 

 

2. The applicant is requesting a waiver from LDC 2.02.07.H.1a, which requires a six-foot-high brick, stone or 

decorative block finished wall adjacent to S.R. 451, erected inside a minimum ten-foot landscaped buffer-

yard.  The applicant is requesting to eliminate portions of the perimeter fencing along the western property 

boundary, in lieu of an earth berm with landscaping.  

 

 DRC reviewed the waiver request and can support it because S.R. 451 is elevated and  additional 

landscaping and a berm are provided.  Attached illustrations provided by the applicant support 

the DRC recommendation. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

July 14, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) -Tabled 

July 28, 2015 - Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

August 5, 2015- City Council (1:30 pm) 

  

Page 222



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS, PHASE 1 B – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 
 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Marden Ridge Apartments, Phase 1B, 

Final Development Plan subject to the information and comments in the staff report for the property owned by 

Emerson Point Associates, LLLP. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on July 14, 2015, tabled the Marden Ridge Apartments, Phase 1B, 

Final Development Plan until the July 28, 2015 meeting. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its special meeting on July 28, 2015, recommended: 

 

1. Recommend denial (4-2) of Waiver Request No. 1 to allow a six-foot high wrought iron fence between 

brick columns with additional landscaping adjacent to external roads (Marden Road). 

 

2. Recommended approval (4-2) of Waiver Request No. 2 to allow elimination of portions of the perimeter 

fencing along the western property boundary (S.R. 451), in lieu of an earth berm with landscaping. 

3. Recommend approval (5-1) of the Marden Ridge Apartments, Phase 1B, Final Development Plan, for 

the property owned by Emerson Point Associates, LLLP. 

  

Staff requests: 

 

1. Approval of Waiver Request No. 1 to allow a six-foot high wrought iron fence between brick columns 

with additional landscaping adjacent to external roads. 

 

2. Approval of Waiver Request No. 2 to allow elimination of portions of the perimeter fencing along the 

western property boundary, in lieu of an earth berm with landscaping.  

3. Approval of the Marden Ridge Apartments, Phase 1B, Final Development Plan, for the property owned 

by Emerson Point Associates, LLLP. 

  

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

Page 223



CITY COUNCIL - AUGUST 5, 2015 

MARDEN RIDGE APARTMENTS, PHASE 1 B – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 
 

Marden Ridge Apartments Phase 1B, 
Final Development Plan 

Emerson Point Associates, LLLP 
MMI Development, Inc. c/o Michael E. Wright, Esq. 

Apartments: 18.05 +/- Acres (272 Units) 
42.17 +/- Total Acres 

Parcel ID #: 17-21-28-0000-00-029 
 

VICINITY MAP 

Subject 
Property 

Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



 

Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242


	Top
	1. 08/05 - Employee Recognition - 5 yrs
	2. 08/05 - Employee Recognition - 5 yrs
	3. 08/05 - Employee Recognition - 5 yrs
	4. 08/05 - Employee Recognition - 5 yrs
	5. 08/05 - Employee Recognition - 10 yrs
	6. 08/05 - Employee Recognition - 15 yrs
	7. 08/05 - Employee Recognition - 20 yrs
	8. 08/05 - Employee Recognition - 20 yrs
	9. 08/05 - Employee Recognition - 25 yrs
	1. Apopka Elementary School Mural
	2. Play Ball Proclamation
	1. 08/05/15 - Consent Agenda - Approve Minutes of Administrative Bid Opening No. 2015-06 held on 07/07/15.
	s0000102.pdf

	2. 08/05/15 - Consent Agenda - Approve Minutes from City Council Meeting held on July 15, 2015
	City Clerk - 07-15-15 Minutes.pdf

	3. 08-05-15 - CC - Consent Agenda - Cooper Palms Indoor Sports Complex - Capital Facility Fees Payment Agreement
	1 Cooper Palms Indoor Sports Complex.pdf
	2 Cooper Palms Indoor Sports Complex Agreement.pdf

	1. 08-05-15 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord #2437 - Annex - Ellsworth D. Bottoms Trust
	1 Ord 2437 - Bottoms Trust- 0805-15 - 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 2015 Annexation Cycle 2A- Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2437 - Bottoms, Trust- 4011 Golden Gem Road.pdf
	4 PubAffApopkaChief_153619.pdf

	2. 08-05-15 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord #2438 - Annex - Norman E. Sawyer
	1 Ord 2438 - Saywer- 08-05-15 - 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 2015 Annexation Cycle 2A- Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2438 -Saywer - 119 E. Nancy Lee Lane.pdf
	4 PubAffApopkaChief_153619.pdf

	3. 08-05-15 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord #2439 - Annex - Technology Property, LLC
	1 Ord 2439 - Technology Prop - 08-05-15 - 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 2015 Annexation Cycle 2A- Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2439 -Technology Propoerty, LLC - Clarcona Road.pdf
	4 PubAffApopkaChief_153619.pdf

	4. 08-05-15 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord #2440 - Annex - Crossroads Church of Orlando, Inc.
	1 Ord 2440 - Crossroads Church of Orlando - 08-05-15 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 2015 Annexation Cycle 2b - Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2440 - Crossroads Chuch of Orlando - 320 East Welch Road -  Revised.pdf
	4 Exhibit B - ILA-Enclave - 320 E Welch Rd.pdf
	5 PubAffApopkaChief_153619.pdf

	5. 08-05-15 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord #2441 - Annex - Donald Lee Boughan
	1 Ord 2441 - Boughan - CC 08-05-15 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 2015 Annexation Cycle 2b - Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2441 - Donald Lee Boughan - 404 East Welch Road.pdf
	4 Exhibit B - ILA-Enclave - 404 E Welch Rd.pdf
	5 PubAffApopkaChief_153619.pdf

	6. 08/05/15 Ordinances - Marden Road Interchange
	Glenn - Marden Road Interchange Staff Report.docx
	Glenn - Marden Road Interchange Ordinance.docx
	Glenn - Marden Road Interchange Cost Sharing Agreement.pdf

	7. 08-05-15 - Ordinances and Resolutions - Resolution 2015-14 Alonzo Williams Park
	Jeff - Staff Report Resolution CIP AWP.pdf
	Reso2015-14 Submit Alonzo   Williams Park Apopka.pdf

	8. 08-05-15 - Ordinances and Resolutions - Resolution 2015-15 Kit Land Nelson Park 
	Jeff - Staff Report Resolution CIP KLNP.pdf
	Reso 2015-15 Submit Kit Land   Nelson Park Apopka.doc

	1. 08-05-15 - CC - Quasi-Judicial Ordinance - 1st Rd - Ord. #2442 - Change of Zoning - Ponkin Road Properties, LLC
	1 Ponkin Rd Property LLC 3320 W Ponkan Rd CC 08-05 -15 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2442 - Ponkin Rd Property - ZON.pdf

	2. 08-05-15 - CC - Quasi-Judicial Ordinance - 1st Rd - Ord. #2443 - FLU Amendment - VSI Custom Homes
	1 VSI Custom Homes - 742 &amp; 804 E 6th St -  FLU - CC 08-05-15 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2443 - VSI Custom Homes - 742 &amp; 814 E 6th St - FLU.pdf

	3. 08-05-15 - CC - Quasi-Judicial Ordinance - 1st Rd - Ord. #2244 - Change of Zoning - VSI Custom Homes
	1 VSI Custom Homes - 742 &amp; 804 E 6th St - ZON - CC 08-05-15 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2444 - VSI Custom Homes - 742 &amp; 804 E 6th St - ZON.pdf

	4. 08-05-15 - CC - Quasi-Judicial Site Plans - Final Development Plan - Elro Properties, LLC
	1 Elro Properties, LLC- FDP CC 08-15-15.pdf
	2 Elro Properties LLC Site_Landscape Plans.pdf
	3 Elro Properties LLC Elevations.pdf

	5. 08-05-15 - CC - Quasi-Judicial Site Plans - Mass Grading Plan - Golden Gem Estates, Ph. 1A
	1 Golden Gem Estates Mass Grading Plan - CC 08-05-15.pdf
	2 Golden Gem Estates Master Grading Plan.pdf

	6. 08-05-15 - CC - Quasi-Judicial Site Plans - Preliminary Development Plan - Golden Gem Estates
	1 Golden Gem Estates PDP - CC 08-05-15.pdf
	2 Golden Gem Estates PDP Plans.pdf

	7. 08-05-15 - CC - Quasi-Judicial Site Plans - Final Development Plan - Marden Ridge Apartments
	1 Marden Ridge Apartments FDP - CC 08-05-15.pdf
	2 Marden Ridge Apartments Site Plan.pdf
	3 Marden Ridge Apartments Architectural Elements.pdf
	4 Marden Ridge Apartments Landscape Plan.pdf
	5 Marden Ridge Apartments Parking Lot Buffer.pdf
	6 Marden Ridge Apartments Hardscape Plan.pdf
	7 Marden Ridge Apartments Lighting Plan.pdf

	Bottom

